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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. ZHANG Nan

Non-executive Director

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. NG Ka Man' (Appointed on 25 March 2022)
Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun' (Resigned on 25 March 2022)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. GE Yi
Ms. NG Ka Man' (Appointed on 25 March 2022)
Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun' (Resigned on 25 March 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHU Lin (Chairman)
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. YU Miao

1. Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun has resigned as a joint company
secretary of the Company ( “Joint Company Secretary”
authorized representative of the Company under Rule 3.05 of

the Listing Rules (the “Authorized Representative” )

an authorized representative under the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for acceptance of
service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in
Hong Kong (the “Process Agent” ) with effect from 25 March
2022 due to other work arrangement. Ms. NG Ka Man has been
appointed as the Joint Company Secretary, the Authorized
Representative and the Process Agent with effect from 25
March 2022. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 25 March 2022.
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Mr. YU Miao (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. GE Yi (Chairman)
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin

REGISTERED OFFICE
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George Town
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Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Building No. 10

109 Jinghaisanlu

Beijing Economic-Technological Development Area
The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31st Floor

Tower Two

Times Square

1 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

International Corporation Services Ltd.
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

As to Hong Kong law:
Taylor Wessing

21st Floor

8 Queen’s Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F,0One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1986

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Dongguang branch)
Bank of China (Dongguang branch)

Hang Sang Bank

East West Bank

DBS Bank (Tianjin Branch)

INVESTOR ENQUIRIES

Website: www.tsaker.com

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited 2 &Z{t 2 &£ B AR QA"

Corporate Information

NEEHR

EERMBEERRZDE
BEFEEELAR AR
BB

EERKER1835

A L541E

EEER
AR
REEEMEBBA
&5

IR
2RREFEIE
2112

B ED

LK G E RN B AT
BEA

LR T e B B2 Z 2D
55

- p=oRt

HEEI795

Kb —RE271E

B AD X 5%
1986

FEERRIT
EERRTT (RAXAT)
FEISRTT (RETT)
BAERTT

FEXRTT

BERRTT (REXIT)

REEEH

Ak - www.tsaker.com



Financial Highlights
B RE

2021 2020
—B——fF k- ek 2
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
(Audited) (Audited)
For the year ended 31 December BZE+=-B=1+—HLEE (REZ) (&E:Z)
REVENUE s 1,781,106 1,075,274
GROSS PROFIT EF 540,296 445,335
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F Ra ) 227,238 144,599
Profit attributable to: JEAE A -
Owners of the parent JRREAA 226,239 144,875
Earnings per Share attributable to ordinary BAREBE=ERA
equity holders of the parent: EIEERAT -
AR®¥RMB ARERMB
- Basic and diluted — BEANES 0.227T 0.147C

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,781.1 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB505.8 million or 39.7% comparing
with that in the same period of 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, gross profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB540.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB95.0 million or 21.3% comparing
with that in the same period of 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, net profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB227.2 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB82.6 million or 57.1% comparing
with that in the same period of 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, basic and diluted
earnings per Share attributable to ordinary equity owners of the
parent amounted to approximately RMBO0.22, representing an
increase of approximately RMBO0.08 or 57.1% comparing with that
in the same period of 2020.

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
RMBO0.068 per ordinary Share, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. Together with the
interim dividend of RMBO0.039 per ordinary Share for the six
months ended 30 June 2021, the total dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to RMBO0.107 per ordinary Share.
(for the year ended 31 December 2020: RMB0.048 per ordinary
Share)

RE-F-—#+-A=+-ALEE AREK
BNBARKTSATET KRB -TFASE
A AR¥EB05.8 B & ILE39.7% °

HE-_Z-—H+-_A=+—HILFE KEEE
P EBARES403EET T T FRHEM
HARBEIS 0EETLH21.3% °

BE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HLtFE A£84D
MO BARE227 2BE T » W T FRIHHEM
PARBE826EHEITHET. 1% °

BE2—_Z-_—4F+-_A=+—HLFE FRFLE
MREEBEABRLEREARBEERBNOABAR
#0227  RZTZEFRHENHARYE0.087T
H57.1% °

EESRATRAHARESRLBEBRARK0.068
T v’\&/,\Wx%ﬂikAtﬁ%Hxiﬁt/EE HEHZ
—EC—FRNA=ZTHIENEATHRESR L ®
& AR #0.0397T ¢ ﬁ§_21*¢+_ﬂ =+—H
IEFEHREEESAEREBRARKE0107T -
(BHEZZZZEF+A=+—H1L  FREBEBRA
R#0.0487T ° )
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFEIEHME

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-BLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2 —T-TF —T-NEF FT-NF T—+tF
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB 000
ARBTRT AR®Tr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Operating results — Summary  K&XEHE
Revenue i 1,781,106 1275274 1818347 1515882 1,247,392
Gross profit EF 540,296 445335 1,040,957 524,093 362,989
Profit for the year FREF 227,238 144,599 518,284 222,817 136,106
Profit attributable to: iR F
Owners of the parent ISYNGIEZ=PN 226,239 144,875 517,927 222,901 136,131
Balance sheet — Summary EESERHE
Non-current assets FnBEE 1,655,987 1695556 1724977 1,634,095 1278371
Current assets MENEE 912,494 647,532 856,423 875,056 977,883
Total assets LE®BE 2,568,481 2343088 2,581,400 2,509,151 2,256,254
Current liabilities mEBAERE 637,073 597,606 745,937 871,472 705,342
Non-current liabilities FRBAE 39,982 66,190 69,022 317,794 408,976
Net assets BEFE 1,891,426 1,679,292 1,766,441 1,319,885 1,141,936
Financial ratio B LL &
Gross profit margin M= 30.3% 34.9% 57.3% 34.6% 29.1%
Net profit margin R 12.8% 11.3% 28.5% 14.7% 10.9%
Return on equity(" AR RO 12.7% 8.4% 33.6% 18.1% 12.9%
Current ratio® BN K@ 1.43 1.08 1.15 1.00 1.39
Net debt to equity ratio® EEBBHEO 16.7% 20.8% 17.8% 49.3% 51.0%
Inventory turnover days® FEREXREY 64 98 112 59 41
Trade and notes receivables 2 5 UGRIE &
turnover days® EREERAEREHO 52 71 54 69 71
Trade payables turnover days®  EZEMFEFAEXHO 54 100 146 130 129

A

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &

{LEEEBRAT"



Notes:

Return on equity is derived by dividing net profit by total
equity, where total equity is the average beginning and ending
balances of total equity for the given period.

Current ratio is derived by dividing current assets by current
liabilities at the end of a given period.

Net debt to equity ratio is calculated at dividing interest-
bearing loans and other financial liabilities at the end of the
period by the total equity.

Inventory turnover days for a certain period is derived by
dividing the average inventory (the arithmetic mean of the
opening and closing balance of inventory of a given period)
by cost of sales and multiplying by the number of days in the
relevant period.

Trade and notes receivables turnover days for a certain period
is derived by dividing the average trade and notes receivables
(the arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of
trade and notes receivables of a given period) by revenue and
multiplying by the number of days in the relevant period.

Trade payables turnover days for a certain period is derived
by dividing the average trade payables (the arithmetic mean of
the opening and closing balance of trade payables of a given
period) by cost of sales and multiplying by the number of days
in the relevant period.

Five-Year Financial Summary

T FEHBEHE

wit -

(1) BRACRERAENGAEERSE  MEER
RIEE B AR O R BRSSO T I8 -

(2)  RBHEEDRETEHRNORDEERNTDA

& -

(8) EBEABLXIDZEEHRNFAEEREEM
TR ERNARERTE -

(4) E-HHNGFERBRBEDRTEFEE EEH
MM BR F B R B P39 80 B ASHE
XA BIRIAGBAHROREEE -

(6) R HENEZRUGAREREEEERE
TRV E 5 R FIA R KRR (35 E B
YEBKRE 5 REFIBREREBERDEN
S8 BR AU ES B AG BRI R B E -

(6) EHHENEZENFIBERERETDRFHE
SN IR (F5E BRI ERARE 5 RN A
AEEREY BT I B FR DA S AN B3 3R DA A 7 1
MHORBGTE -
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby report the results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

In 2021, the Group’s business growth quickly resumed as the
impact of the pandemic subsided, and all of our business
segments showed encouraging growth, with traditional business
segments continuously maintaining a dominant market position
and new business segments achieving breakthrough growth
through our continuous efforts. In the face of changes in the
market, we quickly adjusted our business strategies to adapt to
the changes and keep risks under control, in an effort to maintain
the sustainable, stable and healthy development of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, each of the Group’s business segments seized the
opportunity of growing market demand and achieved significant
growth in overall sales revenue, with overall sales revenue
increasing by 39.7%, or approximately RMB505.8 million, as
compared with that of 2020. Among the business segments,
through the Group’s continuous investment in research and
development and production optimization, the battery materials
segment successfully achieved a breakthrough in mass
production in 2021,
2,015.9%, or approximately RMB165.3 million, as compared with
that in 2020. In addition, the sales revenue of dye and agricultural
chemical intermediates segment and pigment intermediates
segment also recorded different levels of growth in line with the
increase in sales volume.

with annual sales revenue increasing by

As a result of the significant increase in sales revenue and
the Group’s continuous stringent control over administrative
expenses, the Group’s net profit significantly increased by 57.1%
to approximately RMB82.6 million in 2021.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*

Chairman’s Report
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AABURRAAREEGERASHEHEE_T—
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£ e

—T - —F AEESEEBRBINETISH G
EWR#  ERBEBEERANKIFE R - BEH
ERAB ST _TFIER39.7% * HARKE505.88

T e B BRI - BB TEHIRARERE
EEL ff_—iﬁzlj],aiﬁiﬂﬁaﬁ e &

FHEWAB T -_TFHEED2 015.9% @ HARE
165.387C © Il - 2R R B EFEERRTIER
FERRBEERALEEHESENMEBRTREE
BE o

AR EERARKIBIRA - RIREERKEEH S8
THEREE  AEEFANER-_Z=Z—FERK
TRIER57.1% » HARE82.6&E T °



FOCUS ON INVESTMENT IN RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT, AND CONTINUOUS RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT OF NEW PROCESSES AND NEW
PRODUCTS

The Group has always attached great importance to investment in
research and development. We constantly upgrade our existing
production processes and products, supplementing the results
of process transformation. In 2021, we successfully implemented
the upgrade of iron phosphate production line and adopted this
into mass production to further reduce the production cost of
the product. Recently, we have also transformed the production
process of co-production of iron oxide red products of DSD Acid,
achieving zero discharge of solid waste from the production
process.

At the same time, we are also actively developing new products
to enrich our product range to meet the diverse needs of our
customers and to enhance customer viscosity. In 2021, we
successfully completed the small and pilot scale R&D of our
BPDA product. As an important raw material for the production of
polyimide products we successfully entered into the field of high
performance macromolecular compounds and further expand the
Group’s product range and enhance the Group’s overall strength.

CAPITAL MARKET EXPANSION

In order to broaden the Group’s financing channels in the capital
market, we are considering a spin-off of Tsaker Technology
and a separate quotation of its shares on the NEEQ. We have
obtained the approval from the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2022
that we may proceed with the proposed spin-off under Practice
Note 15 to the Listing Rules. We believe that the quotation of
the shares of Tsaker Technology on the NEEQ will facilitate the
Group in enhancing its visibility in the capital market, broadening
its financing channels and maintaining long-term and stable
development.

Chairman’s Report

ERE®E

EEMBRA  FENIENERTR

AEE-EHFFEIEHRERENTA - TEHEHR
EOEETENERETHAR - —T-—%F &M
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=% HFIKD EABPDAE m i/l Kt S
T EREERHMTREMNEZRE - KD
EAREERD FILEMEL  E—FhREERE
mEE - RREENGAES -

BEXmEAR
RTHRAREEEATSNRERE  RMIZE
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BRE PHAEERIBERE -
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OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2022,
environment, we will continue to adhere to our flexible market
strategy and respond flexibly according to market conditions.
We will focus on carrying out key fixed asset investment projects
such as the iron phosphate expansion project of Shandong TNM
and the new BPDA capacity project of Tsaker Technology, in
order to achieve the Group’'s goal of producing new products
and expanding production of existing products as soon as
possible. We will continue to focus on research and development
and continuously introduce new products and processes to
enhance the overall competitiveness of the Group. We will strive
to complete the application for quotation of the shares of Tsaker
Technology on NEEQ and continue to broaden the Group’s
financing channels.

in the face of the complex and ever-changing market

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to our Shareholders, customers and business partners for their
support and trust in the management of the Group, and to the
management team and all staff members for their dedication and
efforts to achieve better results for the Group and create value for
the Shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ge Yi
25 March 2022

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SPE =R ECINR

BUSINESS REVIEW X EEE
Operating segment results REDHEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-_—F+=-A=+—HLEE
Dye and
agricultural
chemical Pigment Battery
intermediates  intermediates materials Others Total
FRR
BXRIER
hEE BRI Bt Rl ity Fit
Revenue (RMB'000) Wi (AREF) 1,252,422 353,566 173,486 1,632 1,781,106
Cost of sales (RMB000) HERKAREFTL) 846,661 230,496 163,043 610 1,240,810
Sales volume (fons) HEHE (1) 69,948 11,013 11,573 N/AREF 92,534
Gross profit margin EFE 32.4% 34.8% 6.0% 62.6% 30.3%
Average unit selling price BRI FHERE
(RMBY/ton) (AR®7,/ ) 17,905 32,104 14,991 N/ATRE N/ATE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-T-THF+-A=THLHFE
Dye and
agricultural
chemical Pigment Battery
intermediates  intermediates materials Others Total
IR R
BEER
HREE PRI e S Hith wE
Revenue (RMB'000) Wz (AREFT) 1,005,412 254,076 8,237 7,549 1,275,274
Cost of sales (RMB'000) BERKN (AREFT) 647,590 142,542 35,870 3,937 829,939
Sales volume (fons) HEHE (H) 62,287 8,695 833 N/AT @A 71,815
Gross profit margin EF® 35.6% 43.9% (335.5%) 47.8% 34.9%
Average unit selling price B FHEE
(RMB}ton) (AEBTT /1) 16,142 29,221 9,888 N/ATREF N/AT

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE#R&E 11
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group produces fine chemicals such as dye, pigment,
agricultural chemical intermediates, and battery materials.

The existing main operations of the Group remain stable and
enjoy a prominent position in the market. During the Review
Year, revenue from the top five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 33.8% of the Group’s revenue for the
year (2020: approximately 37.3%).

The Group has a well-established sales network, which covers
areas including Asia, Europe, North and South America. For the
Review Year, by regional distribution,
Group'’s sales in Mainland China accounted for approximately
67.9%; India accounted for approximately 9.0%; Indonesia
accounted for approximately 5.3%; Brazil, Germany, the United
States of America and other regions accounted for approximately
4.2%, 4.2%, 3.3% and 6.1%, respectively, of the Group’s total
revenue.

revenue derived from the

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Review Year, total revenue of the Group increased by
39.7% to approximately RMB1,781.1 million (2020: approximately
RMB1,275.3 million) as compared with that of 2020. The increase
in revenue was mainly due to the increase in sales volume of dye
intermediates and pigment intermediates, and the increase in
sales volume and average sales price of battery material products
as a result of the Group’s completion of the upgrading of its
production line for iron phosphate in June 2021,
phosphate has been gradually mass-produced.

and such iron

As for gross profit, due to the increase in the overall revenue of
the Group and the reduced impact of COVID-19 on production
suspension,
approximately 21.3% to approximately RMB540.3 million (2020:
approximately RMB445.3 million) as compared with that of
2020. The overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased to
approximately 30.3% in 2021 from approximately 34.9% in 2020.
On the other hand, the net profit of the Group for the year 2021
increased by approximately 57.1% to approximately RMB227.2
million (2020: approximately RMB144.6 million); net profit margin
was approximately 12.8% (2020: approximately 11.3%); and
basic earnings per Share was approximately RMB0.22 (2020:
approximately RMBO0.14).

the gross profit of the Group increased by

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Dye and agricultural chemical intermediates — accounting
for approximately 70.3% of total revenue (2020:
approximately 78.8%)

During the Review Year, the growth in market demand and the
reduced impact of COVID-19 on production suspension resulted
in an increase in the sales volume of the dye intermediates
products. Revenue generated from the sales of the dye
intermediates products increased by approximately 33.7% over
2020 to approximately RMB789.3 million in the Review Year (2020:
approximately RMB590.4 million), representing approximately
44.3% (2020: approximately 46.3%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Due to the increase in the average selling prices of the products,
the Group’'s revenue generated from the sales of the agricultural
chemical intermediates products increased by approximately
11.6% over 2020 to approximately RMB463.1 million in the Review
Year (2020: approximately RMB415.0 million), representing
approximately 26.0% (2020: approximately 32.5%) of the Group’s
total revenue. These two factors resulted in an overall increase
of approximately RMB247.0 million or approximately 24.6% in
revenue from the segment as compared with that of 2020.

During the Review Year,
intermediates decreased by 3.8 percentage points to
approximately 39.5% (2020: approximately 43.3%).
profit margin of the agricultural chemical intermediates decreased
by approximately 4.3 percentage points to approximately 20.3%
(2020: approximately 24.6%).

the gross profit margin of dye

The gross

BEER W R DT

R EECERPEE
(ZEZFF : §78.8%)

—HEEBIWENT70.3%

CIEFTA > ARmEHRRIEERCOVID-198E=E
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pigment intermediates — accounting for approximately
19.9% of total revenue (2020: approximately 19.9%)

During the Review Year, due to the increase in market demand
and the reduced impact of COVID-19 on production suspension,
the sales volume and sales price of pigment intermediate products
of the Group increased as compared with that of 2020, while
the revenue generated from the sales of pigment intermediate
products increased by approximately 39.2% over 2020 to
approximately RMB353.6 million (2020: approximately RMB254.1
million).

During the Review Year, as the unit cost of pigment intermediates
increased more than that of the unit price, the gross profit margin
decreased by approximately 9.1 percentage points as compared
with 2020 to approximately 34.8% in 2021 (2020: approximately
43.9%).

Battery materials — accounting for approximately 9.7% of
total revenue (2020: approximately 0.6%)

During the Review Year, the Group has completed the upgrade
and transformation of its iron phosphate production line in June
2021, which iron phosphate has been gradually put into mass-
production. With the continuous increase in the production
volume of the iron phosphate production line and strong market
demand, the production volume, sales volume and market price
of iron phosphate products all achieved significant growth, and
the revenue from the products in the battery materials segment
increased by approximately 2,015.9% over 2020 to approximately
RMB173.5 million in the Review Year. (2020: approximately
RMBS8.2 million).

Others - accounting for approximately 0.1% of total
revenue (2020: 0.6%)

Since the revenue generated from the environmental technology
consultancy services currently accounts for a relatively low
proportion of the Group’s overall revenue, and taking into account
the overall economic environment, the Group no longer takes
environmental technology consultancy services as our business
focus at this stage. The revenue generated from the segment is
included in “Others”. During the Review Year, the Group mainly
focused on technical service consultation of environmental
protection and the operation and maintenance of pre-projects,
and generated revenue of approximately RMB1.6 million (2020:
approximately RMB7.5 million),
approximately 62.6% (2020: approximately 47.8%).

with a gross profit margin of
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPORT

In 2021, the export revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB571.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB162.4 million or 39.7% as compared with the
export revenue of approximately RMB408.9 million in 2020. The
increase in export revenue of the Group was mainly due to the
increase in export sales volume of dye intermediates and pigment
intermediates.

In 2021, the export revenue accounted for approximately 32.1% of
the total revenue of the Group (2020: approximately 32.1%).

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group has always regarded research and development and
technological innovation as the fundamental source of power for
the Group’s development. We continue to research and develop
new products, improve and enhance the production process and
product quality of existing products, and enhance the overall
competitiveness of our products in the market.

During Review Year, we completed the pilot scale research and
development of a new material product BPDA and implemented
a fast-track production line using other existing product plants to
achieve our goal of finishing and launching it on the market as
soon as possible to satisfy customers’ demand.

During Review Year, we further optimised our production
process for iron phosphate battery materials. We completed the
upgrade of our one-step production process and adopted this
into mass production to improve product quality and also reduce
the production cost per unit of product. With the successful
application of this new technology, we continue to expand our
production scale to meet the growing market demand.

During Review Year, we implemented a major technological
upgrade of our DSD Acid product, a dye intermediate, by
converting the scrap iron sludge generated during the original
production process into a co-produced iron oxide red product,
which has recently been completed. Through the application of
the new technology, we have achieved zero discharge of solid
waste from the production process of DSD Acid, and through
the co-production of iron oxide red products, we have further
expanded the Group's existing product range and increased the
overall profitability of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Adhering to the belief that technology is our core competence,
we will continue to invest in research and development and make
unremitting efforts to maintain the competitive edge of our existing
products in the market and actively explore new business growth
points.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the Review Year,
around the globe, the COVID-19 pandemic was under control,
the economies of countries around the world began to recover
gradually and the development of the upstream related industries
recovered, driven by the increase in demand from end-consumer
markets. The sales of dye intermediate and pigment intermediate
products of the Group recorded a significant growth as compared
with that in 2020. In addition, the Group completed the upgrade
and transformation of its iron phosphate production line in June
2021, and iron phosphate has been gradually put into mass
production. With the continuous increase in the production
capacity of the iron phosphate production line, the sales volume
of iron phosphate products increased significantly as compared
with that in 2020. At the same time, we also note that with the
implementation of economic stimulus plans by countries around
the world and the impact of the monetary quantitative easing
policy, the prices of major commodities around the world have
risen significantly, resulting in significant fluctuations in the prices
of many raw materials, which have had a significant impact on the
production costs of the major products of the Group. Under such
a complex economic situation, we have adhered to a proactive
and prudent development strategy, actively addressing the impact
of cost fluctuations and flexibly adjusting our sales strategy to
cope with market changes. We will continue to adhere to the
concepts of safety, environmental protection and sustainable
development, and further increase our investment in research
and development, strive to develop new products and processes,
improve production processes to enhance production efficiency
and effectively reduce production costs, and continue to exercise
stringent cost control to maintain a sustainable, stable, healthy
and innovative development trend of the Group.

with the promotion of vaccination
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Period, through a continuous improvement of
the production process of the iron phosphate products, we have
successfully increased the production capacity of our existing iron
phosphate production line from 15,000 tons/year to 20,000 tons/
year, reaching its full capacity. In addition, we have continued to
expand and transform our existing iron phosphate production line.
As of March 2022, we have successfully increased the production
capacity of our existing iron phosphate production line from
20,000 tons/year to 30,000 tons/year. At the same time, we will
also increase the production capacity of the phase | of new iron
phosphate line in Shandong TNM under construction from 25,000
tons/year to 50,000 tons/year, which is expected to be completed
by the end of 2022. By then, we will have a total production
capacity of 80,000 tons/year of iron phosphate products from two
production bases, which will significantly enhance the influence
of the Company in the iron phosphate industry and lay a solid
foundation for the future development of the Group. During
the Review Period, due to the shortage of production capacity
for upstream products as a result of the significant increase in
market demand for lithium battery materials, product prices rose
accordingly. Although production costs increased due to the
increase in raw material prices, as a result of the expansion of
production scale and the increase in selling prices, the battery
material business segment has significantly reduced its losses
in the previous year and has started and continued to make a
profit. We are confident in the prospect of the future business
development of the battery material segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, the sales volume of our traditional core
dye intermediate and pigment intermediate products increased
significantly as compared with that in 2020 due to increased
market demand, which led to an increase in sales revenue and
profit for the corresponding segments. In consideration of the
long-term and stable development of the traditional business
segment and to commence production of the new product BPDA
as soon as possible, we have moved the BPDA production line to
be established from Shandong TNM to Tsaker Technology, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which mainly engages
in the production and sales of pigment intermediates. Meanwhile,
to further enhance the financing ability of the Group in the capital
market, we are considering a spin-off of Tsaker Technology and a
separate quotation of its shares on the NEEQ. We have obtained
the approval from the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2022 that we
may proceed with the proposed spin-off under Practice Note 15 to
the Listing Rules. Details of which are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 15 March 2022. We believe that the
quotation of the shares of Tsaker Technology on the NEEQ will
facilitate the Group in enhancing its visibility in the capital market,
broadening its financing channels and maintaining long-term and
stable development. We will make further announcement(s) on
the details of the proposed spin-off as and when appropriate in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

During the Review Period, we transformed the production process
of DSD Acid to convert the scrap iron sludge generated during
the production of DSD Acid into iron oxide red as a new product.
Through the upgrading and transformation of the production
process, we have achieved zero discharge of solid waste in the
production of DSD Acid. At the same time, iron oxide red is sold
as a new product of the Group, further broadening the Group’s
product range while improving its overall profitability and market
competitiveness. Iron oxide red is a raw material widely used in
the fields of building materials, painting and other pigments as
well as lithium iron phosphate battery materials. It is widely used
in the market and complementary to the existing products of the
Group. The Group currently has an iron oxide red production
line with a production capacity of 30,000 tons/year and plans to
gradually achieve the target of mass production of iron oxide red
products as it continues to develop the market in 2022.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*

BEER W R DT

EIEER @ HAEGZ ORI LR E
BEMEAMSEEM  HEH T _FTFPLK
BIER H THEERBESRARFBEIES - &
BEEHREBRARPBTER LA THER
BPDAZIRIE A AEE - B BPDAEZRERIEILE
MRV ERABARILZERE - EAKRQF]
F2ENBAR  TEREENTHEEREEN
E) A BTHE - THEAEEELATISHH
BN RABSELREER BT ANEEQE B
MLl RFEEN -_E-—F=F+—BEEH
RETHE AR EBEBRMATRE ETHRBIFE15IEE
FAESIETEZESF - HBHARARFBHAZT
ZZHFE=ZA+TARBZAE - BHMEE - EERER
NEEQWEE FmEFRIESASEEEARATHEW
MAE  MEALERERE  WHEAEERPE
TEERE - BMBERE MR REBASTEERS
FRFIBIELE— S RE -

CIREEAA - M EMmDSDEL £ E T2 UE - DSD
BRAEBSETELNERERY BESBENE
mAfCHEAT - BiRE - EETENARBE - HM
BERTDSORAEBETEREZENNTHR -
REFALHAERERMEREINEE  E—FH
RAKEERRE ReRBARNEIRTSEHSF
N BEBAR-EREZEBNEEMNE - 28
SRR R A R B AR B M R R R M R E
Mo MIBERAEZ TEASEREERVKAR
BT o NSBB8 AT P AEAE30,000M  FA(LH
MERWFEN2022FEEMSAALER  BFE
ReEAEREERR -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking back, we have been striving to leverage our competitive
advantages in technology, production process, environmental
treatment and an international customer network to seize
market development opportunities and develop new business
segments. As the concept of low carbon and environmental
protection becomes more widely accepted, we combine our own
characteristics and advantages, adapt to the development of the
current era and respond to market needs, positioning the future
development of the Company in the fields of new energy and
new materials. We believe that there is a broad market with great
development potential for new energy and new materials, which is
conducive to our long-term, steady and sound development. Since
2017, we have entered the field of new energy battery materials,
established the first production line for iron phosphate, a product
used to produce cathode materials for lithium battery, and
have been upgrading our technology over the past few years to
improve our products’ competitiveness in the market. In 2021, we
launched BPDA, a new material product from our laboratory, into
the market and started to construct the first production line, which
we plan to complete in 2022. Recently, we have completed the
upgrade and transformation of our existing DSD Acid production
line, and our co-produced iron oxide red products are widely
used in both pigments and new energy battery materials fields. As
an increasing number of new energy and new material products
are put into production with expansion in scale, we believe that
this emerging sector will further occupy a larger proportion in the
Group’s overall business and become a new driving force for our
future development.

Looking ahead, we will maintain an active and stable overall
strategy, actively adapt to market changes and maintain a
sound financial strategy. We will further invest in research and
development, develop new products and processes, maintain the
technological advantages of our existing products and expand
into new areas. We will continue to develop new material products
such as iron phosphate and BPDA as important directions for
the future development of the Company. We will also continue
to maintain and expand our industry-leading technological
advantages, cost advantages and market competitive advantages
in the traditional business segment. Meanwhile, as the pandemic
still lingers worldwide, we will actively cooperate with pandemic
prevention measures in place to fulfill our corporate social
responsibility. We are confident that we can overcome the
difficulties together and embrace a better future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

In 2021, the revenue and gross profit of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,781.1 million and approximately RMB540.3
million, respectively, representing an increase of approximately
RMB505.8 million, and approximately RMB95.0 million or
39.7% and 21.3% from approximately RMB1,275.3 million and
approximately RMB445.3 million, respectively in 2020. The
increase in the revenue was mainly due to the increase in sales
volume of dye intermediates and pigment intermediates, and the
increase in the sales volume and average sales price of battery
material products. In 2021, the Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 30.3%, as compared with that of approximately
34.9% in 2020. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly
due to the increase in the price of commodities raw materials
which caused the increase in unit cost to be greater than the
increase in unit price

NET PROFIT AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

In 2021, the net profit of the Group was approximately RMB227.2
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB82.6 million
or 57.1%, as compared with approximately RMB144.6 million in
2020. In 2021, the Group’s net profit margin was approximately
12.8%, as compared with that of approximately 11.3% in 2020.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

In 2021, selling and distribution expenses amounted to
approximately RMB58.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB16.6 million, as compared with approximately
RMB41.6 million in 2020. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due to the increase in the sales volume
of dye intermediate, pigment intermediate and battery material
products.

In 2021, selling and distribution expenses represented

approximately 3.3% of the Group’s revenue (2020: approximately
3.3%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

In 2021, administrative expenses amounted to approximately
RMB143.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB34.4 million, as compared with approximately RMB178.2
million in 2020. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly attributable to a substantial reduction of the suspension
period as a result of the gradual recovery from the COVID-19
pandemic during the Review Period as compared with that for
the same period in 2020. The depreciation of production line and
labor costs were reflected as administrative expenses instead of
costs during the production suspension period.

In 2021, administrative expenses represented approximately 8.1%
of the Group’s revenue (2020: approximately 14.0%).

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF PROPERTY, PLANTS AND
EQUIPMENT

In 2021, the Group provided impairment losses of property,
plants and equipment of approximately RMB6.3 million (2020:
approximately RMB18.2 million). The impairment losses for the
year were mainly attributed to the impairment provision of the
cash generating unit of the CNT and certain equipments of the
TCCBM production line. For more details, please refer to note 13
to financial statements.

FINANCE COSTS

In 2021, finance costs amounted to approximately RMB28.3
million, as compared with approximately RMB32.4 million in 2020,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB4.1 million. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease of bank loans in 2021
as compared with that in 2020.

EXCHANGE GAINS

In 2021, exchange gains amounted to approximately RMB2.3
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB5.7 million,
as compared with exchange gains of approximately RMB8.0
million in 2020, which was mainly attributable to the fluctuation in
the exchange rate of RMB against USD during the Review Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are generally subject to the
Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of 25%. One of the subsidiaries of
the Company in Hong Kong is subject to the two-tier tax regime,
i.e., the first HK$2.0 million of assessable profits earned will be
taxed at half the current Hong Kong profits tax rate (i.e., 8.25%),
and the remaining assessable profits will continue to be taxed
at 16.5%. Other Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Company are
generally subject to the Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5%.
The Singapore subsidiary of the Company is generally subject to
the Singapore Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of 17.0%. In 2021,
income tax expenses amounted to approximately RMB80.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB47.7 million,
as compared with approximately RMB32.7 million in 2020. The
increase in income tax expense was mainly attributable to the
increase in profit before tax during the Review Year as compared
with that in 2020.

CASH FLOWS

In 2021, net cash inflows from operating activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB235.4 million, as compared with
approximately RMB219.2 million in 2020, representing an increase
of approximately RMB16.2 million, which largely remained stable
as compared with that it 2020.

In 2021, net cash outflows used in investing activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB77.8 million, as compared with
approximately RMB39.4 million in 2020, representing an increase
of approximately RMB38.4 million, which was mainly due to the
increased payment by the Group for the upgrade, transformation
and expansion of the iron phosphate production line in 2021.

In 2021, the Group’s net cash outflows used in financing
activities was approximately RMB79.4 million, as compared with
approximately RMB185.5 million in 2020, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB106.1 million. Such decrease in cash
outflows in 2021 was mainly due to the decrease in dividend paid
in 2021 by approximately RMB165.0 million as compared with that
of 2020, offsetting against each other, which is partially offset by
the increase of approximately RMB85.0 million in relation to the
net cash outflows as a result of the repayment of bank loans and
other borrowings as compared with that of 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In 2021, the daily working capital of the Group was primarily
derived from internally generated cash flow from operations and
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had (i)
cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB180.1 million,
in which approximately RMB147.7 million was denominated in
RMB and approximately RMB32.4 million in other currencies
(USD, HK$ and SGD) (2020: approximately RMB101.2 million, in
which approximately RMB86.9 million was denominated in RMB
and approximately RMB14.3 million in other currencies (USD,
HK$ and SGD)); (ii) restricted cash of approximately RMB2.0
million denominated in RMB (2020: approximately RMBO0.8 million
denominated in RMB); and (iii) interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB315.7 million with interest
rate of 4.5%-9.22% per annum, all denominated in RMB (2020:
approximately RMB349.7 million with interest rate of 4.5%-13.47%
per annum, all denominated in RMB, of which (a) approximately
RMB302.1 million shall be repayable within one year,
approximately RMB6.5 million shall be repayable in the second
year, and approximately RMB7.1 million shall be repayable in
the third to fifth years, inclusive (2020: approximately RMB310.2
million shall be repayable within one year approximately
RMB34.1 million shall be repayable in the second year, and
approximately RMB5.4 million shall be repayable in the third to
fifth years, inclusive); and (b) all bore fixed interest rates (2020:
approximately RMB349.7 million). The Group’s unutilized banking
facilities amounted to approximately RMB59.3 million as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

In 2021, the Group did not use any risk hedging instrument or
have any borrowing or hedge in its foreign currency investment.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position for the year ended 31 December 2021.
To manage the liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’'s gearing ratio was
approximately 16.7% as compared with approximately 20.8% as
at 31 December 2020, which is calculated at interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings at the end of the year divided by the
total equity. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease of
bank loans and other borrowings by the Group and the increase
in total equity during the Review Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the total current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB912.5 million (2020:
approximately RMB647.5 million), primarily consisting
of inventories of approximately RMB260.9 million (2020:
approximately RMB177.8 million), trade receivables and
notes receivable of approximately RMB301.9 million (2020:
approximately RMB217.3 million), prepayments and other
receivables of approximately RMB139.1 million (2020:
approximately RMB148.7 million), cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB180.1 million (2020: approximately RMB101.2
million) and restricted cash of approximately RMB2.0 million
(2020: approximately RMB0.8 million).

INVENTORIES

Inventories of the Group mainly consisted of raw materials, work-
in-progress and finished products. The inventory turnover days
decreased from 98 days in 2020 to 64 days in 2021, and the
decrease was mainly due to the increase in sales volume which
sped up the inventory turnover in 2021.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
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Trade receivables H SN FRE 216,086 135,164
Notes receivable R ZEE 85,802 82,177
301,888 217,341

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables and notes receivable
of the Group increased by approximately RMB84.5 million as
compared with those of 2020.

The turnover days for trade receivables and notes receivables
decreased from 71 days for 2020 to 52 days for 2021, which was
mainly due to a resumption of normal payment schedule since the
impact from the COVID-19 pandemic was subsided.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2021, prepayments and other receivables
of the Group decreased by approximately RMB9.6 million from
approximately RMB148.7 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB139.1 million in aggregate, which was
mainly due to the decrease in prepaid corporate income tax.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the total current liabilities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB637.1 million (2020:
approximately RMB597.6 million), primarily consisting of trade
payables of approximately RMB195.7 million (2020: approximately
RMB178.9 million), other payables and accruals of approximately
RMB84.6 million (2020: approximately RMB86.3 million) and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB302.1 million (2020: approximately RMB310.2 million).

TRADE PAYABLES

The turnover days for trade payables decreased from 100 days in
2020 to 54 days in 2021. The decrease in the turnover days was
mainly as a result of the large amount of purchases with longer
credit terms was due to payment.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2021, other payables and accruals of
the Group decreased by approximately RMB1.7 million from
approximately RMB86.3 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB84.6 million in aggregate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and trade receivables with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB116.0 million (2020:
approximately RMB201.1 million) were pledged to secure bank
loans and other borrowings granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures, or significant investment of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other plans for material investments or
capital assets acquisition as at 31 December 2021 and the date
of this report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in the exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of
the Group is mainly related to its operating activities. Along with
the continuous expansion of the scale of its export business, the
Group’s operations may be affected by the future fluctuation in
exchange rates. The Group is closely monitoring the impact of
fluctuation in currency exchange rates on the foreign exchange
risk of the Group.

The Group currently does not have any hedging policy for foreign
currencies in place. However, the Board will remain alert to any
relevant risks and, if necessary, consider to hedge any material
potential foreign exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has established human resources policies and systems
with a view to achieving effective management in all aspects and
building a learning-oriented organisation by providing motivational
rewards through a proper reward system and offering employees
various training programs including internal/external training and
public courses.

The remuneration package offered to the employees (including the
Directors) was in line with their duties and the prevailing market
terms. Staff benefits, including bonus, training schemes, pension
fund, medical coverage, provident funds etc., were also provided
to the employees of the Group.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A F)*
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,581 employees (2020:
1,526).

During the Review Year, the total staff costs of the Group
(including salaries, bonuses, social insurances and provident
funds) amounted to approximately RMB143.4 million (2020:
approximately RMB116.0 million).

The Group did not have any share option scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

Trading of the Shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange commenced on 3 July 2015. The net proceeds
from the Listing amounted to approximately RMB378.8 million.
The net proceeds are used for the purposes disclosed in the
Prospectus and the Announcement of the Company dated on 25
June 2021 (the “Announcement”).

Till 31 December 2020, the net proceeds of approximately
RMB37.9 million had been used as supplemental working capital,
approximately RMB189.4 million had been used to expand
production capacity, approximately RMB37.9 million had been
used to develop new products, approximately RMB18.9 million
had been used to pay the rents of Phase | and Phase Il of Tsaker
Dongao, and approximately RMB20.6 million had been used
to acquire the entire equity interests in Tsaker Dongao. The
unutilized net proceeds brought forward to 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB74.1 million.

In addition, during the Review Year, the Company has used the
full amount of balance of the net proceeds, which amounted to
approximately RMB74.1 million, to supplement the funds required
for the expansion and operation of the Group’s battery materials
business in accordance with the proposed use as set out in the
Announcement.

As at 31 December 2021, the net proceeds from the Listing were
fully utilized.
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1.1.

1.2.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT TSAKER CHEMICAL
Introduction

Since its establishment in 1997, Tsaker Chemical Group
Limited (the “Company” or “Tsaker Chemical”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) has been committed
to integrating green technology into research and
development and production of fine chemicals such as
dyes and pigment intermediates agricultural chemicals,
intermediates, and battery materials and was successfully
listed on the Stock Exchange in 2015. As one of the global
leading manufacturers of dyes, pigments, and agricultural
chemical intermediates, Tsaker Chemical has the world’s
largest production plant for dyes, pigments, agricultural
chemicals and intermediates as well as one of the world’s
three largest mononitrotoluene production plants. In 2021,
the Company entered the fields of aerospace materials
BPDA. Tsaker Chemical not only pays attention to the
quality and standard of products, but also pays more
attention to the company’s impact on the environment
and society. Going forward, the Group will enhance the
integration of green technology into R&D and production to
reduce its environmental footprint and help achieve carbon
neutrality, vision, and core values.

Vision and Core Values

Tsaker Chemical adheres to the corporate philosophy of “to
build a better world with green technology”, integrating the
Group’s core goals and values in pursuit of excellence. In
addition to pledging to provide customers with high-quality
and reliable innovative products and services, the Group
also focuses on fulfilling corporate social responsibility to
ensure that the Group’s business abides by integrity and
environmental protection principles. The Group constantly
makes an effort to scale up its investment in environmental
protection and the research and development of eco-
friendly technologies, leading Tsaker Chemical and the
society to drive sustainable development as a whole. The
Group will continuously devote time and resources to
environmental protection and its development on green
technologies to lead Tsaker Chemical and the society to be
more sustainable.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Tsaker Chemical
Group Limited, | am pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Group Report for the
year 2021. As people become more aware of ESG
issues, the Group recognizes the importance of ESG
issues in employment and development. In line with the
group’s philosophy of “Building a Better World with Green
Technology”, we dedicate our efforts and resources in
the pursuit of sustainable development by providing
safe, environmentally friendly, high quality products and
assuming social responsibilities.

In 2021, the COVID-19 epidemic continued to affect
the development of the world. The Group has actively
responded to the impact of the epidemic, continued to
pursue progress while maintaining stability, continued to
strengthen basic management, and established a sound
system to create a better future for the society.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
("ESG Committee”) has guided the Group towards a more
sustainable future by providing guidance and support.
The ESG approach, policy and action plan are smoothly
implemented with the Group through partnerships within
the various departments. In response to the central
government’s goal of carbon peaking and carbon neutrality,
the Group will implement effective policies to integrate the
concepts of environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
into daily operations.

Last but not least, | would like to sincerely thank all the
stakeholders for their support in moving the company
towards a brighter, greener and hopeful future. Guided by
our vision to build a sustainable future, we are committed
to fostering more resilient businesses and communities in
the coming year.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Ge Yi
25 March 2022
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3.1.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group hereby publishes its ESG Report and
presents its sustainability performance. To enhance our
stakeholders’ understanding of the Group’s operations,
management and working culture, the report aims to
increase the disclose of the Group’s sustainability strategy,
practices, performance and other relevant information.

Reporting Theme

To highlight the resilience and corporate value of Tsaker
Chemical, the reporting theme of this year is “Optimizing
intelligent production, making more effective management”:

Optimizing Intelligent Production

The Group is committed to developing its own patented
technology, focusing on informatization in the field of
production, and maximizing the value of the manufacturing
industry. The Group will follow “The 14th Five-Year Plan
for the Development of Intelligent Manufacturing of the
People’s Republic of China”

Making More Effective Management

To improve the timeliness, integrity and accuracy of
data, the Group introduced management to make it more
effective and efficient. The Group has fully satisfied the
diverse needs of customers while achieving economies of
scale in production.
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3.2.

3.3.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Reporting Standard and Scope

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environment, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”’). The
report covers the environmental and social performance
of Tsaker Chemical’s Beijing headquarter, Tsaker Beijing,
the Dongguang production plants (Hebei Tsaker, Tsaker
Technology and newly added battery material factory) and
the Dong'ao production plant from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”). Information on
corporate governance have been separately presented in
the annual report in accordance with Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

Sustainability Governance

The sustainable development goals of the Group is to
integrate the green technology into the world, and to
create long-term and sustainable value for all stakeholders.
Adhering to the core value, the Group has adopted a
strictly effective sustainable development governance
structure to ensure the implementation of sustainable
development runs through all levels of the Group. In 2020,
the Group has established an Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee (“ESG Committee”) to assist the
Group in managing its ESG-related issues.

The Board

The Board, supported by the ESG Committee, will be
responsible for all sustainability strategies, management,
performance, and reporting related to the Group. The
Board also regularly reviews the Group's sustainable
development direction, goals and progress. The Group
will review the risks and opportunities for its sustainable
development.

3.2.

3.3.
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3.4.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

ESG Committee

The ESG Committee has been established in 2020,
composed of senior staffs who have over 20 years’
experience. All of members are very familiar with the
business operations. The main responsibilities of the
ESG Committee are to formulate ESG-related strategies,
implementing and monitoring relevant initiatives and
policies, and enhancing communication among various
stakeholders including employees, customers and
investors. The Committee will review and identify the risks
and opportunities for sustainable development based on
market trends. In addition, the committee is also required
to manage the external communication, disclosure and
reporting of the Group’s sustainability performance, and
make recommendations to the Board on related matters.

Stakeholder Engagement and Communication
Channels

To improve the quality of our products and services,
the Group values open discussion and interaction with
internal and external stakeholders who have opinions that
help identify the Group’s key topics. The group regularly
optimizes different communication channels to maintain
dialogue with different stakeholders, collect feedback, and
develop long-term green development plans. During the
Reporting Period, the Group interacted with stakeholders
through the following communication channels:

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Stakeholder Groups
BHE

Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERERBE

Main Communication Channels

TRBERE

Local Community
=h:ikad

Industry Association

E L E

Media
(RS

Suppliers
HERD

Customers

5P

Donation

B

Community Service

=R

Social Media

AR

Sponsored University Research
B e Ef

Interview

BHilla

Seminar

e

Annual Meeting

Fg

6S Management Advance Meeting
6SERHEES

Interview

Hilg

Group’s Website
A
Social Media

MR e

Site Visits

EihER

Assessment and Performance Evaluation
Bz RKRBEM

Meeting

S
=

Customer Service

B RS

Group’s Website

A

Social Media

AR

Customer Satisfaction Survey

BEFMEERE
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Stakeholder Groups
BHE

Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Main Communication Channels

TERBERE

Employees

RE

Investors

REE

Shareholders

PR

Government

BT

Electronic Communication
B

Staff Meeting

EHN-

Team Building Activities
EREEE)

Seminar and Workshop
Mg RIS
Performance Appraisal

EmEZ

Face-to-face Meeting and Teleconference

EHAREFGH

Investor Briefing

BEE R

Investor Relations Page in the Group’s Website
PEBUERREEBRESE

Annual Report, Interim Report, Financial Reports and Announcements

FIR - PHWmE  MBBRREAE

Annual General Meeting

EESN-

Annual Report, Interim Report, Financial Reports and Announcements
Filf - PHWmE  MBRRLEAE

Face-to-face Meeting and Teleconference

EH#REEGH

Group’s Website

A

Public Consultation
DR
Meeting

e
=

A
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3.5.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Materiality Assessment

Identification of material themes is a cornerstone for a
business to develop its own sustainability approach. It
provides a clear direction for developing collaboration
and managing risk management. In view of this, the
Group’s Board of Directors has appointed a third-party
environmental sustainability consultancy company to
determine and focus on the management of business-
related sustainability issues. In order to further strengthen
the understanding of the opinions of various stakeholders,
the Group has conducted a comprehensive materiality
assessment and sent out a questionnaire to the Group's
important stakeholders during the Reporting Period,
including our board management, employee and other
external stakeholders. The questionnaire covered
environmental and social issues relevant to the Group.
After collecting and analyzing the results, the identified
environmental and social issues have been presented
through materiality matrix and lists:

EEMEE

Material Topics

N ‘/\

HEMBHENTE
Impact on stakeholders
4
m
X
<

3.5.

BRI - 4 ERERHE

EEMFME
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FEBNEEELEEE =T RFAIFER
EEEAR  MELBEEERXBHEBN
ARERREE - RE—SMBAKEE X
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ENHNELLHEHE  BREEER
BT REMINBIHDE - AERATRE
HEBMABNREIMEHR - LBKEM
DMERR - FIEAONRERMEHECE
BEEEBEMIKRER

1B
Environmental

& Social

7

HYR(CBNTE

Impact on business
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Environmental Material Issues Social Material Issues
RIGEERE HEEERE
1. Comply with environmental laws 1. Business Ethics and Integrity
and regulations SEICYSEAH
HERRBENERER
2. Climate change and GHG 2. Supplier selection
emissions fHrrEmE =
SRR E AR = R HER
3. Wastewater management 3. Labour standard
SRR E 2R EIEEBEE
No. Area Topics
19 giis 7]
A Environmental Comply with environmental laws and regulations
RIE REREHEENERER
B Air pollutants emissions
RIS R B
C Climate change and GHG emissions
AR AR ERAEHER
D Renewable Resources
KA BEEIR
E Resource recovery
ERER
F Wastewater management
VEIKBEAE R
G General waste management
—RREEYER
H Hazardous waste management
BEREEYRE
Efficient use of material
MEHE R e
J Sustainable factory
A ETMIT=
K Sustainability framework and strategy

AR LT 45 A B R AR RN SRS
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERERBE

No. Area Topics
(19 g E
L Social Comply with local laws and regulations
He FeEmt SR EEER
M Labour standard
EEEBER
N Workforce Diversity
e | RTE Y 3
O Occupational health and safety
BERERNZE
P Development and training
R RIE
Q Supplier selection
HEFMEE
R Supplier screening and tender policy
SHE B 2 BRI T RIRBUR
S Procurement Methods
BT 2 (BUaniBIE rT MR
T Customer Privacy
ZRERAL
U Community Involvement
el
\ Business Ethics and Integrity
BEEENAIE
W Feedback channel for stakeholder
BHEZRBUBEROHENRERER
X Whistleblower Policy for Employees, Customers and Suppliers
BT @ B R ER . Rk
Based on the result of materiality assessment, Tsaker BIBEAEMHENEZURE  YRLELER
Chemical will focus on the performance of relevant aspects, AERBEIENRE  BEIEIMIRER
including allocating and investing resources to improve the RAEZZENKRE UL ESHZEE
performance of material issues, and responding to material H = E -
issues.
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3.6.

4.1.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Contact Details

If you have any comments or suggestions regarding this
report,
or the contact person of ESG Committee at the address
below:

please contact the investor relations department

Building No. 10, 109 Jinghaisanlu, Beijing Economic-
Technological Development Area, the PRC

Contact person of ESG Committee: Yang Fuguang
Telephone: 0317-7750925

RIGOROUS PRODUCTION

Tsaker chemical regards the provision of sustainable
products and services as the Groups’ core value. The
Group requires suppliers to uphold the same core value
and work together towards the goal. Therefore, sustainable
elements are added to supply chain management and
quality management, such as the use of responsible
raw materials and the selection of green suppliers. The
production procedures should be managed strictly to
ensure product quality. the Group maintains
close cooperation with suppliers and adopts two-way and
constructive communication to optimize the sustainable
supply chain.

In addition,

Supply chain management

The supply of raw materials and their impact on the
environment is one of the philosophies of Tsaker Chemical
for sustainable development. Cooperate with suppliers
that have sustainable concept and social responsibility are
preferred and the Group hopes to establish a sustainable
supply chain.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*

3.6.

4.1

RIR - 4 ERERWRE

RS

H BTHAREAEMERNER  FHE
TP E R AL B A% B AT IS R ESGZ B
L EUNE

AR T A R T R B R
K= 810958 105818

ESGZEEHIEA « BEE
E:E 0 0317-7750925

BENEEEE

FRCBRRARHR AR EE @ MRBER
ZOEE  TEREEARFARNZOE
B BFERARBR - Bt £HEREE
BREEEE EMATFENTE @ HlnE
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬂﬂﬂkﬁﬁﬁféfﬁmﬁ—r e
BRMEBEERT  UWEREREE - It
Sh - ME-—ERFBEEEE - RRERREZ
RUEEVBER - AE— B IFE R -

HEREE

EVMEHHERESHSRENTERE
fCERAFERREESZ— - FAilt - A
AHBEHI R TEANHEEREIER
BEMEE  EEETAFENHEEE -

=
LB
RE



Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Group attaches great importance to safety of
materials, stability, and production efficiency. Therefore,
the procurement department has established a sustainable
supply chain management system in accordance with the
ISO14001:2015 environmental management system. The
department select suitable suppliers with reference to
the guideline and ensure that requirement is fulfilled. The
Group reviews the performance of suppliers in terms of
environmental and social responsibilities. New suppliers
are requested to fill in the “New Supplier Evaluation Form”,
which includes an assessment of their environmental
and social risks. In addition, the Group shall consider
environmental protection of the products when purchasing
energy related products. For instance, the Group has
formulated coal procurement guidelines to reduce air
pollutions. Factories are required to purchase low-sulfur,
relatively clean coal as boiler fuel to reduce sulfur oxide
emissions. When purchasing hazardous chemicals, it is
mandatory for manufacturers to hold valid production and
operation licenses to ensure that the quality and source of
raw materials meet product and regulatory requirements.

The Group adapts a set of fair and objective criteria to
evaluate all suppliers, to seek cooperation opportunities
with competitive suppliers that share the Group’s
philosophy. Suppliers who are first contacted are
categorized into different grades based on major
performance indicators and regarded as backup
suppliers to maintaining the Group’s stable supply chain.
Suggestions are given to suppliers who obtained lower
grade, they could make improvement and receive re-
assessments.

The Group conducts field visit annually at the production
units of the existing suppliers to evaluate the products
quality. The environmental, social and governance
performance of suppliers on will be measured, then the
suppliers should make appropriate follow-up. The Group
is welcome to keep dialogues with suppliers and practices
the sustainable supply chain management collectively.

BRI - 4 ERERHE

AEBEB+HSERMANEELS BEE
MAEEKRE - At » AEBERAREIIIZR
ISO14001:2015RIREEER » R Al
BHOHEREETERS - KRBT SL2EBRE
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SEAFEMRE  EEImEERRE - ¥
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RFRENEIHAEBEALABEHEEHE
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4.2,

Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Group notices a huge amount of carbon emissions
is incurred by materials transportation, so The Group
exercises green procurement within its supply chain. For
instance, the Group has been prioritizing cooperation
with local and nearby suppliers to minimize the carbon
footprints, as well as promote local economic development.

RIR - 4 ERERWRE

ZRIMEENERSE L KERIN -
o AEEERGERBME - BREELH
RO HERAE  EBBRIBRE
EN - I B gE B A ISP R o

Geographical Distribution of Suppliers HEREIED M

Number of Suppliers HEFHE

Local i 655 99.7%
Overseas I 2 0.3%
Quality Control 42. mEEE

Apart from maintaining a stable and smooth supply chain,
another important core value of the Group is to ensure the
quality of products. To meet the expectation of customers
and maintains company reputation, Tsaker Chemical strives
to maintain the best product quality through strict quality
control.

To ensure the procedures are accurate and well-ordered,
the Group strictly enforces quality control requirements
and conducts inspection and maintenance regularly in
accordance with 1SO9001:2015 quality management
system standards. In addition, product storage and
hygiene are key to keep product quality. Therefore, the
Group strictly maintains the temperature and humidity of
the warehouses, as well as conducts disinfections in the
workplace twice a week. Of all the detail management
and high-quality products, the Group set apart from other
competitors.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

With rigorous and professional quality control, the Group
has been recognized and affirmed by the local government
and professional organizations. During the reporting year,
the R&D and technology of Tsaker Chemical obtained a
total of 17 awards and certifications as follows:

BRI - 4 ERERHE

BEEEERFNBRERERX  AKEXIE
WBRREEEEBNRRANREE - SULRE
RE -RHMEFEAR  XELCBNTFERK
e HEF T+ EETARARE

Award-winning Site Name of Corporate Award Awarding Organization
R ERELE EREE
Hebei Tsaker Chemical Single Champion Product in Industry and Information Technology
Co., Limited (Hebei Tsaker) Manufacturing Industry Department People’s Republic
LB ERNBR AR BIEXSIETEEM of China, China Federation of
Industrial Economics
hEAREMBETEMESMAT -
MEIELERS S
Green Plant Ministry of Industry and
4R ETRR Information Technology

High-tech products
=T B E

Fine Chemical Top 100
Private Enterprises
BAEIERRE R

Top 500 Chinese Petroleum and
Chemical Enterprises

LA AL T %50058

Hebei Industrial Enterprise R&D
Certificate Grade A

EE TR EMEFEAR

“Specialized, Sophisticated,
Distinctive, and New”
Demonstration enterprise

(R4 REidhx

IEMEELE

Hebei High-Tech Enterprises
Association

itE SR tERE

China Fine Chemical Raw Material
& Intermediate Industry Association,
China Chemical Industry
Information Association

2EEMAC TR R HEEgITE
e - PEME TERIEEHE

China Petroleum and Chemical
Industry Federation

FEAMAEBETIERESS

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

bR TEFE LB

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

AILE TRMEBCE
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Award-winning Site

BREM

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Name of Corporate Award

RREEM

RIR - 4 ERERWRE

Awarding Organization

RS

Cangzhou Recognized Enterprise
Technology Center

BN RE R ERM AL

2021 Hebei Province Industry-
University-Research Cooperation
Innovation Award

2021 FF AL B E B A ERIHT 82

Vice President Unit of the Second
Council of Hebei Industry-
University-Research Cooperation
Promotion Association

At EESRMAEREeFE _EEES
Blg R8N

Cangzhou Development and
Reform Bureau

BRI

Hebei Province Industry-University-
Research Cooperation Promotion
Association

ML AESREIERES

Hebei Province Industry-University-
Research Cooperation Promotion
Association

A& EEH A VR

IS

Hebei Tsaker New Material
Technology Co., Ltd.
AAEF MR R D B IR A A

High-tech Enterprise
SRR

High-tech products
= T R E

“Specialized, Sophisticated,
Distinctive, and New” nurture
enterprise

[HERBETIFERE

“Specialized, Sophisticated,
Distinctive, and New” SMEs

[FRERH R/

“Specialized, Sophisticated,
Distinctive, and New”
Demonstration enterprise

[ EE%ET  RE %
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Hebei Provincial Department of
Science and Technology,
Hebei Provincial Finance
Department, State Taxation
Administration of Hebei Province

AL AR ERAEE A A B -
BERBFEBTILERBER

Hebei High-Tech Enterprises
Association

b EmI R ERHE

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

AibE TEMEBCE

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

AR TEMERLE

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

AiEE TEMEBCE



Award-winning Site

BREM

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Name of Corporate Award

RRFEM

BRI - 4 ERERHE

Awarding Organization

RS

Science and technology small and
medium-sized enterprises in
Hebei Province

AAEE R/

Hebei Provincial Department of
Science and Technology

EBIEERE 23

Shandong Tsaker Dongao
Chemicals Co., Limited
(Tsaker Dongao)

IWREERECBERAT]

Shandong Province Single
Champion Enterprise
IWREBIERE D

Shandong Provincial Department of
Industry and Information
Technology, Shandong Provincial
Federation of Industrial Economics

IWRETEMERLE  IIRETHE

TN AN
KEsREeS

Remark 1: Most awards in 2021 was published by relevant
departments, the medals have not been awarded.

1 2021 FZHBIBERMBHAAPIEN AR
X RETERE
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
BRI - HEBRERRE

2021 Hebei Province Industry-University-Research
Cooperation Innovation Award
(2021 F5A 4L & FE 2R & VR AR )

Hebei Industrial Enterprise R&D Institution Certificate

CUitA TELEMBERBEEE)

Science and technology small and medium-sized enterprises
in Hebei Province

Gt AR B R/ NRE)
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4.3.

4.4.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Fulfilling Product Responsibility

To handle customer inquiries in an effective manner, the
Group establishes a set of comprehensive complaint and
product recall mechanism. The Group shall conduct an in-
depth investigation of the product in the aspects of raw
materials, production progress, packaging and quality after
receiving the complaint. If the investigation results attest
that the incident was caused by the fault of the Group,
relevant department(s) shall arrange product recall and
re-manufacture a new batch of products for customers
promptly. To avoid repeated mistakes, the Group will also
use the previously handled complaints as a case sharing to
raise other employees’ awareness and discuss together to
improve production and inspection procedures as well as
countermeasures. During the reporting period, the Group
was not aware of any incidents requiring product recalls
due to safety and health issues.

The customers’ trust and support are the momentum of the
Group’s business growth. To establish a good relationship
with customers and maintain product satisfaction, the
Group provides customer satisfaction surveys for gathering
customer opinions and further improve the quality of
products and services. The survey results of the reporting
period showed that the customer satisfaction scores of
the products provided by the Group were all above 95
(out of 100), and no complaints were received regarding
any dissatisfaction with any of the Groups’ products and
services.

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

Tsaker Chemical is aware of the importance of intellectual
property rights. By the end of 2021, the Group has a
total of 78 proprietary intellectual property rights. With
continuous technological innovation and improvement,
the Group have applied for 37 intellectual property rights
In 2021. The Group has formulated relevant policies and
codes in accordance with local laws and regulations, and
strictly requires employees to follow relevant regulations.
When handling and protecting the patented technologies
of the Group and other partners, it is crucial to ensure their
intellectual property and commercial rights.
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4.5.

5.1.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Safeguarding Customer Privacy

The Group respects the privacy of stakeholders and
maintains business integrity. For instance, the Group
articulates that a confidentiality agreement must be signed
when negotiating with suppliers, customers or partners in
a bid to fully protect the interests of all parties. To prevent
the leakage of customer information, the Group has issued
clear guidelines to all employees on the collection and
processing of customers’ personal or business information.

SAFE AND ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY
WORKPLACE

To showing the Group’s commitment and ambitions
to safeguarding the health and safety of employees,
the Group has established safety and environmental
protection department (“S&E”) at each production unit
to comply the local regulations during the production
progress. The department conducts weekly meetings
with production managers and representatives to provide
feedback, safety and environmental protection-related
opinions and suggestions, as well as the promotion of
the latest relevant policies. The establishment of the S&E
department strengthens the communication and scientific
and technological knowledge among departments, as well
as minimizes the operational risks of the employees and
environment while exhibits the Group’s responsibility on its
staff and environment.

Safety management

Tsaker Chemical is a manufacturer of chemical materials,
its employees require to handle and mix chemicals during
the work. The Group adheres to the principle of “prevention
for safety” and is committed to creating a safe working
environment for its employees. In accordance with the local
fire protection and 1SO45001:2018 occupational health and
safety framework, the Group strictly implements fire safety
measures to ensure workplace safety.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Use and Storage of Dangerous Chemicals

To minimize safety risks, the Group sets up a rigorous
safety management system that allows the employees
to follow during the chemicals storage, loading and
uploading, transportation and usage. The Group also
stipulates hazardous chemicals must be properly classified
and labeled and stored separately in designated areas to
prevent accidents. In addition, a representative has been
appointed to oversee the production procedures to ensure
the proper handling of chemicals at each premise. Beyond
that, regular training about chemical management has
been provided for employees to diminish the risks caused
by mishandling.

Raising Safety Awareness

Tsaker Chemical values safety very much. Each new
employee must pass a three-month probationary period
under the guidance of qualified personnel before being
formally hired. During the probation, new employees
must abide the rules and work under the guidance of
the senior staffs, learn the proper chemical handling
procedures to avoid mistakes. After probation, employees
are also required to participate in safety courses and
take examinations regularly organized by the Group to
consolidate their knowledge. The Group provides physical
examinations annually to ensure employees’ physical
health is sufficient to cope with work arrangements and
occupational safety.

To cultivate employees’ safety awareness, the Group
encourages employees to participate in occupational
safety-related activities. During the reporting period, the
Group organized safety speaking contest and firefighting
contest. Through the interactive events, the employee can
enhance their knowledge on safety.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

firefighting contest

CHRTHE &)

L, ""'-"-,;"'.'-" -

- - a - - -
01 E S NP RETA AP RBYRLES

Safety Month Competition safety speaking contest
(22 ALEEE) (ZEEBLE)
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Promoting Automated Production

As automated manufacturing has become the current
production development trend, it also enhances the
product stability and operation safety to reduce work
injuries. The Group has adapted the latest automatic
system to monitor the production process and detect any
mechanical failure. The Group will continue to promote
automated production at all the production units to boost
the production safety and efficiency.

To maintain energy use in a good manner, real-time energy
monitoring system has been installed, including five
networked systems for water, electricity, coal (consumed
coal, purchased coal), and natural gas. Platform-based
management is implemented for automatic monitoring and
analysis, the data is real-time and reliable. Use intelligent
metering can cover and collect the data comprehensively,
predict energy consumption trends, and improve economic
benefits.

For the online monitoring of pollution sources, operation
supervision and data application, video surveillances are
installed in the online monitoring stations and sampling
locations, the operating parameters of online monitoring
equipment are monitored at the same time. Face
recognition is used for authentication when entering the
monitoring stations, the activity personnel is recorded.
To achieve fully monitoring of the operation process
and parameters of pollution emissions and improve the
reliability of online pollution monitoring data application,
comprehensive analysis and judgment are conducted
through the monitoring data, operation status, emission
characteristics of pollution sources, operation and
maintenance events, and video monitoring (commonly
known as “Dynamic management and control system or
intelligent management and control system”).
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Equipped with Safety Facilities

Tsaker Chemical implements a series of dust and noise
isolation measures to protect its workers from occupational
injuries. The Group also conducts machine inspections
at various locations regularly to ensure smooth operation
of the system and avoid mechanical failures. In terms
of hardware, Tsaker Chemical ensures that all premises
possess comprehensive and advanced safety facilities.
The Group also divided different areas in production
units by color according to the level of potential risks.
Accompanying by clear and visible safety guidelines
and signages at conspicuous locations of the plant, the
employees are reminded to stay alert and wear appropriate
personal protective equipment such as goggles and
gloves.

In addition, the Group complies with the local fire
protection requirements of each production unit and
has adequate firefighting equipment and established
escape routes. The Group also cooperates with the local
fire brigade to organize fire drills and fire competitions
regularly to enhance employees’ resilience and resolve
potential risks. To comply with local safety requirements,
the Group has also set up emergency pools in each plant
to effectively and quickly handle the fire when necessary.
With complete safety measures, the Group did not have
any work-related fatalities and lost workdays due to work-
related injuries during the Reporting Period, achieving the
safety goal of zero work-related fatalities in the last three
years including the Reporting Period.

Anti-pandemic measures

As a caring and responsible company, Tsaker Chemical
has been making great efforts to fight against the
pandemic. In addition to the governmental suggestions
through discouraging the staff gathering, the Group has
also taken other relevant measures to protect the health
and safety of employees and clients. In terms of policy
implementation, the Group has established a leading
group for epidemic prevention and work resumption safety
management. The leading group is responsible for contain
epidemics, monitor safety management, strengthen crowd
control, workplace disinfection, hygiene education and
resource collection, etc. and also enforcing the following
initiatives to the employees:

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Measure body temperatures before working and
keep a 1-meter social distances while waiting for
temperature checking

Wear mask during the way to workplace and home,
as well as within the working hours

Use touchless QR code for identification, measuring
body temperature to avoid virus spreading

Minimize the face-to-face meeting by using online
meetings and training

Provide preventive and sanitizers, including masks
and hand gel to employees in the workplace

Conduct daily disinfection in the office and
production units to ensure the public hygiene

Visitors are required to fill in the health declaration
form if they enter to the factories or office area

Setting anti-pandemic plan and precautions to
response to the pandemic development quickly

Install air ventilation facilities to reduce chance of
virus spreads in the air

Promote the anti-pandemic knowledge to the
employees and enhance their awareness

Tsaker Chemical takes strict prevention measures to curb
the outbreak of the pandemic and takes various measures
to fight against epidemic. The Group shall provide all —
rounded assistances to the employees and the society
according to the latest pandemic situation and combating
the pandemic collectively.

To summarize the progress of prevention and resumption
of work and production, the Group has further established
a risk management assessment mechanism, as well
as a long-term mechanism for safety risk identification,
management and control, and hidden trouble investigation
and governance. Through concluding the previous
experience, it is able to boost the safety management level
comprehensively.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Environmental Protection

Environmental protection is the universal responsibility
of every enterprise. Tsaker Chemical to take this into
consideration. Beyond compiling all environmental
laws and regulations, the Group also embeds green
technologies into operation and production, including
the realms of waste, emission reduction and resource
efficiency, to reduce the environmental impact.

Environmental Policy

To further strengthen the environmental performance
management of business operations, the Group has
obtained the 1SO14001:2015 environmental management
system, and formulated environmental policies in
accordance with the international standards, elucidating
the Group’s relevant policies and measures to promote
sustainable development:

o Strictly comply with all applicable national
environmental laws and regulations;

. Implements operational guidance in accordance
with the international standards;

o S&E department regularly attends the
announcement seminars of the local government
and implements corresponding measures in
response to policy updates;

° Environmental audit team assists in collecting
relevant data to arrange improvement and follow-up
work;

° Explores feasible green technologies to reduce

environmental impacts during operations;

° Provides regular environmental training to
employees to enhance their environmental
awareness in daily work.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Operational environment management

The Group has identified the major operational environment
footprints, which are air pollutant emissions, energy
usage, Greenhouse gases emission, water consumption,
wastewater discharge, hazardous and non-hazardous
waste production, as well as packaging materials.

Climate Change and Countermeasures

The impact of climate change on environment and
communities is an urgent and important issue. In the
materiality assessment conducted in this reporting period,
the Group’s stakeholders attach attention to climate
change. The Group has adopted various measures to
strategically address the consequences of climate change.
In this reporting period, Tsaker Chemicals analyzed and
explained the challenges and opportunities that climate
change is or will induced with reference to past experience.
Tsaker Chemicals shall strengthen its resilience of climate
change.

Both the board of directors and ESG committee of Tsaker
Chemical attach attention to climate change, the Group
have discussed and provided various suggestions, to
address the risks and opportunities brought by climate
change.

The production plant of Tsaker Chemical is in North China,
which is susceptible to drought and hot weather. Research
institutions found that extreme weather caused by climate
change will become more frequent, such as extreme
droughts and heat waves. The Group have experienced
the disasters caused by extreme weather, daily operations
have been affected, including direct economic losses
caused by production stoppage and machine damage.
The suppliers might also be affected by climate change,
leading to fluctuations in the supply chain, thereby
affecting the Group’s production operations.
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Tsaker Chemical believes that the physical risks brought
about by climate change are significant. In view of this, the
Group has formulated a five-year (2021-2025) short-term
goal with the theme of “To tackle severe pollution weather,
helping to reach carbon neutrality”. In this reporting year,
the Group reduced carbon emissions constantly, by
conducting several transformations of production intelligent
measures. For instance, real-time energy monitoring
systems for water, electricity, coal (coal consumption
and purchased coal), and natural gas has been installed
to monitor the energy usage and predict the trend of
energy consumption. Improvement of energy utilization
efficiency and production efficiency could be made, and
power consumption could be reduced, thereby reducing
greenhouse gas emissions. One of the risks brought about
by climate change is the stringent policy induced by
Government for the control of greenhouse gas emissions
from production. Customers would pay more attention to
their carbon footprint, and competitors in the industry will
upgrade their technology in response to market changes.
Tsaker Chemical has always been adhering to the
principle of environmental friendliness, strictly abiding by
all applicable laws and regulations, and has established
several internal initiatives to achieve emission reduction
and carbon reduction, as well as actively responded to
the implementation of relevant national documents to raise
awareness of the climate crisis.

Management of Air Pollutant Emissions

The major sources of Tsaker Chemical’'s air pollutant
emission are the coal from Dongguang premise, natural
gas in each premise, the incinerators that handling
hazardous waste and fuel usage for transportation. The air
pollutants emitted mainly include nitrogen oxide (“NOx”),
sulfur oxide (“SOx”), particulate matters (“PM”) and dust. In
this regard, The Group pays attention on the environmental
and healthy impact caused by the air pollutants incurred.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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The Group has formulated coal procurement guidelines
to reduce the negative impact of air pollutants, stipulating
that the related premises shall purchase low-sulfur and
relatively clean coal as fuel of boilers to lower the sulfur
oxide emission. Up to 90% of air pollutants has been
removed from emitted smoke by the denitrification,
desulfurization and dust removal facilities in each
production unit. To fulfill the commitment to air quality,
the factory is equipped with real-time flue gas air quality
monitoring equipment to ensure that the air pollutants
emitted are controlled at levels far below the emission
standards.

“Green production” is the essential principle that Tsaker
Chemical attaches great importance to and is committed
to incorporating clean energy into the production process.
In the production plant of Dongguang, coal has been
consistently replaced by natural gas and purchased steam
to reduce the air pollutant emission and impact to the
air quality. Besides, the Group takes sufficient emission
reduction measures, such as ultra-low emissions, plume
management and VOC management, to reduce the carbon
footprint in the production process. During the reporting
period, the Group retrofitted and upgraded parts of the
equipment to reduce exhaust emissions during production.
For instance, the 8T incinerator of Dongao Plant have been
upgraded. After the renovation, the NOx emission index
was reduced from below 200mg/Nm?3 to below 100mg/
Nm3, the particulate matter emission index was reduced
from below 20mg/Nm? to below 10mg/Nm?3, and the SO2
emission index was reduced from below 100mg/Nm? to
below 50mg/Nms3. For the new materials production, the
technical transformation of 15,000 tons of iron phosphate
was changed from a push-plate kiln to a rotary kiln, the
working environment was changed from open areas to fully
enclosed areas, the dust pollution is therefore reduced to
protect the environment.
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During the reporting period, the Group has set relevant
targets to reduce emission density. Factor which various
exhaust emission data usage was divided by revenue
(in RMB million) was used for comparison. The overall
pollutant discharge increased by 75% compared with last
financial year. Last year's operation was affected by the
epidemic and this year began to resume normal, resulting
in higher exhaust emissions than the previous year. The
air pollutant emission of Hebei Tsaker and Tsaker Dongao
has reduced while a newly incinerator operated for
thermal treatment in Tsaker Technology. Tsaker Chemical
endeavors to minimize the emission during the production
process through upgrading and optimizing the facilities
and technologies, as well as explore feasible emission
reduction measures to consistently reduce impacts on the
environment.
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Air Pollutant Emissions BERBEK 20212 2020
NOx emissions (tonnes) AA ) (8) 34 19
NOx emissions intensity (NOx emissions/ @AW EE (RE/LWER

M’ RMB Revenue) BEARBIA) 0.017 0.014
SOx emissions (tonnes) e by (W) 9 6
SOx emissions intensity (SOx emissions/ BREMEEREE (HRaEtmBin,/

M’ RMB Revenue) BBEAREEAN) 0.005 0.005
Dust (tonnes) FEE (W88) 5 2
Dust emissions (dust emissions/ MEHEREE (HEH R/

M’ RMB Revenue) BEAREEA) 0.002 0.002
1. Emission of various exhaust gases has decreased due 1. F2020F (45X R EBETE  WEE

to the impact of the pandemic in 2020. REEMEB TR -
2. Due to the resumption of normal operation in 2021, the 2. H2021 FRBMEIEREE  BHF
emission of various exhaust gases has increased. FERBENERPT LT -
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Air Pollutant Emissions breakdowns:

Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERERBE

Hi R E EH AR ¢

2021 2020

Emissions Emissions

per unit per unit
Emission product Emission product Percentage
(tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) Change
B E BEWEm P2 BWAE M BB WA o
Hebei Tsaker AR EE N (W8)  BERRE (md) (WE)  BEmE (WE)  HERCTPEE%
NOx emissions AEty 22.15 0.0005 16.25 0.0011 54.55
SOx emissions =kl 7] 7.24 0.0002 5.84 0.0004 50.00
Dust SR 2.23 0.0485 1.81 0.1228 60.50

2021 2020

Emissions Emissions

per unit per unit
Emission product Emission product Percentage
(tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) Change
B E BEWEm e BMEE m B M
Tsaker Dongao FERREM (Wg) HERkE (Wf) (Wg)  HEpE (ME)  HERUTFEE%
NOx emissions AEtm 1.1457 0.0157 2.6052 0.0393 60.05
SOx emissions ey 0.046 0.0006 0.0527 0.0008 25.00
Dust EEp k)| 0.0772 0.0010 0.0736 0.0011 9.09
2021 2020
Emission Emission
(tonnes) (tonnes)
Tsaker Technology EERK BEpRE (ME)  HEmE (WA)
NOx emissions REY 10.216 0.149
SOx emissions k=Rl 1.923 0.034
Dust FERLY) 2.564 0.353
2.564 0.353

1. The air pollutant emission of Hebei Tsaker and Tsaker 2021 LR - R R BN E M
Dongao of 2021 was less than that of the same period MEE2020F 2 B
last year.

2. Due to newly added incinerator for thermal treatment, HRERERIREFE—aRARKEE

the air pollutant emission of Tsaker Technology of 2021
was more than that of the same period last year.

HE20215EREEBFRESRNESF
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Improving Energy Efficiency and Reducing Carbon
Emissions

Tsaker Chemical ‘s major energy resources are electricity,
natural gas, coal and purchased steam. Greenhouse gases
management becomes core action of each sector along
with the enhancing awareness towards energy efficiency
and climate change. Tsaker Chemical take climate change
and greenhouse gas emissions into account and the Group
believes that effectively reducing energy use can reduce
carbon emissions. Consequently, the Group has set out
a 5-year energy reduction targets (from 2021 to 2025): to
reduce the energy usage intensity (energy usage/RMB
million revenue).

Tsaker Chemical shall strive to implement measures to
reduce energy usage and improve energy efficiency,
thereby reducing carbon emissions. For the production site
aspect, the Group have completed the retrofitting process
to reduce waste and greenhouse gas emissions effectively.
The Group also regularly conducts facilities inspections,
repairs, or upgrades the production facilities for better
efficiency. In addition, the Group has formulated electricity
consumption guidelines for employees to practice energy-
saving actions in their daily work in order to implement
high-efficiency electricity consumption.

Some measures include:

. Arrange power-consuming equipment for centralized
production to reduce electricity use per production
unit;

° Gradually replace older devices with efficient energy

saving facilities;

° Inspect and repair machines on a regular basis to
ensure its proper operation;

o Adjust operating hours of machinery and prohibit
idling equipment;

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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° Report electricity consumption to the environmental
audit team every month; and

o Encourage all departments to propose new
suggestions for improving energy efficiency.

The Group also incorporates sustainable elements into its
daily operations to have environmental protection practices
in the workplace. The building office of Beijing R&D
headquarters of Tsaker Chemical is particularly selected
glass wall fagade for indoor windows in order to make full
use of natural light. Conventional lighting fixtures have
been replaced with energy-saving lamps to cut down on
electricity consumption.

During the reporting period, the Group resumed normal
operations due to the stabilization of the pandemic, total
energy consumption increased compared with the same
period last year. The Group conducted several retrofitting
projects to increase energy efficiency. The comprehensive
energy consumption per unit product decreased by
21.78%, and the energy density decreased by 5.98% when
compared with 2020. For instance, 1. Tsaker Technology
plant carried out the separation and transformation of
the DMSS esterification neutralization section, adding
a stratifier to separate the water phase in the material,
saving 3 tons of steam per day, and reducing the steam
consumption and wastewater treatment costs by 175,500
per year. 2. The Tsaker Dongao plant conducted steam and
condensate thermal energy transformation project, through
the first and second phases of the toluene nitrification
plant in the factory area (about 4464t of steam saved
per year at full load), logistics tank area (about 1000t of
steam saved per year), environmental protection workshop
devices (annual saving of about 2,500t of steam) are
retrofitted with steam and condensate systems, this project
has saved about 1.5928 million in energy consumption,
reducing energy and reducing greenhouse gas emissions.
3. Dongguang Battery Material conducted 15,000 tons of
iron phosphate technical transformation for new materials
and changed the push-plate kiln into a rotary kiln. The
electricity usage is reduced from 3,000 kWh per ton to
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700 kWh and each ton of product reduced by 1,587 RMB
(electricity price is 0.69 RMB/degrees). 4. Tsaker Dong’ao
Plant carried out the first phase of toluene nitrification
unit distillation capacity improvement project,
the operating parameters and equipment of the alignment
tower in the first-phase toluene nitration and rectification
section. The annual saving of steam is 4,500 tons, and the
cost is reduced by 1,002,600 RMB. The annual saving of
electricity consumption is 682,000 kWh, and the cost is

RIR - 4 ERERWRE
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reduced by 496,600 RMB.
reduced annually by this project.

In total,

$1.5 million RMB was

Energy Consumption REVR 15 20212 2020
Electricity Consumption (MWh) B (JKEER) 73,817 42,724
Coal Consumption (tonnes) BEK (H8) 72,333 47,230
Energy Consumption of Coal (MWh) B (JKELEF) 396,353 258,802
Natural Gas Consumption (‘000 m?) KAR (FILHHK) 15,436 10,365
Energy Consumption of Natural Gas (MWh) K& (JKFEAF) 166,931 112,090
Steam Consumption (tonnes) 77 () 170,351 173,203
Energy Consumption of Steam (MWh) Z (JRELR) 132,282 134,497
Total Energy Consumption (MWh) Aﬁ RAE KRE) 769,383 548,112
Energy Intensity (total energy consumption/ §EBEZE (AR EHE

M’ RMB Revenue) BEARBRAN) 393 4,181
Comprehensive energy consumption per BALE MRS BT (WEE 2R 1)

unit product (ton standard coal/tonnes) 0.79 1.01

Energy consumption breakdown by site

B ERME N E AR E AR

202145 20204

Energy Energy

consumption consumption
per unit product per unit product Percentage
(tonnes) (tonnes) Change Nete 7
BEWEM A o B m AR
Site EHith FREEFE FAgEERE TR %
Hebei Tsaker AR % 1.718 1.962 12.46
Tsaker Technology KRB 0.483 0.678 28.71
Tsaker Dongao FRRR 0.370 0.392 5.45
Battery Material ES N R 0.574 / /

1 The energy consumption per unit product of 2021 was 1 A EEM 2021 F #2020 F B MEE

less than that of the same period last year.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A F)*
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BRI - 4 ERERHE

GHG Emissions BEREHER 2021 2020
Direct GHG Emission (tCO2¢e) EEAERBER(M_atRkgs) 148,877 97,828
Direct GHG Emission Intensity (direct GHG ERAEREINEE (EBRATRE

emission/M’ RMB Revenue) B BB AREWRA) 76 75
Indirect GHG Emission (1CO2e) RERAEREBHR (M _alnEs) 69,585 40,299
Indirect GHG Emission Intensity (indirect MEREREHNEE (BRAERE

GHG emission/M’ RMB Revenue) B B BARERA) 36 31
Total GHG Emission (tCO2e) BREREBHM(E_S{KEE) 218,462 138,127
GHG Emission Intensity (total GHGemission/ BZRASHNZE (LR=REEM

M’ RMB Revenue) BEARBKA) 112 105
1 During the pandemic outbreak, the total revenue of 1 EERRIE - 2020F EM @R AL R

2020 was less than that of the same period last year,
which led to an increase of the total energy intensity.

2 Due to the resumption of normal operation in 2021,
the total energy usage and total GHG emissions has
increased.

Water Saving and Wastewater Treatment

In the materiality assessment, stakeholders attach more
attention to water resources and wastewater treatment
related issues. The Group aware that water is a valuable
resource for the Group and its impact on production
and operations. Consequently, Tsaker Chemical has set
targets for water efficiency to reduce water intensity (water
consumption/M" RMB revenue).

To make better use of water resources, the Group has set
up rainwater storage facilities in each production plant for
cooling and irrigation. The collected rainwater and surface
water directly enter the rainwater and sewage diversion
facilities in the plant, and they are used for cooling and
irrigation after treatment. During the reporting period, the
Group reused a total of 39,190 cubic meters of water,
accounting for 3% of the overall water consumption. The
Group shall optimize facilities to enhance water efficiency
constantly. In addition, the Group has formulated guidelines
for water use in each operational step and aimed at using
water in an effective way. Water conservation initiatives
include:

TR BREERTEHLRE
# o
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. Set up rainwater collection systems for water .
consumption in the production system;

o Regularly arrange inspections by qualified .
maintenance technicians to guarantee no overflow
or leakage of machines and water pipes;

. Treat water that is used for premise cleaning with .
the use of wastewater treatment facility before
discharge as it is easily contaminated by chemicals;

o Monthly report on water usage to the environmental °
audit team;
. Use condensate evaporated from some .

manufacturing units as water for cleaning to reduce
the use of tap water;

. Actively organize water conservation activities for .
employees to raise their environmental awareness.

RIR - 4 ERERWRE

RERKRERG  AREERRRE
BRI RSRKEE

TEHRHA BB EER TS - IR
M MoK E Bm K KoK R

RREAEREIKER SEICEYS
Fo FHEFKEIERMEERIER T AT
i

5 AREREHMEERAAE

B RRER R ENFKANERM
SRR - RAME R B ROK

BERRETRRHBOANES 25
HEAKRRRER

As the water supply was mainly provided by the relevant ERKEZHMEFABIBFIRE - TR
departments of the municipal government, the Group did SEERIMEHARNE B EKREE S EBD
not encounter any problems in water supply during the EfAIfEIRE o

Reporting Period.

Water Consumption Ak 2021 2020
Water Consumption (m?) FBKE (SZFHK) 1,324,583 668,617
Water Intensity RKEE

(water consumption/M’ RMB Revenue) OkBE / BBARERA) 678 509
1. Due to the resumption of normal operation in 2021, 1. H2021FEHAMEIEEEE - EHH

water consumption has increased.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A F)*
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The two major types of wastewaters discharged by the
Group are industrial sewage and domestic wastewater.
Tsaker Chemical, as a responsible manufacturer, takes
seriously to the environmental impacts caused by
wastewater discharge. Despite obtaining the wastewater
discharge permits approved by the government, the
Group has set up wastewater discharging facilities and
online monitoring facilities to ensure complying to the local
discharge standards. During the reporting period, the
Group adopted a series of measures to reduce wastewater
discharge and optimize wastewater treatment processes
through technological transformation and adoption of
staff suggestions. For instance, Tsaker Technology plant
carried out the separation and transformation of the
DMSS esterification neutralization and added a stratifier
to separate the water phase in the material, which reduce
wastewater discharge by 1 ton per day. By using boiler for
water dedusting, wastewater can be reused and reduce
wastewater discharge.

To effectively manage water resources, the Group has set
a target to reduce wastewater discharge intensity from
2021 to 2025 (wastewater discharge/M’ RMB revenue).
The Group shall monitor the emission intensity annually
and illustrate the performance. In 2025, a summary will be
made to review the effectiveness and performance of this
5-year target.

BRI - 4 ERERHE
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Wastewater Bk 2021 2020
Wastewater quantity (m?) BEKE (SLHK) 435,595 248,581
1. Due to the resumption of normal operation in 2021, 1. Ho021 FREMBMELTEF 5

water consumption has increased.

Waste Management

The Group has been adhering the principle of “utilizing
resources wisely and reducing waste at source” and
endeavors to reduce waste from source through stipulating
waste management in operation, in the purpose of building
an eco-friendly practice. The waste incurred from the
Group are mainly industrial waste, hazardous waste and
domestic waste.
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Hazardous Waste

As a chemical manufacturer, the Group inevitably produces
hazardous wastes during operation and production, such
as industrial waste oil and sludge. The Group values the
environmental health and safety since it understands the
severe biodiversity impacts caused by hazardous waste
mishandling. Hence, Tsaker Chemical adapts a rigorous
management to ensure the aforementioned wastes are
safely treated and the risk of leakage is diminished.

In accordance with legal requirements, the Group divides
designated areas at each production unit, setting up
waterproof storage warehouses for hazardous and
dangerous waste to prevent hazardous waste leakage.
Meanwhile, it also protects the safety of employees. On top
of recruiting qualified contractors to handle the hazardous
waste, the Group has also built facilities in Dong’ao plant
to reduce waste. Incinerators were established in Tsaker
Technology production unit for managing and recycling
part of the hazardous wastes, such as waste gases, waste
liquid and waste residues.

To reduce the amount of oil used for maintenance of
machinery effectively, Dongguang production plant has
increased the inspection frequency of operating equipment
to ensure the effective operation of the facilities and reduce
the depreciation rate. In addition, cinders generated from
coal burning are collected and recycled.

Non-hazardous Waste

During the operation, the Group has produced non-
hazardous wastes such as general waste, food waste,
office wastepaper, packaging boxes, scrap iron, coal
cinder, waste plastic and waste trays. The Group actively
implements the internal waste segregation, and recycles
paper, wood, metal and plastics to practice its promise on
reducing waste from sources. During the reporting period,
the Group is committed to leading its employees to make
good use of resources and strengthen waste management.
The implementation of non-hazardous waste recycling
measures has achieved remarkable results, which have
nearly 100% recycling rate. Tsaker Chemical shall seek for
feasible waste reduction and recycling solutions constantly
and take the responsibility of environmental protection as
an enterprise. The following is the waste produced for this
reporting year:

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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BRI - 4 ERERHE

Waste =337 2021" 2020
Hazardous Waste Produced (tonnes) BEEENEGEEEY () 419 291
Hazardous Waste intensity per unit product  BEWIEREASBZREZEY (1)

(tonnes) 0.0029 0.0030
Non-hazardous Waste Produced (tonnes) BEANEEZEEY (W) 8,699 6,154
Non-hazardous Waste intensity per EWEmEEREREREZEY ()

unit product (tonnes) 0.0607 0.0631
Non-hazardous Waste Recycled (tonnes) Bk EEREEY) () 8,624 6,044
Non-hazardous Waste Percentage MEBEZEYLWE DL 99% 98%
Waste Disposal Intensity EEBEMEEEER

(waste disposal/M’ RMB Revenue) (BEEYZEEE /BEARERA) 0.21 0.22
Non-hazardous Waste Disposal Intensity REEZVMEEETE

(waste disposal/M’ RMB Revenue) (BEEYEEE /BEARERA) 0.04 0.08
1. Due to the resumption of normal operation in 2021, 1. FHo021 FEERMMEETENE &

production of waste has increased while the intensity of
hazardous Waste and non- hazardous waste has reduced.

In the Reporting Period, the Group endeavors to make
a good use of resources and strengthen the waste
management with all the staff. Therefore, the performance
on waste was improved, the non-hazardous waste
recycling rate has increased by 1% which almost recycled
all the generated non-hazardous wastes. The Group will
continuously look for other feasible recycling methods to
bear more environmental responsibilities.

Packaging materials

While the Group highly emphases on eco-friendly and safe
packaging materials choosing, the requirements from the
clients and the industry and the sturdiness of materials are
also important considerations. The former helps reducing the
impacts on environmental and human health, the latter helps
preventing the chemical leakage effectively. The Group
seeks for different packaging materials to meet the needs.

The Group’s Dongguang plant mainly uses paper-
based materials, plastics, wood and rattan as packaging
materials. In addition, the Group provides reusable
packaging materials for short-distance transportation within
the plant. For instance, the production units have reused
a total of 3,336 iron drums carrying its chemical product
DMAS during the reporting period, thereby avoiding
wastage of resources as well as waste generation.
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RIR - 4 ERERWRE

Packaging Material MR 2021 2020
Total Packaging Material (tonnes) BEMEEE (HE) 1,807 1125
Amount of Recycled and Bl K 51 FB R B EEAT R Bk E (B )

Reused Package Material (tonnes) 73 31
Recycled and Reused Percentage B & EAE DL 4% 3%
PEOPLE-ORIENTED OPERATION 6. BIRFTHEERN
Employment and Labor Policies 6.1. EERHEIBR

HREEEME  MELFXNEIRASE

Dedicated employees are the most important asset of
Tsaker Chemical. The Group is committed to ensuring fair
practices, promoting a harmonious and inclusive working
environment, as well as providing employees with the
opportunities for continuous learning and development.
To meet employees’ growing expectations and create a
sense of belonging in the workplace, the Group strives
for continuous improvement in various aspects, including
employee benefits and activities. Besides, the Group
also brings positive impacts to the society in the hope of
building a better community.

Human Resource Data

The Group has complied with national laws and regulations
relating to employment and has formulated a human
resources system which clarifies policies such as talent
recruitment, promotion,
and labour contracts. Tsaker Chemical adopts a fair and
impartial talent recruitment and promotion mechanism
and strives to ensure fair employment and treatment of
employees. The Group recruits and promotes employees
based on the employees’ suitability for the position, their
abilities and the current and future development of the
Group. To support this practice, the Group has established
standard procedures which appoint the Human Resources
(“HR”) department and the heads of various departments
to review employees’ performance appraisals and adjust
remuneration packages accordingly.

remuneration, benefits, training,

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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The Group is also committed to establishing a harmonious,
inclusive and respectful working environment, prohibiting
any forms of discriminatory acts, and providing equal
opportunities for employees and candidates. Below is an
overview of the employees at each of the Group’s sites:

Number of Employees

BRI - 4 ERERHE

AEBTBRDER—EMHE LB TER
%o ZIEEMAER - BRI FRBTT
R REBEIMEZRERHTERS -
TRASESEMHES R -

% of Employees

EEAH EEBES

Employee Category“’ EEER 2021 2020 2021 2020
Male 3 1,117 964 72% 75%
Female z 441 315 28% 25%
Management EIEE 118 83 8% 6%
Senior TE IR 165 117 10% 9%
Junior MFRET 1,275 1,079 82% 85%
18-30 years old 18-30%% 146 142 9% 1%
31-50 years old 31-50%% 1,203 1,022 77% 80%
51 years old or above 513k A E 209 115 14% 9%
Beijing iy 32 21 2% 2%
Hebei mak 1,332 1,094 85% 85%
Shandong iz 155 157 10% 12%
Other Hth 39 7 3% 1%
Total BAH 1,558 1,279

Note 1:The employment data has included the production sites
only.

The Group places high emphasis on the management of
talents. Apart from recruiting talents through a fair and
impartial talent recruitment and promotion mechanism,
the Group spares no effort to retain talents. To reward
employees for their dedication to the company and
enhance their sense of belonging, the Group offers
employees competitive remuneration package and welfare,
including overtime pay, five insurance and one housing
fund, holiday benefits, education allowances, certificate
allowances, seniority allowances, employee activities and
various vacations. The HR department is responsible for
the management of talents, and endeavors to keep the
turnover rate at a similar level or even lower.
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RIR - 4 ERERWRE

Turnover™®’ kT 2021 2020
Overall employee turnover rate of the Group AEBERBETRAE 10% 6%
By geographical region =i @ E o

Mainland China B A 10% 6%
Hong Kong or Other Region AL HMM R N/A N/A
By gender EIERIE S

Male Es 14% 7%
Female z 8% 5%
By age REWRE D

18-30 years old 18-307% 50% 18%
31-50 years old 31-507% 9% 4%
51 years old or above 513 A E 4% 3%

Note 1:The employment data has included the production sites
only.

Employee’s Welfare Protection

The Group has formulated a set of policies and regulations
to safeguard employees’ rights, for example the policies
that protect employees from discrimination, harassment or
defamation in the workplace, and ensure fair treatment of
employees.

The Group's employment and labor policies strictly comply
with relevant laws and regulations, resolutely curbing the
use of child and forced labor. Meanwhile, it ensures that
labor practices along the Group’s supply chain respect
human rights as well. The Group has appointed the HR
department to implement relevant labor policies and
procedures, such as requiring applicants to provide valid
identification documents as to ensure they can be legally
hired. In case of misuse of child labor, the Group will
immediately terminate the employment contract and assist
him/her in returning to school.

The Group also attaches great importance to work-life
balance of employees to ensure that employees enjoy a
reasonable number of working hours. For any forced labor-
related behaviors, the HR department will immediately
terminate. The Group was not aware of any cases involving
child or forced labor during the Reporting Period.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Emphasis on Talent Development

Tsaker Chemical believes that the continuous learning
can make a significant contribution. Therefore, the Group
has provided various training and further education
opportunities to employees to help them enhance
themselves and develop their interest. The Group has
also encouraged employees to apply the knowledge
they have learned to the workplace. There were various
types of training for employees, ranging from induction
training, safety awareness training, technical training, and
specialized technology of chemical production units. The
Group will provide relevant training according to the needs
of employees’ positions and functions to match the future
development of the Group.

The Group adheres to the principle of “demand-based
training” and has appointed the HR department to conduct
a survey comprehensively assessing staff training needs at
the end of the year. In support of continuous improvement
of the overall professional level, the HR department
evaluates and updates the training contents of each
department and employees. Besides, awareness of S&E is
expected to be gradually incorporated into daily production
work of employees.

6.2.
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The Group carries out a mentoring scheme that assigning
senior employees to offer guidance to new staffs and
explain the daily duties to help them better adapt to the
new working environment. To articulate the communication
and knowledge exchange, the Group also carries out
an “In-house Lecturer” program, inviting seasoned staff
from various departments to share their precious working
experience and knowledge.

RIR - 4 ERERWRE

FEREBHTHERHETABRNEI - ##
RIMB T RGN - 2 ERBNR
EERERFENTEREYHEA EAE - K
SEEBEITIMSEI K RHFERET
EFEEREDHABRET  BEHETE
TRE IR P BBE NGB FEFT THEIRIE - B9
AEE T NERELD] 518 - BETRE
FIMBTHZE TIRER  RERFZENR
MEOEE BRI E T A o

Overall Training B 2021 2020
Topics R 34 43
Total hours of topics R B 352 306
Average Training Hours % of employee
TR IR ZIfEEESL
Category E<J) 2021 2020 2021 2020
Male 3 32 46 74% 78%
Female @ 30 35 26% 22%
Management EIRfE 8 8 4% 6%
Senior FE MR 18 27 10% 1%
Junior MFEL 35 47 86% 83%
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Business Integrity

The Group complies with all applicable laws and
regulations. The employee handbook has covered the
prevention of bribery, solicitation and acceptance of
benefits or gifts, conflicts of interest, and forgery of
documents has been covered in the employee handbook.
The procedures and guidelines for handling related issues
are also clearly set out to ensure that the Group handles
these issues in a appropriate manner.

The Group also requires employees to abide by the
relevant business ethics in the workplace and avoid any
conflict of interest at work.

The Group has also established a reporting mechanism for
employees to report or complain about any illegal acts that
are suspected of fraud, bribery or money laundering. If a
suspicious case is received, the Group shall promptly refer
to the internal audit department and the HR department.
If the case is substantiated, the Group shall have the
right to call the relevant persons involved into account via
legal channels and take appropriate sanctions. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has provided training to
directors and the relevant employees on anti-corruption
practices. The Group was an outstanding enterprise for
party-building work in Cangzhou City. The Party General
Branch Committee has established a special disciplinary
inspection committee member who participates in
the county’s disciplinary inspection work meeting of
Dongguang County every month. To accept the guidance
of superiors and conduct talks with party members, the
Group has reminded that the employees always abide by
the party discipline and state laws. During the Reporting
Period, there were no legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group and its employees.

Building a Harmonious Working Environment

Tsaker Chemical truly believes that the caring for the well-
being of employees is the key element to unite the staff. To
enhance the sense of belonging to the company, the Group
endeavors to cultivate an ideal and harmonious workplace,
as well as organizes diverse team building activities to form
stronger bondings among employees beyond developing
personal interest.

6.3.

6.4.

RIR - HERERRE

FRe%
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Team Building Activities

To celebrate the 100th anniversary of the founding of the
Communist Party of China and enhance staff's enthusiasm
for sports and guide them to participate in exercise
actively. Tsaker Chemical organized work-break exercises
in the form of broadcast gymnastics, 25 employees took an
active part in the event.

ﬁ%%r BRI MBS
1-- . .‘ﬁ1 i A Ay {,:_l.?rc_f g A f,

ey,

1

The group organized “Sing a folk song to the Communist
Party of China” and “Modern Peking Opera Fellowship
concert”, to celebrate the 100th anniversary of the founding
of the Party, enrich the cultural life of the enterprise and
promote the Chinese opera art.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*

RIR - 4 ERERWRE

E2EE

BEMPEEEERZI100FF - #— 51|
EFRBSRIHSRERLE NITIE S8BT
BIBIRGR - BBEL2E2REFHEG - 54
ARBE  UEREBHAMI5ME THEKR2 N
TIHRBETES) -

Broadcast Gymnastics Competition

(BRI THBLE)

RENZEI00AF  GECEXEAETE
AR EEH R - £ ?ﬁH%iMﬁA
BRI RIRARBEEEES] -

Sing a Folk Song to the Party

(B I EEE)



Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HLERERBE

To celebrate the 100th anniversary of the Party, Tsaker BlEE-—GRATER  ¥REEBAEN
Chemical co-organized the modern Peking Opera (B ILREER | BRRBIBHEEES -
fellowship concert “Sing a Folk Song to the Party”. The =& - BRES )  EITRMEZAMIA AR
artists sang praises with their passionate hearts. Stay true OB ET DEMER o AP0 - EEE
to our original aspiration and keep our mission firmly in o BEITEMAEKLH  IRESRMHL
mind, and pass on the unfailing red classics, inspiring & BEEEMBETBLEZENRKXE MR
our hearts. The concert ended in wishing the Communist e NBEANEEKEEEERTLE
Party of China a more brilliant tomorrow and the great R e

motherland a prosperous and strong country forever.

Outdoor Reading Activities

(FINEES)
In order to encourage employees’ families to continue to REEE IRERENE  2ENE UK
read, learn and grow, and care for the community, the AEdE  SERTPINESEFEYEE
Group held outdoor reading activities to provide convenient AREBRDE @  RERE - BBETRRAR
conditions for employees and their families to read. HTEENER G -

Everyone actively shared and listened carefully.

Staff Sports Meeting

(BTE®He)
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Tsaker Chemical held staff sports meeting to strengthen
the physical and mental health of employees, uphold the
concept of “positive, optimistic, sunny and healthy,” with
the theme of “I exercise,| am happy, | grow up”. The Group
designed kinds of competition items, everyone involved
was active and energetic.

The employees of Tsaker Chemical participated in the
green cycling activity organized by Dongguang County
Federation of Trade Unions, which is of great significance
to enhance employees’ awareness of environmental
protection and promote the concept of green life.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited 2 &Z{t 2 &£ B AR QA"

RIR - 4 ERERWRE

FEEESERBTESHSUMBETH LR
B RFFTEGA EBERENIED - AT
BYPRREUNE | ATE R TRANKL
BIRE - BIMEHem  RR2HE  HE
T KA EAR

Green Cycling Activity

(ER{T/EE)
FEEBIZNTRABATSHABNEER

TEE - WWRORBIERBTRESE 54
BERERRESAEERER -

2021 Annual Marketing Skills Competition

(2021 FEEHIFRERE)
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In order to improve the marketing skill level and practical
working ability of employees of the Group, motivate
employees to strive to improve their professional skills, and
form a good atmosphere of “comparing, learning, catching
up, helping and exceeding”. The Group held the 2021
Annual Marketing Skills Competition for all employees.
This event provided a platform for employees to learn and
enrich their theoretical and practical knowledge.

To strengthen the cohesion of the employees, improve their
work enthusiasm, enrich the corporate cultural life, and create
a positive, healthy and civilized corporate cultural atmosphere,
the Group has arranged the Spring Festival art show to give the
employees a stage to show their talent, so that everyone gathered
happily to sum up the past and look forward to the future.

Employees’ Welfare

To fully implement the concept of “common prosperity, start
the employee first” by President Xi, the Group is committed to
achieve the principle of benefiting the families of employees
in need. The committee member of Tsaker Dongguang has
conducted a comprehensive survey for understanding the
difficulties of our employees. Refer to the policies of Dongying
City and Dongguang County Federation of Trade Unions, the
Group help our employees and their family members, who
have accidental injuries, major diseases, etc, to obtain the
various types of compensation, insurance payment and social
assistance. The Group has formulated corresponding social
policies. In addition to various social policies, the Group
has paid an additional social insurance for the employees
in difficulty and their families. The Labor Union of Tsaker
has concerned to the employees who are still in difficulty
after obtaining compensation, compensation, and insurance
payment. The Group has taken the initiative to coordinate and
help them, enhancing the loyalty of employee.

BRI - 4 ERERHE

RESEEZAFBIT L HRKFEER
TiEee  BBEIBNIRABCHFER
BRI -2 8 8B BINRER
cEEHMEEE TR T 20215 EEH
REEAE  BER2NEHES  KETRMH
TR BE2H ZEaCHBRN
BB

(Spring Festival Art Show)

(FrEXEER)

RIREEXBTHRESD REETITER
B SELEXLAE  EEREALE - 2R
NEAMBEEAE - SEENR T HEXRE
B RBEI—EARTTENEE  BAREER
—E FORENGEBRE  BRERKE -

BT

AREEEMEREREL [ HAEH K FEH
T lImigEEE BERAIME - BEX
NELEERHEBIRENRA BYEETL
EREIENMEFLEZL  PREABIESR
ZEERELEHRE  T§Z8ERN -
HEEHNEEABIRET —A2E %
SHRASEE - BRREE - BH - TH
BIRNHREERHARE 2BEZMER
RGBT eRBEBTERKBE - BERARAR
FKEKEREIMGE  BEXNERSE - A7
HIEAENERECR - EEBREBRRNR
B NAARESR T RREBEINIMN— I8
2RE FARELEMANHEBRIRENS
EoHRBIRENBIRE  S@I1g®
EERETHEE - HRNEEREE - @E -
REBEANEEARBNBT SETEEXH)
EITHFARME L - BT A KIS -

I
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In hopes of building the sense of belonging and
happiness, the Group has organized comfort events to
the underprivileged staff in the Reporting Period. The
events can also encourage the morale of staff. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has donated $500 and
$1,000 to the underprivileged staff respectively. The total
amount of donation was $18,500. Additionally, the Group
has arranged the event named “One Day Donation for
Employees’ Mutual Aid” which the donations directly help
solving the encountering problems and adversities of the
underprivileged staff. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has donated $14,470 to help 23 of underprivileged
staff. A total of 444 people participated in the event.

During the epidemic, the Group has recognized that
the health of employees and the safety of the working
environment were increasingly important. The Group also
understands the importance of maintaining the health
of the workplace and employees, so it is committed to
creating a safe and reliable working environment to ensure
the safety of employees at work. In addition to the health
of employees, the Group has ensured that staff can enjoy
nutritionally balanced and delicious meals by providing
fresh and quarantined ingredients.

Tsaker Chemical for cares the health of its employees. The
Group provides bicycles and encourage employees to use
them, in order to train their fitness as well as reduce the
vehicles fuel and carbon emission.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited 2 &Z{t 2 &£ B AR QA"
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BN FEREER - AEEAD R RNE R
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TREEMAE TREBITE - SEMFIA
WETERS  EBRREIMEREZI - X
FRE B O AR R AR

showing love and concern

(R - ’H)

showing love and concern

(R - BH)
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CARING FOR COMMUNITY

Tsaker Chemical has committed to care about the health of
employees and extended it to the welfare on surrounding
community. The Group encourages its employees to
donated money for supporting anti-pandemic work. To
practices the promise of bearing social obligations, the
Group has also taken up the communication responsibilities
in certain cities.

LOOKING FORWARD

Looking Forward, Tsaker Chemical will continuously
stand on the principle of “Building sustainable production
for the world” and integrate green technology into
operations, production and product development. The
Group will strengthen energy conservation and carbon
emission management, implement carbon reduction
synergies, and achieve carbon neutrality actions. On the
other hand, the Group will actively build communities to
achieve comprehensive poverty alleviation to implement
“moderately prosperous society in all respects”.

BRI - 4 ERERHE

AUt E

FEETEBAOEINGLREE  FER
RitRrEL - ZBEEEE 5 HBREHZX
THEEE ERHFBEFHENERT A%
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RIE - HERERBE

9. HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 9. BIX(RE - t2RERBEES)

&
Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section
EE BREWEE Hik B EH
SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT AR
A1: EMISSIONS
BE A1: BB
A1 General (a) the policies; and (a) 5.2 Environmental Protection
Disclosure B 5.2 IRIRIRE
—RIFE (b) compliance (b) There was no non-compliance noticed
HEEENER - during the Reporting Period.
HERAREEETHRBNER LR
Bl WRERIBWEREREN
Al 1 The types of emissions and respective 5.2 Environmental Protection
emissions data 5.2 RIFIRE
BEp I iE SR R AR HE B -
Al.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect 5.2 Environmental Protection
(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions 5.2 IRIRIRE
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BE(BE )AEREEEE 2)RERE
PER(AME BB A REBE BN THRE
(Blgn - FELES - GIERKN) °
Al1.3 Total hazardous waste produced 5.2 Environmental Protection
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 5.2 IRIERE
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FIEABEEEYBE (LAEEE) R (iE
B)EE(WMAGERE B - BERETE) °
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced 5.2 Environmental Protection

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 5.2 IRIRIRE
intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).
FEABRESEEMHEE(UNETE) R (WE
BEE(WMAGES B - BIEREE) °
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KPI
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Description
i

Description of emissions target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them

MM PTRT LB E B IR R AESIELER
TRPTERERE) P58 -

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
MR EELESTEEMNG % - BE
BRRKRREREL B IRTERIE TR -

A2: USE OF RESOURCES
BmE A2 : EREA

A2

General
Disclosure
— IR R
A2 1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Policies

R

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or ail) in total (kWh in * 000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BEAE S MERE R, SRHEER(INE -
RIOm)EREE(ATETREASE) REE
(MMABESEMN - BIERMHH)
Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BRKENREE(WABES BN - §IA:
MEEtE) o

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

et gE IR AR AT Bl R FTIS AU R »
Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

A SREGE A KR Al B ERIfERE - AR
RARKSERETEI RFTERR

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

SR PR B R B 48 2 (DARERT 5 ) I
(WER)BEEEMEE -

o

BRI - 4 ERERHE

Statement/Section

BH EH

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIGIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 RIFIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 BRI IRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIBIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIFRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE
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Aspect
BmE

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description
it

A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

EE A3 RERKAER

A3 General

Disclosure
—R 5=
A3. 1

A4: CLIMATE CHANGE
B A4 : RIRE

A4 General

Disclosure
—IR =
A4.1

B1: EMPLOYMENT
fEE B1: &8

B1 General

Disclosure

—RBEE

B1.2

80

Policies

R

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

MM EBEBHIRIBRRANE RN EKRF
ZRERNEREULENITE o

Policies

R

Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.
MM B RN AR BT AELETENS
ARRIFEASZE - RELHTH -

the policies
BR
compliance

REAENER

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region.

RILR - BEEE - FiRER b EE S
BE B EL -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

RITR - FieiER Kb E B D HE SR
Lh & o

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*

RIR - 4 ERERWRE

Statement/Section

By EH

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRHE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIFRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

B Sociology
B.&4&

Employment and Labor Policies

6.1 EB R4 THUE

There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
HRERARE BB THRANER LR
Bl WRFERBWEREREN

6.1 Employment and Labor Policies
EERSITHR

6.1 Employment and Labor Policies

TRE NS THER



Aspect KPI

Em

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

BMEEMESR #Hil

B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

[EH B2 : REREZE

B2 General
Disclosure

—RRE

B2.1

B22

B2.3

(a) the policies
R
(b) compliance

MREARIOER -

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the reporting year.
BE-F(BREERFE)FEFAITHHA
B o

Lost days due to work injury.
RIGEEAIERS -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

R PTER A B SR R B e 24 - A
HERITRERE -

B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

[BE B3 : BERIEI

B3 General
Disclosure
—R 5=
B3.1

B3.2

Policies

R

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management)..
ZURRESHEAN(INERERE  PRE
BEZ)EINZIEERDL °

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category

RIERIREERFNED  BREBTHE
ey FIFRF L -

BRI - 4 ERERHE

Statement/Section

By EH

(a) Safety Management.
51 X2 E]

(b) There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
WEHANREEETHEBEERE IR
Bl - WREBRARMEREREMF

5.1 Safety Management

ZEER

5.1 Safety Management
ZEER
5.1 Safety Management

LEER

6.2 Emphasis on Talent Development
ERATIER

All employees of the Group are required to
undergo regular trainings
REBEA 8 THAETE RGN

6.2 Emphasis on Talent Development

BERAAEE
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Description

BMREMESR #Hil

B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

[BE B4 : T8
B4 General
Disclosure

—RRE

B4.1

B4.2

(a) the policies
R
(b) compliance

MREARIOER -

Description of measures to review

employment practices to avoid child and

forced labour.

g TR IS B B A HE hE DA B S 2 T 58
HET o

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.

MM BT ER B R ER A BB PR
5

B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

BT B5 : ftHEHEEE

B5 General
Disclosure
—R =
B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

Policies

BUR

Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

miRESNHEMEE -

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are

being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Rl BB EERNED - mENTE
BEMNNHERHE URABENMHR
TRERTE -

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

2L 75 8 38 714 P 8 A (A1 5R B O 3R 0% oAt
SEBOES - ARBRRITRERTE -
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RIR - 4 ERERWRE

Statement/Section

By EH

Employment and Labor Policies

6.1 fEMB N5 THER

There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
WEBHARNEE B THRBANER MR
Bl - WRFERBHERNEREN

6.1 Employment and Labor Policies

B 2 TR

6.1 Employment and Labor Policies :

RE NS THR

4.1 Supply Chain Management

s E 12

4.1 Supply Chain Management

HpEgEEE

4.1 Supply Chain Management

HrEEER

4.1 Supply Chain Management

HEE R



Aspect
BmE

KPI
CE e vt d
B5.4
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Description
i

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products

and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

M ERERERSEEZARRER X
PRAEIIED] - LARARREIT RERIE -

B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
[EE B6: EmE

B6

General
Disclosure

—RRE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

(a) the policies
R
(b) Compliance

MREARIOER -

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons. B & ok B B X E B2+
R 2 REREHMERDKO B
Number of products and service-related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

RN Em LR HIFEE U R EH
Tk e

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

et B R IRE B ERBRENED -
Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures

il E S REREREMERERF o
Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

U8 B & BURRE RALBEE - URAE
BT REER T -

BRI - 4 ERERHE

Statement/Section
BH EH

4.1 Supply Chain Management
HrEEER

(a) Quality Control and Fulfilling Product
Responsibility;
42 MEEEN 43 BITEREML

(b) There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
s B AR S S ST ARRA AR R
Bl - MR B EEENEREN

4.3 Fulfilling Product Responsibility

BITEMEE

4.3 Fulfilling Product Responsibility
BITEmMEE

4.4 Protecting Intellectual Property Rights
IRAE M ERE

4.2 Quality Control
BEEH

4.5 Safeguarding Customer Privacy
RIEZPFALE
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Aspect KPI
=] BRERIES
B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
[B®E B7 : RESS
B7 General
Disclosure
—R 5=
B7.1
B7.2
B7.3

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

i g

(a) the policies
R

(b) compliance

MREARIOER -

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERBALETASHEEREIEE
HEONETHRARRMNEE RFDRER -
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
2L 77 80 4 B S R ERAR - DA RARRE AT
NEERTE -

Description of anti-corruption training

provided to directors and staff.
MmESR RS TRMHNRESE -

B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

[EHE B8 : HERE

B8 General

Disclosure
— R EE
B8. 1

Bs.2

84

Policies

BUR

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HIEREE(WHE  BHEEH  HIE
koo 2B b - 8BA) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or

time) to the focus area.
EEIHBEMEHAER(MEEARHE) -

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*

RIR - 4 ERERWRE

Statement/Section

By EH

Business Integrity

6.3 BB X

There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
WEHARNEE B THRANER MR
Bl - WREBRARBEREREH

6.3 Business Integrity

BRRME 2

6.3 Business Integrity
BRRME

6.3 Business Integrity
BRRNE

6.5 Caring for Community
BELR

6.5 Caring for Community
iR

6.5 Caring for Community
BEtR



Directors and Senior Management

As at the date of this annual report, the biographical details of the
Directors and senior management are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. GE Yi (former name: GE Yuanyuan), aged 40, is an
executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman
of our Company, responsible for overall business strategy and
major business decisions of our Group. Mr. Ge joined us in
February 2007 and was promoted to vice-president and president
in December 2011 and August 2012, respectively. Mr. Ge is also
the chairman of the board of directors of Hebei Tsaker.

Mr. Ge obtained a master’'s degree in International Business
Management from Middlesex University in the United Kingdom in
February 2007 and completed studies in chemical engineering
from Tianjin University in the PRC in July 2004.

The discloseable interests of Mr. Ge in the Shares and underlying
Shares under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Sharers and Debentures”
under the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

Mr. BAI Kun, aged 45, is an executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and Joint Company Secretary,
being responsible for the financial operations of the Group. Mr.
Bai has been an executive Director since 25 August 2016. Mr.
Bai joined the Group in September 2014 as the Chief Financial
Officer, and was appointed as a joint company secretary on 11
December 2020. Mr. Bai is also the sole director of Tsaker Hong
Kong. He has been an independent non-executive director of
Archosaur Games Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9990) since September 2021. Mr. Bai has extensive
experience in accounting and financial management. His work
experience includes acting as manager for the Tianjin branch of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (EFEXKERREFREHABR AT KR
5 FT) from September 2002 to February 2010 and the financial
controller of Tianjin Walkman Biomaterial Co., Ltd. from February
2010 to August 2014. Mr. Bai obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
Technoeconomics in July 1999 from Tianjin University and a
master’s degree in Technoeconomics and Management in March
2002. Mr. Bai has been a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since June 2010.

EENEREER

RAFERENEH  E2RaRERENEREN
™~

BE

HITES
RXRKEE(EAL  Xti) 4057 BAARAIEH
TEE TRERRER BELASENEREER
RERETBEBRR - XKAERZZEZLF_AM
ARRQR - TR RN =—E——F+ AR —=
FNABREHABRAE KRBT - XKEEMBTILE
REZGEF o

REER - ZZBALF A RBEREMAZES
HRTHERELSM - YR-_ZETWNFEATK
PERERBMEBTRRNEE -

XAEERE D RAERROFHEEREESRBERK
BIEXVEGEX AT RBE 2 REHNAFRZEEE
BEPEZRRSTHRABRKD  HEKRN RE
REREANEEIAR ] 6 -

BHEXE 455 BARRHTES  BFVBE
FRBMEARWE  ABEASENUBEEES - O
SEHER-ZE—XRENA+THBREERHITES -
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Ms. ZHANG Nan, aged 39, has been an executive Director since
10 January 2019. Ms. Zhang has been the director of human
resources and the director of strategic development of the Group
since January 2013, and is responsible for the Group’'s human
resources management, industry research, development planning,
investment project research and overseeing, monitoring and
implementing the internal controls of the Group to ensure the
Company’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
including the Listing Rules. She has been serving as the deputy
general manager of the Group since August 2018. Her work
experience includes serving as the human resources manager
of Beijing Touqu Technology Co., Ltd. (It RIEEBEIHER AR
from August 2008 to July 2010. She was a director of human
resources of Chexun Internet Co., Ltd. (BB B MM ER A A)
from September 2010 to January 2013. Ms. Zhang graduated from
Inner Mongolia University of Finance and Economics in July 2007,
majoring in business administration.

Non-executive Director

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent, aged 67,
Director since April 2015. He is responsible for providing
advice on corporate governance and internal control matters.
He has been a member of the advisory board of Ocean Equity
Partners Fund L.P. (the entity which controls Wider Pacific) since
September 2012. Mr.
and vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private
Equity Association. In 2000, he founded Investel Asia, a venture
capital and private equity firm and served as its managing
director from January 2004 to December 2006. He was the chief
executive officer of Newcom LLC from January 2007 to September
2008. Prior to joining our Group in April 2015, Mr.
served various positions within the BCE Inc. group, the largest
communications company in Canada, including Bell Canada, Bell
Ardis and Tata Cellular, for approximately 16 years of his career.
Mr. Fontaine has also been acting as a non-executive director of
D&G Technology Holding Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1301) since August 2016 and as
an independent director of China Lending Corporation, a company
listed on NASDAQ (ticker: CLDC) from July 2016 to December
2017.

is a non-executive

Fontaine serves as an executive director

Fontaine
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Fontaine obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Sherbrooke in Canada in
June 1979. He has been a member of the Order of Engineers of
Québec since January 1980.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, aged 56, is an independent
non-executive Director since March 2015, being responsible for
overseeing the management of our Group independently. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Ho served as a managing director of
Munsun Asset Management (Asia) Ltd. between January 2014
and March 2015. From November 2013 to December 2019, Mr.
Ho became an independent non-executive director of TK Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283) and an independent
non-executive director of BBI Life Sciences Corporation (stock
code: 1035) from October 2014 to June 2020. From August 2015
to August 2018, Mr. Ho became the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. (stock
code: 2869). Mr. Ho has served as the Investment consultant of
Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. since August 2018. Mr. Ho
previously worked in various international financial institutions,
such as a senior research analyst of Credit Lyonnais Securities
(Asia) Limited from September 1996 to February 1999, and a vice
president in the Research Department of Institutional Equities, Asia
Pacific Department of JP Morgan from February 1999 to October
2004. Mr. Ho served various positions in HSBC, such as the Head
of China Value and Growth Research in CIBM Research Asia of
HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited in September 2004, Head of China
Research of HSBC (Securities Business) Beijing Representative
Office in June 2008, and Hong Kong China equity sales director
of HSBC in January 2011.

Mr. Ho obtained a master’'s degree in Commerce, specialising
in Finance, from the University of New South Wales in Australia
in April 1991, and a bachelor's degree in Economics from the
University of Sydney in Australia in May 1988. He was awarded as
Chartered Financial Analyst by the Institute of Chartered Financial
Analysts in September 1998, and has been a CFA charter holder
and a member of the Association for Investment Management and
Research since January 1999.
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Mr. ZHU Lin (former name: ZHU Xiaolin), aged 48, is an
independent non-executive Director since March 2015, being
responsible for overseeing the management of our Group
independently. Mr. Zhu is also a partner of Beijing Legendhouse
CPAs (IbFBEE5tAIEAFT) and a director of Beijing Run Qin
Consulting Co., Ltd. (It E#EFHAAER2A7A]). Since November
2020, Mr. Zhu has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of Sino-Ocean Service Holding Limited (3&¥ R
fEEBRAF]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 6677). Since October 2020, Mr. Zhu has been serving
as a director of Jiangsu Changshu Automotive Trim Group
Co., Ltd. (I&BRAEERMNBEMR LA, formerly known as
Changshu Automotive Trim Co., Ltd. (B#M/REMEFRHERA
7]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603035). Since June 2020, Mr. Zhu has been serving as
an independent non-executive director of Archosaur Games Inc.
(1HBEIREEBR/AF]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9990). Mr. Zhu has been a non-executive director of
Beijing Chexun Internet Company Limited (It REFEBERMN B
fR A 7)), a company whose shares are quoted on the NEEQ in the
PRC, from July 2016 to April 2021. Prior to joining our Group in
March 2015, Mr. Zhu was a senior manager at the mergers and
acquisitions department of PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (Beijing Branch) (E#EAGEZACRINAR
NAIERDAF]) from October 2003 to November 2005. Mr. Zhu
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Overseas Financial Accounting
(&5t RINAB B2 EPI1E) from Central Institute of Finance and
Banking (currently known as Central University of Finance and
Economics) in the PRC in June 1995. Mr. Zhu has been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
February 2000.

Mr. YU Miao, aged 45, is an independent non-executive
Director since March 2015, being responsible for overseeing
the management of our Group independently. Mr. Yu is also a
partner of Global Law Office. Mr. Yu has been a non-executive
director of Beijing Chexun Internet Company Limited (1t REzE
#MRS Y BPR A R]), a company whose shares are quoted on the
NEEQ in the PRC, from July 2016 to April 2021. Prior to joining
our Group in March 2015, Mr. Yu was a partner of Global Law
Office from March 2006 to June 2010, and subsequently a partner
of Norton Rose (Asia) LLP from June 2010 to June 2011. Mr. Yu
returned to Global Law Office as a partner in July 2011 and has
been a partner there since then. Mr. Yu obtained a postgraduate
diploma in International Law from The University of Nottingham in
the United Kingdom in December 2001, and a bachelor’s degree
in Economic Law from Heilongjiang University in the PRC in July
1999. Mr. Yu was qualified as a lawyer in the PRC in March 2000.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chairman of our Company. For details about Mr. Ge's
background, see “Directors” under this section.

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer
and Joint Company Secretary of our Company. For details about
Mr. Bai's background, see “Directors” under this section.

Ms. ZHANG Nan is an executive Director of our Company. For
details about Ms. Zhang's background, see “Directors” under this
section.

Mr. SHI Qiang, aged 66, is the chief engineer of our Company,
being responsible for the strategic development of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group in April 2004, Mr. Shi worked in the
Chemical Research Institute of Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region
(AEH BARICTHIZEBR) (the “Research Institute”) from January
1986 to March 2004 and served various positions, including the
director of the design office of the Research Institute. Before that,
Mr. Shi worked at the Inner Mongolia Yellow River Construction
Bureau Share Limited Corporation (AE&H & TEBRMHERA
Al) (formerly known as “Inner Mongolia Yellow River Construction
Bureau” (RZ & A T D) prior to its reform in 2000), a provider
of hydropower engineering services in Inner Mongolia, the PRC,
from January 1982 to December 1985. Mr. Shi has approximately
33 years of experience in the chemical industry. Mr. Shi joined
our Group in April 2004 and has served various positions in
our Group. Mr. Shi obtained a bachelor's degree in chemical
engineering from Tianjin University in May 1982. In August 1994,
Mr. Shi was awarded the title of “Senior Engineer” (&4 Ti2R0) by
the Office of Leading Group for Professional Title Reform of the
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region (A& B4R BB ELEE /)
#3¥ A=), and in October 2012, Mr. Shi was awarded the title of
JREIEAD) by the Development and Reform
Commission of Hebei Province, the PRC.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer
and Joint Company Secretary of our Company. For details about
Mr. Bai's background, see “Directors” under this section.

Ms. NG Ka Man has been appointed as the Joint Company
Secretary with effect from 25 March 2022. Ms. Ng is a manager
of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong Kong Limited
and is responsible for the provision of corporate secretarial
and compliance services to listed company clients. She has
over 15 years of experience in the company secretarial field.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) in the United Kingdom.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2EBHER A F)*
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The Board hereby announces the Directors’ Report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND LISTING

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands on 29 October 2014. The Shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange since 3 July 2015.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
dye intermediates, agricultural chemical intermediates, pigment
intermediates and battery materials. Analysis on the principal
business of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 150 and 151 of this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend
of RMB0.068 per ordinary Share subject to the Shareholders’
approval at the AGM. Together with the interim dividend of
RMBO0.039 per ordinary Share for the six months ended 30 June
2021, the dividends in aggregate for the year ended 31 December
2021 will amount to RMBO0.107 per ordinary Share (for the year
ended 31 December 2020: RMBO0.048 per ordinary Share).
The dividend is expected to be paid on 31 May 2022 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company (the “Register of Members”) on 18 May 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 11 to 14 of this annual report for details.
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Environmental Policy and Performance

We focus on environmental, health and safety protection.
As a producer of dye intermediates, agricultural chemical
intermediates, pigment intermediates and battery materials,
we have developed production processes that comply with all
applicable national and local standards in environmental, health
and safety protection in all material respects. We also believe
that implementing and maintaining advanced development in
our environmental, health and safety protection measures serve
as a competitive strength. Producers that do not meet the local
environmental, health and safety protection standards may incur
losses and fines imposed by the local government.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, we were subject to
inspections organized by the local government from time to time
and we had not been subject to any material fines or penalties
in relation to any material breach of applicable environmental,
health and safety laws or regulations that could have a material
adverse effect on our operation. For the year ended 31 December
2021, we had not lost any order from our customers due to
environmental, health and safety concerns. We believe that our
awareness of the environmental, health and safety issues and
dedication to their protection makes us a leader in this area from
an early stage.

Integrating environmental protection is a part of our operating
philosophy. Our technological improvements were made with a
view towards complying with or strengthening our environmental,
health and safety protection measures. Producers that are unable
to meet the environmental, health and safety standards of the local
government and the downstream customers would incur a higher
cost for fines and remediation and might not be competitive in the
industry in the long run.

The Group has set up the “Environmental Protection Administrative
System” to implement the discharge of the duties of the person in
charge and staff of every level and every department, and confirm
the disposal treatments and standards of sewage, waste gas
and solid waste. We have also set up the “Accountability system
for Tsaker Chemical” to enhance the safety and environment
awareness of all our employees and mitigate and root out any
negligent acts, leading employees to fulfil their responsibility with
lofty professionalism and to ensure the quality of work, so that a
standardised management can be implemented.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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The Group attaches great importance to the corporate social
responsibilities, focusing on environmental protection, safety
and health, and continues to be committed to ensuring that
the business activities of the Group are in line with the relevant
environmental and safety supervisory requirements. We have
already obtained Quality Management System [1SO9001,
Environmental Management System ISO14001 and Occupational
Health Safety Management System GB/T 28001-2011 for our
management system.

Compliance with Related Laws and Regulations

The Group always pays attention to strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations in all material aspects, including
the non-compliance incidents as disclosed in the Prospectus,
setting up and improving the existing administrative system,
enhancing daily operation and supervision, and adopting effective
measures to avoid and reduce risks and violation of rules. The
following are some of the primary laws and regulations applicable
to the Group in the PRC.

Laws on Work Safety

The Group has a comprehensive safety production management
system and detailed operation procedures in place. In addition
to the daily production safety inspection, routine comprehensive
safety production inspection on Dongguang Production Plants,
Dongao Production Plants are conducted weekly to thoroughly
investigate any safety loopholes. Control on safety production
is strengthened by adopting feasible preventive measures.
We ensure to put in place various safety production systems,
measures and responsibilities as well as the effectiveness of
relevant contingency plans.

The Environmental Protection Law, the Law on the Prevention
and Treatment of Water Pollution and the Law on the
Prevention and Treatment of Solid Waste Pollution

Voluntarily abiding by the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, enhancing environmental
awareness and achieving green production management is
not only the common opportunities and challenges faced by
enterprises, but also the foundation of their ongoing operations.
The Group strictly abides by the above laws and regulations and
adopts effective environmental protection measures to minimize
the impacts of our operations on the environment.
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Our production facilities have already been equipped with
pollution control equipment such as monitoring equipment on
generators to control and record the gas pollutants and the
emission level of sewage and solid waste. We have also set
up a series of internal policies and plans for environmental
risks avoidance to ensure the compliance with the applicable
state, industrial and local standard laws, regulations and policy
requirements, including reports on the gas pollutants, the emission
level of sewage and solid waste and regular assessment on such
emission level to the local safety and environmental departments
(Ecological Environment Bureau of Dongguang County Branch
of Cangzhou, Emergency Management Bureau of Dongguang
County, Ecological Environment Bureau of Dongying Port
Economic Development Area Bureau, Emergency Management
Bureau of Dongying Port Economic Development Area Bureau).
We constantly strengthen the development of clean production
technologies to satisfy the increasing standard of environmental
protection. When there is deviation from any applicable emission
standards, we will investigate the cause and adopt corresponding
corrective measures. Furthermore, our emission of sewage and
solid waste and air pollutants is subject to monitoring by the
above-mentioned safety and environmental departments.

The Regulations on the Control of Foreign Exchange

Gain generated from the exporting business of the Group
represents a relatively large proportion of the total revenue for
the year and is denominated and settled in USD. Along with the
constant promotion of internationalizing RMB, we do not only
closely monitor the fluctuation of foreign currency, but also strictly
comply with the regulations on the control of foreign exchange in
foreign exchange filing registration, foreign exchange settlement,
foreign exchange operating activities and foreign exchange
investing activities.
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The Foreign Trade Law

The Group has corresponding internal export business
management system and operation procedures in place, and
promptly conducts filing registration to export department. We
engage in trade activities that are in compliance with relevant
laws and abide by the trade order. In order to maintain fair
market competition, we do not engage in improper competition
behaviours, such as selling at an improperly low price, bid-
rigging, issuing false advertisement and bribery. For exporting, the
Group also seriously studies and strictly complies with the laws
and regulations of the export destination countries, such as the
anti-dumping law in India, product liability laws and regulations in
Germany and product safety and liability laws and regulations in
the United States of America.

The Labour Law

The Group developed and improved its existing internal
management system to safeguard the rights of its employees,
including the Safety Education Training System, the Identification
and Treatment Management System for Hidden Safety Perils, and
Management Regulations on On-site Sanitation and Cleaning. The
Group stringently implements national protocols and standards on
labour safety and health and conducts labour safety and health
education for workers to prevent labour accidents and reduce
occupational hazards.

Social Insurance and Housing Provident Funds

The Group complied with the PRC laws, rules and regulations,
including the Social Insurance Law, the Regulations on
Unemployment Insurance, the Regulations on Work Injury
Insurance and the Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Provident Fund. We make contributions to social insurance in
full and on time including pension insurance, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance as well as housing provident fund. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group did not receive any penalty from
the relevant administrative department.
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In light of, including but not limited to, the above-mentioned
primary laws and regulations, our internal control department is
responsible for monitoring from time to time our compliance with
and abidance by the applicable laws and regulations and other
relevant PRC laws and regulations as well as supervising the
implementation of necessary measures. In addition, we plan to
provide our Directors, senior management and employees with
continuing training development programs and updates regarding
the relevant PRC laws and regulations on a regular basis to
proactively identify any concerns and issues relating to potential
non-compliance in order to reduce the Group's risk of deviating
from them.

IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships
with our major customers, established a strong customer base
and have become the key supplier to our major customers. We
have passed a number of stringent qualification and certification
processes required by our customers to establish our stable
customer base.

During the Review Year, we attended industry conferences to
solicit new potential customers and maintain relationships with
existing customers. To further enhance our business relationship
with our customers, our sales team visited our major customers
from time to time to conduct customer surveys to understand
their evolving needs and obtained feedback on the quality of our
products. We are dedicated to providing quality customer services
and after-sales services. We endeavour to supply our products to
our customers in a timely manner.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
suppliers. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically on a
monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and specifications
of the products to be purchased, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, we were able to obtain
raw materials from our suppliers on terms and quality acceptable
to us and we had not experienced any material disruption to
the supply of any raw materials required for our production
or experienced any difficulty in sourcing alternative suppliers
for such raw materials. In addition, we believe the relationship
between us and our major suppliers has been and will continue to
be good and stable.

Employees: In addition to competitive salaries, we provide
employees with supplementary compensation benefits, such as
free shift dormitories, free shuttle bus transportation, and meal
allowance. In addition, we value our employees and provide them
with continuing education, on-the-job training and encourage their
career development through accumulating on-the-job experience.
For the employees of our subsidiaries that operate in the PRC,
we are required to make contributions to various government
sponsored employee benefit funds, including social insurance
fund, basic pension insurance fund and unemployment, maternity
and work-related insurance funds in accordance with applicable
PRC laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there have been no
significant labour disputes or strikes at any of our production
facilities. Our current relationship with our employees and the
labour unions are good and are based on mutual support and
respect.

RISK FACTORS

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’'s businesses,
financial conditions, operational results or growth prospects,
leading to a divergence from the expected or historical results.
Key risk factors affecting the Group are outlined below. In
dealing with these risk factors, the Group keeps in touch with our
stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing their
concerns.

Directors’ Report

EEERE

HEZZ-_—F+-A=+—HBLLFE &M=
BEMRBMAEINGERLEE 8 HEBMEREM
B mEAPIEEMRT R E O HEY B HREAE
R EREMRM R EHREBEBRM R
TMESZBEMMEEE - o - BAERE > RAREE
HER 2 MNBERERLY - BELBEBERS -

BE : RAEBRFONFEIN  HAITERERMRT

s PlineBEANES  REERELRE
o tesh - RMERREER  XAEREBERER

EREIIME  USEBEERTIEEREESE
BR - BMBEARBRMTPREZEMNBARNEER
BHREMERAEERAESRHBNEANREBREF
EeFHHN > BRERES  EXRZRRED
RE%E - EENITERBRBRESD -

HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE  BMOE
MAEERMBHEEEERE TAUMRAET - i
BELRTERAARY  RAEHEXFREHREEDN
JRAI o

[ B R &

[\ N AR RAI B EAERB M ER - MR
N BEERERBRAIR  BREARHENIB
ERB - TXREINH - LHAREEFENTER
BEAER - EEHSELRABEENER  AREES
HETRSHE - L TENERGBANEET -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE#R&E

97



98

Global Economy and Macroeconomic Conditions

Any adverse change in the global economic downturn, geopolitical
tensions, the PRC’s economic, political and social conditions,
as well as governmental policies may affect our sales, which will
result in pressure on the prices, volume and margins achieved or
achievable in the future. A decline in demand or a shift to lower
value end products with a lower demand for our products resulting
from deteriorating economic condition may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In this regard, the Group will actively gain understanding of the
changes in domestic and overseas markets to promptly grasp
information of industries in the upper and lower stream in relation
to our products and adopt strategies to ensure steady growth in
our profits. We will maintain good cooperative relationships with
major clients by providing them with products highly functional
and of consistent quality. In addition, we will establish an enriched
product structure and portfolio to diversify the risk of concentration
of products. Our products are sold all over the world to avoid
risk of regional economy fluctuations. We keep developing new
customers to lower the dependence on one single customer.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of the
Group is mainly related to its exporting activities. Along with the
continuous expansion of the export business scale, the operation
of the Group may be affected by the future fluctuation in exchange
rate.

In view of this, the Group resets the export price every quarter to
avoid the risk of foreign exchange fluctuation, and concentrates
purchase in China to lower the foreign exchange risk. The Group
will actively monitor the impact of change in currency exchange
rates on the Group and, while taking into account the nature of its
business, adopt measures based on scientific identification and
effective balance to control relevant risk in order to avoid material
loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group neither drew up
any hedging policy, nor adopted any hedging instruments.
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We Are Exposed to Risks Associated with Fluctuations in
Prices of Raw Materials and Supply

The prices of raw materials on which we depend may be affected
by a number of factors, including market supply and demand,
changes in PRC import duties, PRC and global economic
conditions and changes to the PRC or international environmental
and regulatory requirements. Any significant increases in the
cost of the raw materials may increase our cost of production
and negatively affect our profit margin and, more generally, our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
A reduction in, or lack of availability of, raw materials or
interruptions in the supply chain, may also impact our profitability
to the extent that we are required to pay higher prices for, or
are unable to secure adequate supplies of the necessary raw
materials.

In this regard, we choose our suppliers of raw materials based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
qualified suppliers. We purchase critical raw materials from
several suppliers to avoid possible risk of relying on one single
supplier. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically
on a monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and
specifications of products purchase, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms. Furthermore, we attach importance to maintaining good
relationships with major suppliers to ensure we can secure
sufficient supply of raw materials of stable quality in a timely
manner and avoid any adverse effect of reduction in, or lack of
availability of, raw materials or interruptions in the supply chain. In
response to price changes of raw materials, we seek to adjust the
prices at which we sell our products to shift any increase in our
costs to our customers so as to maintain our profit margins.
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Expansion into New Markets Presents Increased Risks

The competitive conditions and customer preferences of new
markets may be different from our existing markets. As a result,
our future operation in these markets may be less successful than
those in the DSD Acid and DMSS markets. Customers in these
new markets might not be familiar with our brand and we may
need to build up brand awareness with greater effort than we
originally planned. We may find it more difficult in new market to
hire, train and retain qualified employees. This may have material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

In this regard, we will strengthen preliminary research and
commercial feasibility analysis in relation to new markets, increase
research and development of new products, technologies and
techniques and hire experienced staff to fulfil our development
plan for the future.

We Experience Seasonal Fluctuations

We experience seasonal fluctuations in our business and results
of operations. Sales of our products and our production activities
are generally slower during the first quarter of each year as a
result of the Chinese New Year holidays in the first quarter, where
many of the consumer product manufacturers stop production.
Furthermore, large quantity of herbicide is typically produced
ahead of the farming seasons for use during the farming seasons.
As a result, demand for agricultural chemical intermediates
such as ONT and OT, a raw material of certain herbicide, also
correspond to this seasonal trend. Failure to manage seasonality
in our business may cause our revenue and financial condition to
be adversely affected.

In this regard, we make reasonable arrangements for the
production and sales of products based on their respective
market demand to cope with our exposure to seasonal fluctuation.
For agricultural chemical intermediates such as ONT and OT,
we conduct meticulous analysis and research on the seasonal
demand for our products in various regions or countries and make
active moves in developing domestic and overseas markets to
mitigate the impact of seasonal factors. In addition, we carefully
monitor and control the fluctuation in our working capital arising
from seasonal movements of revenue so as to take timely
and effective action and provide our business with stable and
adequate cash for operations.
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 20 to 25 of this annual report for details.

OUTLOOK

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 16 to 19 of this annual report for details.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the Reporting Period are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The highlight of results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years are set out on pages 6 to 7 of
this annual report. This highlight does not constitute part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 27 of this annual report for details.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from the top
five customers of the Group accounted for approximately 33.8%
(2020: approximately 37.3%) of the Group’s total revenue, and
the turnover attributable to its largest single customer accounted
for approximately 12.6% of its total revenue (2020: approximately
15.4%).

Major suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from the
top five suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
43.5% (2020: approximately 51.6%) of its total purchases, and the
turnover attributable to its largest single supplier accounted for
approximately 18.6% of its total purchases (2020: approximately
25.7%).
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During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their
associates or any Shareholders (who to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital in
issue) had interest in any of the Group’s top five customers or
suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of changes in reserves of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 154 to 155.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB345.3 million.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2021 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this
annual report, the Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. ZHANG Nan

Non-executive Director:

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao

In accordance with the article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible for
re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Thus, Mr. GE Yi, Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
and Mr. YU Miao will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as the Directors at the forthcoming
AGM.

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM will be despatched to the Shareholders in due
course.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND/OR
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
of information of Directors and/or senior management of the
Company subsequent to the date of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2021 are set out
below:

Name of Directors/Senior Management Details of Change
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Mr. Bai Kun Mr. Bai has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Archosaur Games Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 9990) since 24 September 2021.
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Ms. Leung Suet Lun

Ms. Leung has resigned as the Joint Company Secretary due to other work

arrangement with effect from 25 March 2022.
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]

Ms. Ng Ka Man
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Ms. Ng of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service

provider) has been appointed as the Joint Company Secretary with effect

from 25 March 2022.
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Saved as disclosed above and in the section headed ‘Directors
and Senior Management’ in this annual report, the Company is not
aware of any other changes which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out on pages 85 to 89 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received the confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration
exceeding three years or which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER IN MAJOR TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, save for the Director’s
service contracts and letters of appointment entered into between
the Company and the respective Directors, (i) no contracts of
significance (including contracts of significance for the provision
of services) had been entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries; and (ii) none of
the Directors and their connected entities (as defined in the
Companies Ordinance) either directly or indirectly, have a
material interest in any transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance subsisting during or at the end of the financial
year to which the Company or its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party which is material to
the business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the businesses of the Company were entered into or
existed.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, with regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Details of the remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals for the Reporting Period are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of pension schemes of the Group are set out in note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
are set out as follows:
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(i) Interest in the Company (i) RAEARERE
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held™ shareholding®
EEE8B EatE BEEBERHEAO REMABT DL
Ge Yi Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 12.99%
XX RRAEHEE S (FE)®
Interest of other parties to an 400,013,250 (L)® 38.98%
agreement required to be disclosed
under section 317 of the SFO
BIEEF LB EMNE31T7 IR (FFAE)@®
ATHRBER R M A PTRZ Em
Notes: Hiat -
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares. (1) [ & |EZR O R ATE -

(2) As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued
Shares were 1,026,255,000 Shares.

(3) These Shares represent Shares held by Cavalli which is
wholly owned by Mr. Ge Yi, and Mr. Ge Yi is deemed to
be interested in the same pursuant to the SFO.

(4) On 24 June 2019, Mr. Ge Yi entered into a voting right
transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited.
As such, Mr. Ge Yi is deemed to be interested in the
400,013,250 Shares (long position) which Hero Time
Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and
Star Path Ventures Limited are interested in under
section 317 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined
in Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No arrangement has been made by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries for any Director to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate during the year ended and as at
31 December 2021, and no rights to any share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate were
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised during
the Review Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, to the knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had an interest or a short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register of the
Company maintained under Section 336 of the SFO:
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TSR -

FERRRBRORAEBRODNERRXR

RZEBEZ—F+_A=1+—8 BEAQRAEFFH
M THAL(PHFEERARARZERITHRAE) R
RRABIRMDBARABR D P HEERBE(ES LHBEK
BIYEXVE S 2 R 3D EBAR AR R W EL B BN
RARIRIECES KBS EH) E336IEATHETZ
Fafmz#Emdons

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held® shareholding®
RERER B ERME BEEEBERHAO RESAE L@
Cavalli Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 12.99%
Emfid A (478)
Qi Lin Interest of spouse 133,337,750 (L)® 12.99%
o B (iFE)®
Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 12.99%
REIEGEE R (FE)®
Trustee/Interest of children under 18 266,675,500 (L)® 25.99%
ZEEAN S RM18ERE T X AR (iFE)®
Ge Chengyu Beneficiary of a trust 133,337,750 (L)® 12.99%
KR BEEXmA (FE)®

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE#R&E

107



108

Directors’ Report

EEERE

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held™ shareholding®
REREE B EntE HEZRERHED REMAOBT DL
Ge Chenghui Beneficiary of a trust 133,337,750 (L)® 12.99%
XA BErEXmA (iFE)®
Hero Time Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 12.99%
KRB ERAA BB A (FE)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)® 38.98%
required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO
RIRRE 75 MBI D158 317 {4 (iFE)®
BTHRTE 2 N R AT P 2 s
Star Path Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 12.99%
EReliRBR AT EmlEA (478)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L) 38.98%
required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO
RIEFE 77 LB RDI 28317 & (FR)D
BTWE 2N M PRz s
Radiant Pearl Holdings Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 12.99%
Limited
PRERERA EmEAA (FAR)®
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L) 38.98%

required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO

RIRFE 75 B IR PI 58317 {5
ATHE 2N IBEEM T Rz

Notes:
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares. (M

(2) As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued Shares ()

were 1,026,255,000 Shares.
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Ms. Qi Lin, as the spouse of Mr. Ge Yi, is deemed to be
interested in the Shares which Mr. Ge Yi is interested or
deemed to be interested in under the SFO.

Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Ms. Qi Lin,
and Ms. Qi Lin is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is interested in pursuant to the
SFO.

Ms. Qi Lin holds all the interests in Hero Time Ventures Limited
and Star Path Ventures Limited as trustee (Mr. Ge Chengyu
and Ms. Ge Chenghui, who both are children under the age of
18 of Ms. Qi Lin, are beneficiaries of the trusts of Hero Time
Ventures Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited, respectively).
As such, Ms. Qi Lin, as the trustee and the parent of Mr. Ge
Chengyu and Ms. Ge Chenghui, is deemed to be interested
in the Shares owned by Hero Time Ventures Limited and
Star Path Ventures Limited. And Mr. Ge Chengyu and Ms.
Ge Chenghui are respectively deemed to be interested in
the Shares which Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star Path
Ventures Limited hold as beneficiary of trust.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. Ge Yi entered into a voting right transfer
deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited. Hence, Hero Time
Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested in 400,013,250
Shares (long position), being the sum of Shares which Mr.
Ge Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited are interested in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. Ge Yi entered into a voting right transfer
deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited. Hence, Star Path
Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested in 400,013,250
Shares (long position), being the sum of Shares which Mr. Ge
Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Hero Time Ventures
Limited are interested in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

On 24 June 2019 Mr. Ge Yi entered into a voting right transfer
deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited. Hence, Radiant Pearl
Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in 400,013,250
Shares (long position), being the sum of Shares which Mr. Ge
Yi, Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited
are interested in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors
have not been aware of any person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would be required to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be recorded in the
register maintained under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group did not have any share option scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any debentures for the year ended 31
December 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by
the Company or subsisted as at the end of the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in the share capital of the Company for the
Review Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, as the Board considered
that the price of the Company’s Shares did not reflect their
intrinsic value, and the share repurchase program could reflect
the Board’s confidence in the Company’s development prospects,
thus the Company repurchased on the Stock Exchange a total
number of 11,876,500 Shares at a total consideration (before
deduction of expenses) of HK$15,811,995. The repurchased
6,849,000 Shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company
on 3 August 2021.
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Details of the repurchase are as follows: BEFBEET
Number of Highest Lowest Total
Shares purchase purchase consideration
Month repurchased price per Share price per Share (before expenses)
HKS$ HK$ HK$
=kv) EBERAEE ERESBEE BERBEEBEE HBAE (BRBAR AT
BT BT BT
March 2021 981,000 1.16 1.12 1,121,690
—E-—F=R1
April 2021 1,453,500 1.20 1.13 1,710,835
—E-—FMA
May 2021 1,714,500 1.31 1.16 2,067,290
T —FTHA
June 2021 570,000 1.33 1.25 736,360
2 —FRA
July 2021 2,130,000 1.54 1.30 3,039,230
—T-—FtA
August 2021 644,000 1.49 1.35 912,805
2= —F)\A
September 2021 2,170,500 1.48 1.34 3,085,570
- —FNA
October 2021 239,500 1.47 1.41 343,490
—EZ—F+H
November 2021 1,266,500 1.56 1.39 1,860,105
T —F+—H8
December 2021 707,000 1.36 1.30 934,620
ZEZ—F+=H
Total: 11,876,500 15,811,995
A3

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of [ FXFr#EEIN

NS DRSS Bl PG R

its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the REBEE-_T-_—F+_A=+—HIFENESZ

Company's listed securities for the year ended 31 December HE&EHKBERIANT FHES

2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT BEBERE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles /44 ERMAIEHESHE £2E T EELEER
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would {3 - R EARRQ B EIZLL I AR IR G EH

oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to the  f%{53

existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF EXEMPTION BEBERREBR

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption HEZWANMERREEIFAERARBAME AT
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the  AIFE#H % REAR -

Company'’s securities.
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UNDERTAKINGS OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Ge Yi and Cavalli had entered into the Deed of Non-
competition in favour of our Company (for itself and as trustee
for the benefit of each of its subsidiaries), under which Mr. Ge
Yi and Cavalli had undertaken to our Company that they will not,
and will procure that none of their respective associates (other
than members of our Group) will, directly or indirectly (including
through anybody corporate, partnership, joint venture or other
contractual arrangement) or as principal or agent, either on any
of their own account or with each other or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company or through any entities
(except in or through any members of our Group):

° carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition, directly or indirectly, with
or is likely to be in competition, directly or indirectly, with
our business, whether as a Shareholder, Director, senior
officer, partner, agent, lender, employee, consultant or
otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise; and

o take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may
interfere with or disrupt our business (as defined in the
Prospectus) including, but not limited to, solicitation of any
of the then current customers, suppliers or employees from
any members of our Group.

Please refer to the Prospectus for details of the Deed of Non-
competition.

In 2021, Mr. Ge Yi personally controlled more than 30% of the
voting rights of the Company’s Shares, so he was still regarded
as a controlling shareholder and subject to the Deed of Non-
competition.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from Mr. Ge Yi
in respect of his compliance during the Reporting Period with the
non-competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition
issued to the Company in 2021.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*

Directors’ Report

EEERE

T

XXEERCavalliARRF (K F RAMERFH
RMERZFEAN) BRXRAAF M HRIRE - Bitt
X ERCavallim AR RAG T IS E e
BEZENBBEA (REEKE RRIKRIN BRKE
% (BEREBEMEER ARLE AELERHM
BR%H) JEREFAXNREABTHAR - 3E
R RREMAL  BERXQF LB BEMNER (B
RBGEBAEBEMKBRRRIN ETETED

. MER - -E%F  "RABE a8 A K2
A~ ERA BB - ERSEMS DET
ftE  2EECAEXEERRFEZEFRHA
EEBFORBRFE P AEN Sk
RERBEMRBIAEMTAESES
e B A - EREM &

. BREQE fa] T # 2k 4 B X 7T B T B sl 4 e AP
MER (EZRBRHBE)WTH B4
EARRABETAAEERKERRERNE
F - HEBLES -

BARTBFRIENFE - F2RBEFNAE -

RCEEEAR2021 FE 1 H30% LA WA T IG5
FORKE - AU DAER BIERR R Z RS2
ZIRR o

ARBERE R CEERREHANE ETTEHF A
HENFERRE BR-_Z - FERCYETER
AR B AR BT RIRFTFR S AR



The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition during the
Reporting Period based on data and the confirmation provided or
given by Mr. Ge Yi and are satisfied that he had complied with the
Deed of Non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, no Directors or any of their associates
had any interests in any business which competed or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the Review Year, the Group entered into certain
transactions with related parties as defined in accordance with
applicable accounting standards, and details of which are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report. Such related party transactions fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of Listing Rules).
The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
and other requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of Listing
Rules.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has not
been involved in any material litigation or arbitration. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no material litigation or claim
pending or threatened against the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 34.1 of the Articles of Association, every
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred
or sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other officer of the
Company by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their
respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur
or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. The Group has
taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout
the year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.
Every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company is therefore
entitled to be indemnified subject to the Company Law or other
relevant regulations for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2021 for the benefit of the Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
section headed “Report of Corporate Governance” on pages 116
to 141 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued Shares, being the minimum percentage of public float
as prescribed by the Stock Exchange and under the Listing Rules,
was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as at the date of this annual report.
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DONATION

Please refer to the section headed “Employees’ Welfare” in the
“Environment, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report for further details.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Ernst & Young has audited
the accompanying financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Ernst & Young is required to retire in the forthcoming AGM, and
is eligible and offers itself for re-election. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the AGM.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from 4 May 2022 to
10 May 2022, both days inclusive, in order to determine the
identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the AGM,
during which period no share transfers will be registered. To be
eligible to attend the AGM, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m. on 3 May 2022.

The Register of Members will also be closed from 16 May 2022
to 18 May 2022, both days inclusive, in order to determine the
entitlement of the Shareholders to receive the final dividend,
during which period no share transfers will be registered. To
be eligible to receive the final dividend, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 13 May 2022.

By order of the Board
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
GE Yi

Beijing, the PRC, 25 March 2022
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Report of Corporate Governance

The Board hereby presents the corporate governance report of
the Company for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of its
Shareholders and enhance its value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
own corporate governance code. The Company has been in
compliance with all applicable code provisions under the CG
Code throughout the Reporting Period, except for code provision
A.2.1 (which has been re-numbered as C.2.1 since 1 January
2022) which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company will continue to review and
monitor its corporate governance practices in order to ensure the
compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group.
To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established four Board committees, including the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the ESG Committee. The Board has delegated to
the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in

respect of liability arising from legal action against its Directors,
and will conduct annual review on such insurance cover.
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Board Composition

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprised
three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three

independent non-executive Directors, as set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. BAI Kun (Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company Secretary)
Ms. ZHANG Nan

Non-executive Director:

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, which relates to the appointment of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the
Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.
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Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

As regards the corporate governance code provision requiring
directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to
the Company in a timely manner.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Group’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are
also provided with regular updates on the Group’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the joint company secretaries of the
Company update and provide the Directors with written training
materials in relation to their roles, functions and duties.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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A summary of training received by the Directors for the Reporting
Period according to the records provided by the Directors is as
follows:
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Nature of
Continuous Professional
Development

Name of Directors EERE BESXRREFREME

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. GE Yi REE B

Mr. BAI Kun HELAE A B, C

Ms. Zhang Nan SRt B

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincentft 4 B

Independent non-executive Directors BUKHITES

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung IR E B

Mr. ZHU Lin KIREE A B C

Mr. YU Miao FEEE B, C

Notes: Wizt -

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or A : EEATER, Semk, wwmBE S K
briefings e

B: reading materials on various topics, including corporate B: BMEZRBRERZENOME  ZEBRELESE
governance matters, directors’ duties and responsibilities, A EEBBLEBE - FhmRAIEEMBEE
Listing Rules and other relevant laws 151

C: participating in training provided by law/accounting firms and C: 2 S e MATIREMEY - BAATE

that relating to the business of the Company

A RME
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 (which has been
re-numbered as C.2.1 since 1 January 2022) of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company deviates from the code provision A.2.1
because Mr. GE Yi performs both the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Since Mr. GE
Yi has been with the Group for many years, he has a thorough
understanding in our business, management, customers and
products. With his extensive experience in business operation and
management, the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the
same person provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates effective implementation and execution
of our business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Company.

Under the leadership of Mr. GE Yi, the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. In addition, as all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of the Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives, the
Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers and authorities
between the Board and the management of the Company. To
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company, the Board shall nevertheless review the effectiveness
of the structure and composition of the Board from time to time in
light of prevailing circumstances.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. GE Yi, being the executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 15 June 2021, which is subject to renewal upon mutual
agreement.

Mr. BAI Kun, being the executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 23 August 2019, which is subject to renewal upon
mutual agreement.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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Ms. ZHANG Nan, being the executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 10 January 2019, which is subject to renewal
upon mutual agreement.

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15 June
2021, renewable upon mutual agreement.

No Director has entered into a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration exceeding three
years or which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible
for re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Therefore, Mr. GE Yi, Mr. HO Kenneth
Kai Chung and Mr. YU Miao will retire by rotation and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as the Director at the
forthcoming AGM.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of no less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company. The
agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the
Board meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that
the Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the Board meetings or Board Committee
meetings. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to
the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings shall be
kept by the joint company secretaries with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of
each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by the Directors.

During the Reporting Period, 5 Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held, and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:
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Meeting Attended/ Meeting Attended/

Number of Number of

Board meetings General meetings
Directors 2= FEeREEEeX8 LESER REAELIH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. GE Yi XEE 5/5 11
Mr. BAI Kun AEf4E 5/5 1/1
Ms. ZHANG Nan Rzt 5/5 1/1
Non-executive Director HITES
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincentft 4 5/5 11
Independent non-executive Directors BYIEHITES
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung IR R & 5/5 11
Mr. ZHU Lin N i 5/5 11
Mr. YU Miao FEEE 5/5 11
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made to all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she complied with the Model
Code throughout the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also adopted its own
code of conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions
on terms no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model
Code for the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate
governance duties include:

(a) to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’'s policies and
practices on corporate governance and to make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board on
matters;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report; and

(f) to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s whistleblowing policy.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. ZHU
Lin (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. YU Miao, all
of which are independent non-executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

1. to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to
deal with any questions of its resignation or dismissal;
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to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if the prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

in reviewing these reports mentioned above before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the Group’s going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems and to audit any significant
connected transaction, so as to ensure that management
has performed its duty to establish an effective internal
control system;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function;

to develop and review the Company’'s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
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8. to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
for inspection.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held a total of 2
meetings to discuss and consider the following:

o it reviewed the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 and the auditor’s report prepared by the external
auditor on accounting matters and the major findings
during the audit;

° it reviewed the interim results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the period ended 30 June 2021; and

° it reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programme and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function), risk management system
and procedures and the re-appointment of external
auditor. The Board did not have separate opinion on any
recommendation and suggestion by the Audit Committee in
relation to the selection, appointment, retirement or removal
of external auditor.

The attendance of members of the Audit Committee at the
meetings are set out in the following table:

RBEHA > ERZESHABITMAERE
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Mr. ZHU Lin KRIREHE 2/2
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung fAIRUAR L A& 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
GE Yi (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung and Mr. ZHU Lin, of
which Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director and Mr. HO Kenneth Kai
Chung and Mr. ZHU Lin are independent non- executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

1. to analyse the standards and procedures for selection
of Directors and senior management appointed by
the Board; review the structure, size, composition and
diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated
for directorship. In identifying suitable individuals, the
Committee shall consider individuals on merit and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board;

3. to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

4. to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually;

5. to assess and review the candidates for director and senior
management to be potentially appointed by the Board,
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer, taking into the Company’s corporate strategy and
the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future; and

Report of Corporate Governance

EREBRE

REZE"

RELZEGH=ZEMEEK - IXXEE(ER) -
A EERRREE  EPXCEERHNTE
= MARMSEERRARELNRBILIENTES -

REZBEENIEBRHENT

1. MEEERHESERINEREEENE
BRENEF ELBFRIEFEOR
B A EREKEZ T (BEETR
RS Fik - XERBEES Bk &
ERE - XEE - MBRRIEER) - X aE
AREARARIMN DR KB MR EES(E
HEEEIR R

2. RIERBEZNRER  MEAFREERA
BEEENALT  HERRZALHESE
= -ZEERVESBEALR  BEEARHE
ATHRE  YARBGRHERIBERESS
B Z T bm s

3. ATZIBIIFMITE R HB L

4. FEEBATRNESTENEZITCEE
RBHEEERATEETENEZ TILEE
MmElER A 2B RIERER - UREBF
EEEERRENRERTE

5. FELEEEFREANAEETRING
MEREREA - REARARR B DR
kBRFENRE - M3 ERhETeE
& REFZEREFZEULRER(LH
RIERTHRAER) EEFTEREESRD
et

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE#R&E

127



128

6. to examine the assessment standards for Directors and
senior management appointed by the Board, conduct the
relevant assessments and make recommendations to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ NOMINATION CRITERIA AND PROCEDURES

The Nomination Committee has also followed certain selection
criteria and nomination procedures in relation to new appointments
and re-appointments of Directors. The selection criteria for
assessing candidates include, in particular, his/her educational
background and professional qualifications, experiences in the
industry, personality and integrity, as well as his/her contributions
to diversity of the Board according to the Board Diversity Policy.

In the case of re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination
Committee would take into account factors such as contribution
from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate is appointed
for the position of independent non-executive Director, the
Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence
with reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules. In
appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first identify potential candidates. After the Nomination
Committee evaluated the candidates based on the selection
criteria, the Nomination Committee will nominate one or more
qualified candidates for the Board’s consideration and the Board
will determine and agree on a preferred candidate.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the diversity of Board composition
has many benefits to the performance of the Company. As
such, the Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure in designing the Board’'s composition, board diversity
will be considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is summarised
as follows:

PURPOSE: Aim to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

POLICY STATEMENT: With a view to achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.
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SELECTION CRITERIA: The Company is committed to selecting
the best person for the role. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition
to educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board. The Board’'s composition (including
gender, age, length of service) will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report annually.
During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held 1
meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1. the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are held by the same person, and believes
that vesting the two roles in the same person provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership and
facilitates effective implementation and execution of our
business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Company; and

3. the Board Diversity Policy.

The attendance of members of the Nomination Committee at the
meeting is set out in the following table:
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Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members EEHRH CHERE EHERE
Mr. GE Yi XKL 1/1
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung AR ST A 11
Mr. ZHU Lin KIRLE 1/1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. YU Miao (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, and Mr. ZHU
Lin, all of which are independent non-executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy according to standards including
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities concerned, and employment terms of
other positions within the Company and its subsidiaries;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibility and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive for the Company;
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7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

8. to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held 1
meetings to discuss and consider the following:

1. the 2021 and 2022 remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management;

2. the employee remuneration policies and structure of the
Group; and
3. the cash bonus plan of the Group for the year 2021.

The attendance of members of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings is set out in the following table:
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Name of members EEHRH BHERE EHERR
Mr. YU Miao Tkt 1/1
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung AR ST A 11
Mr. ZHU Lin KIFRLE 1/1

ESG COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee consists of five members, namely Ms. DUAN
Weihua (chairman of the committee, chief development officer
of the Group), Mr. DUAN Weidong (general manager of the dye
division), Mr. LIU Wei (general manager of the pigment division),
Mr. YANG Fuguang (administrative director of Dongguang
manufacturing base) and Mr. ZHANG Jiye (production director of
Tsaker Dongao production base), all of which are management
members of the Company with relevant environmental, social and
governance knowledge and experience.
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The main duties and responsibilities of the ESG Committee are as
follows:

1. to identify related issues that have a significant impact
on the Group’s operations and/or the interests of other
important stakeholders in relation to environmental, social
and governance aspects;

2. to provide guidance for and review the Group’'s
environmental, social and governance vision, goals and
strategies, and make recommendations to the Board to
approve relevant environmental, social and governance
initiatives;

3. to monitor and review emerging environmental, social and
governance trends and issues, provide guidance for the
development of the Group’s environmental, social and
governance vision based on relevant circumstances, and
provide advisory opinions on management of the current
and emerging issues that affect Group’s environmental,
social and governance;

4. to review and adopt risk assessment of the Group’s impact
on health, safety, environment and society;

5. to set the Group’s environmental, social and governance
goals, indicators, key performance indicators and
measures, monitor the implementation of relevant
measures, and evaluate the effectiveness of relevant
measures;

6. to adopt and update the policies on production safety,
environmental protection, social responsibility management
and corporate governance of the Group when necessary;

7. to assist the Board in preparing the annual environmental,
social and governance report in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(set forth in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules) for its
consideration, approval and disclosure;
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10.

to review and monitor the Group’'s environmental, social
and governance policies and practices to ensure
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to review and evaluate the performance and terms of
reference of the committee to ensure that the committee
operate at optimal efficacy and recommend changes that it
deems appropriate for the approval of the Board; and

other matters authorized by the Board related to health,
safety, environment, social responsibility and corporate
governance.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEENEH
The remuneration of senior management of the Company RBEHR  AAFNSAEEEB(BE=-RES
(including three Directors, whose biographies are set out on page HEZEFESHRAFIRESIE) M ZAH 70
89 of this annual report) during the Reporting Period falls under T :
the following bands:

Number of individuals
Band of remuneration (RMB) MEZER (ARE) A"
Over 1,500,000 1,500,000 T MA = 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,0007T 1
0 to 1,000,000 072 1,000,0007¢ 2

Further particulars of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and
the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 147 to 149 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
by the Audit Committee on an annual basis.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in the performance of its
regulatory and corporate governance role in the Group's financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls,
as well as financial and internal audit functions. Risk management
and internal control systems can only make reasonable but not
absolute guarantees to prevent major misrepresentations or
losses, which are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failing to meet business objectives.
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Internal audit department

The Group has established an Internal Audit Department, whereby
such department plays an important role in monitoring the internal
governance of the Group. The major responsibilities of the
internal control department include standardizing and reviewing
operating risks, financial positions and internal control of the
Group, as well as conducting regular and comprehensive audits
of all subsidiaries and affiliates of the Group. The Internal Audit
Department reports to the Audit Committee at its annual meeting
in respect of the adequacy and effectiveness of its work in the
previous year and the work plan for the following year.

Risk management and internal control system

The Group adopted the three lines of defence model in the
management of risk. Operational management forms the core
of the first line of defence as they contact with the risk sources
in the first place. They are responsible for identifying, reporting
and preliminarily managing risks in their daily operations. Our
second line of defence is aimed to facilitate and monitor the
implementation of effective risk management practices by
operational management and assists risk owners in defining
risk exposures and reporting adequate risk-related information
throughout the Group. Our internal audit function is the core of the
third line of defence and mainly responsible for checking, auditing
and monitoring the work performed by the first and second lines
of defence.

The Group’s risks are identified from business processes in our
established enterprise-wide risk assessment methodologies.
We select key participants across the Group who are involved
in each of the business process as interviewees to identify the
risks to form our risk universe. Each risk within the risk universe is
assessed in terms of likelihood of occurrence and the significance
of impact, taken into account the current internal controls in place
to mitigate these risks. The risk assessment results are reported
to senior management, the Audit Committee and the Board for the
confirmation of our risk response strategies and the development
of our improvement measures, based on their preferences towards
risk, the available resources for risk mitigation, and the current
controls in place. The Board and the Audit Committee assess
and review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems (covering all key controls including
strategy, finance, operation, and compliance controls) on an
annual basis.
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During the Review Year, the Company reviewed the report
prepared by the Internal Audit Department containing the
investigation results and improvement suggestions as well as the
management letter prepared by the external auditor, and promptly
took appropriate improvement measures to mitigate the risks.

The Company’s internal control system is based on Internal
Control-Integrated Framework of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”), and has
five components, namely Control Environment, Risk Assessment,
Control Activities, Information and Communication, and Monitoring
Activities. The system intends to facilitate the design and
functioning of good control practices and reduce the likelihood
and impact of risks to an acceptably low level, in order for us to
achieve our objectives in operations, reporting, and compliance.

Any material internal control defects identified are timely
communicated and carefully evaluated for their potential impacts.
The departments or functions who are owners of these controls,
are required to propose corrective measures and obtain approval
from management before implementation. The implementation
status is monitored by both management and the Internal Audit
Department to ensure these control defects are properly resolved
in a timely manner.

The Group has also established policies and procedures
for the handling and dissemination of inside information,
including “Material Information Internal Reporting System of
Tsaker Chemical Group Limited” and “Information Disclosure
Management System of Tsaker Chemical Group Limited”. The
information or data to be disclosed should be properly reviewed
and approved by our compliance functions and management to
ensure its timeliness, accuracy, sufficiency and effectiveness, and
is closely monitored after disclosure.

During the Review Year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control system of the Group, and
considered that the design and implementation of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group are
effective and adequate in all material respects.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the auditor in respect of the audit and non-
audit services provided to the Company for the Reporting Period
is as follows:
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Amount (RMB’000)

Type of services R R 2B (AR%ETR)
Audit services ZEH RS 1,550
Non-audit services in relation to: BRI TS B IEBZRTE -
Interim results reviewing e 450
Agreed upon procedure BmERT 180
Total “ast 2,180

COMPANY SECRETARIES

The executive Director Mr. BAl Kun has been appointed as the
Joint Company Secretary and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engages Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun of TMF
Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider)
as the other joint company secretary to assist Mr. BAI Kun to
discharge her duties as one of the joint company secretaries of
the Company. Mr. BAI Kun is the primary contact person of the
Company.

With effect from 25 March 2022, Ms. LEUNG Suet Lun resigned
as the Joint Company Secretary due to other work arrangement,
and the Company appointed Ms. NG Ka Man who is a manager
of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a
company secretarial service provider) as the other Joint Company
Secretary on the same day. Mr. BAI Kun, the executive Director,
remains as the primary contact person of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. BAl Kun and Ms.
LEUNG Suet Lun have undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

On 30 November 2018, the Board approved and adopted a
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, the Company may distribute
dividends in (i) cash; (ii) Shares; or (iii) a combination of cash or
Shares. When deciding whether to propose/declare dividends
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, amongst others, the general financial position,
operating results, liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Group, and the distribution shall be made in accordance with
applicable rules and regulations (including the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands) and subject to restrictions under the Articles
of Association.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognises the importance of timely
and non-selective disclosure of information on the Company,
which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions.

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board
Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external
auditor will also attend the annual general meetings to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and its Shareholders and maintains a website at
http://www.tsaker.com, where the up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to the Articles of Association, Shareholders may put
forward proposals for consideration at general meetings of the
Company. Any one or more member(s) of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board to convene such general meeting shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman lIslands
Companies Law. However, Shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow article 12.3 of the Articles of Association for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures are
set out in the section headed “CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS” in
this annual report.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the capital
market department of the Company at its headquarters through
email at ir@tsaker.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Articles of Association during the
Reporting Period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Tsaker Chemical Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tsaker
Chemical Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 150 to 274, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Recognition of deferred tax
assets

Several of the Company’s
subsidiaries had accumulated
tax losses of RMB71 million
as at 31 December 2021. The
Group has recognised deferred
tax assets of RMB15 million
against the tax losses to the
extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits is
probable.

Recognition of deferred
tax assets requires critical
management judgement about
the likelihood and magnitude of
creating future taxable profits to
offset the tax losses, including
expectations for future prices
of products, expected sales
volumes and production
costs, and overall market and
economic conditions. Actual
profits are likely to be different
from those forecasts since
anticipated events frequently
do not occur as expected and
unforeseen events may arise,
and their impact on estimates
and forecasts may be material.

The Group’s accounting
policies and disclosures about
the deferred tax assets are
included in Note 2.4 Summary
of significant accounting
policies, Note 3 Significant
accounting judgements and
estimates and Note 28 Deferred
tax to the consolidated financial
statements.

oA

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited %

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating the
assumptions used in projecting
the expected future taxable
profits such as future prices
of products, expected sales
volumes and production costs,
by comparing these key inputs
with the Group’s historical
data and economic forecasts
as well as by reviewing
supporting documents for
those assumptions made such
as sale contracts and budget
prepared by management,
and assessing the income tax
rate applicable to the deferred
tax assets to be recognised.
We involved our tax experts to
assist us with corporate income
tax reconciliation review. We
also reviewed the adequacy
of disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial
statements in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax
assets.
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Key audit matters (continued)
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment

At 31 December 2021, the
Group’s property, plant and
equipment (“PPE”) were RMB1,454
million. The Group is required
to review PPE for impairment
whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Management
performed an impairment
assessment on such PPE by
determining the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) that the PPE
are allocated to. As a result of
the impairment assessment,
impairment loss of RMB6 million
was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2021 for PPE.

Audit management’s impairment
assessment of PPE was complex
due to the significant estimates
and judgements involved. The
recoverable amount of PPE in
use is based on value-in-use
amount. Management assesses
the value-in-use amount by using
the projections of future cash
flows, including the future prices
of products, expected sales
volumes, production costs and
discount rates. The recoverable
amount of PPE to be disposed of
is based on the expected disposal
consideration less cost of disposal.
These estimates and judgements
may be affected by unexpected
changes in the future market or
economic conditions.

The Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures about the
impairment assessment of PPE
are included in Note 2.4 Summary
of significant accounting policies,
Note 3 Significant accounting
judgements and estimates and
Note 13 Property, plant and
equipment to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

We obtained an understanding of
controls over the PPE impairment
assessment process.

For those PPE where value-in-use
is used as the recoverable amount,
we compared the methodology
used by the Group with industry
practice, and assessed the
significant assumptions used in the
calculations, which are comprised
of, amongst others, future prices
of products, expected sales
volumes, production costs and
discount rates, by comparing them
with the Group's historical data as
well as by reviewing supporting
documents for those assumptions
made such as sale contracts
and industry reports. We also
analysed the historical accuracy
of management’s estimates. In
addition, we involved our valuation
specialist to assist us in assessing
the valuation methodologies and
the assumptions used, including
the discount rates. We performed a
sensitivity analysis to the significant
assumptions described above
to assess the changes to the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs
resulting from changes in these
assumptions.

For those PPE to be disposed
of where fair value less cost of
disposal is used as the recoverable
amount, we assessed the
significant assumptions, such as
expected disposal consideration,
and disposal-related costs by
reviewing price quotes and
subsequent disposal agreements.

We also reviewed the adequacy of
disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
in respect of the impairment
assessment of PPE.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2E£E AR A A"
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Kwok Yin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEsERkAEMEENER

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
—B=-—fF —ETHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
btaE ARET T ARBTTT
REVENUE g 5] 1,781,106 1,275,274
Cost of sales $HEE Ak AN (1,240,810) (829,939)
Gross profit EF 540,296 445,335
Other income and gains Hap U A R Mz 5 27,675 15,188
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HERAX (58,235) (41,578)
Administrative expenses TR (143,847) (178,206)
Other expenses HuppAx (25,473) (20,766)
Impairment losses on property, ME - WE MREREERE
plant and equipment (6,283) (18,241)
Finance costs BT R S 6 (28,276) (32,444)
Share of loss of an associate A5 —EEE R RIBE (513) 3
Exchange gains, net P 5 W 5 28 2,265 7,995
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR R 7 307,609 177,283
Income tax expense FrS B 10 (80,371) (32,684)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R R 227,238 144,599
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H{thZ2mWkz
Other comprehensive income BERNERBEEN S ESR
that may be reclassified to T;amﬁ@ﬁftﬂiﬁﬂﬁlm
profit or loss in subsequent (HR#HE)
periods (net of tax):
Exchange differences on translation & /E N EFEHE K =58
of foreign operations (7,711) (21,670)
Other comprehensive income BREGBETSENSEE
that will not be reclassified to B rEM 2R
profit or loss in subsequent (HIBR7RIR) -
periods (net of tax):
Equity investments designated EERAREENEZEAE
at fair value through other FFAHMEERKE ([HEAR
comprehensive income BEE2 A ST AEM
(“FVOCI”) 2EWE]) 2BRERE 15,773 716

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 25
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEskEMEZERAR

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
—B=-—fF —ETHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARET T ARBTTT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRHE 2wk » FIRFIE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 8,062 (20,954)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME S RZEWHHEEE
FOR THE YEAR 235,300 123,645
Profit attributable to: TEIATEEER
Owners of the parent BRAREAR A 226,239 144,875
Non-controlling interests el 999 (276)
227,238 144,599
Total comprehensive income THATEEEERZLREE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZZ =N 234,301 123,921
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR M A 999 (276)
235,300 123,645
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBRESZERA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EihESRER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (expressed in EARAREE (RER
RMB per share) AREF|R) 12 0.22 0.14
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR R 3R

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E——F —E T
+=A=+-—H +=—A=+—H”
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARET T ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - = NERE 13 1,454,285 1,477,147
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 14(a) 87,447 93,843
Investment in an associate R—HEBE AR ZIRE 15 987 =
Equity investments designated BERANEBEFZEAEE
at FVOCI FTAEMEEWE 2 RIERE 16 50,135 50,218
Intangible assets EREE 17 17,319 19,625
Deferred tax assets EIETIBEE 28 33,692 43,016
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 12,122 11,707
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,655,987 1,695,556
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories & 18 260,863 177,787
Trade receivables E 5 el 8 19 216,086 135,164
Notes receivable e Z 20 85,802 82,177
Prepayments and other receivables & 3x18 K H 4 g I 7k 18 21 139,069 148,695
Financial assets at fair value BARBEAEHEEZSH A
through profit or loss BanemEE 22 28,613 1,709
Restricted cash SRR E 23 1,986 760
Cash and cash equivalents RENBEEEY 23 180,075 101,240
Total current assets mMENEEMAE 912,494 647,532
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B A 24 195,713 178,901
Other payables and accruals E e 5B R ERTE A 25 84,586 86,328
Contract liabilities EHEE 6,485 11,5614
Interest-bearing bank and sTRIRITREMER
other borrowings 26 278,000 282,000
Income tax payable JERTFTEHE 48,180 10,651
Current portion of long-term REME B BN EREE
borrowings 26 24,109 28,212
Total current liabilities RER FARE 637,073 597,606

152 Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &L 2 &£ EERR A F*



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBERRE

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-TF
T=A=FH +-A=t-8
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 ARB T ARBT T
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 275,421 49,926
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERS
LIABILITIES 1,931,408 1,745,482
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred income RIEUA 27 20,473 21,177
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFRIEAE 28 5,699 5,250
Interest-bearing bank and FPERIT R EALER
other borrowings 26 13,622 39,440
Lease liabilities HEESE 14(b) 188 323
Total non-current liabilities FRBAFEEE 39,982 66,190
Net assets EEFE 1,891,426 1,679,292
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AEGER
of the parent
Share capital N 29 66,269 66,713
Treasury shares EFRAD (5,893) -
Reserves s 30 1,815,114 1,612,579
1,875,490 1,679,292
Non-controlling interests FEPERR e e 15,936 =
Total equity T ARRE 1,891,426 1,679,292
Ge Yi Bai Kun
XX BE
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

heRERBBR

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-ZT——

FH-A=t—HLFE

At 1 January 2021 R-E--%-f-A 66,713 - 421,899 (105,894) 63,679 152,189 (5,004) 33244 1,052,466 1,679,292 - 1,679,292
Profit for the year E@gf - = = = = = = - 26239 226,239 999 227,238
Other comprehensive  FREMRENE

income for the year - - - - - - 15,773 (7,m1) - 8,062 - 8,062
Total comprehensive ER2ENGET

income for the year - - - - - 15,773 (1) 226239 234,301 999 235300
Repurchase of own shares  EEIE AR - (1314 - - - - - - - (1314 - (1314
Transfer of fair value HERAAEEFEAR

reserve upon the REAEH2ENE

disposal of equity LREREHERDR

investments at FVOCI BERE - - - - - - (11,35) - 11,358 - - -
Disposal of partial interest ~ HE-THBAR

in a subsidiary™ EY o = - - 15,063 - - - - - 15,063 14,937 30,000
Dividend distriouted o~ ATRFHREKS

shareholders (Note 1) (#iZ11) - (40,024) - - - - - - (40,02) - (40,024
Transfer to statutory BETITHE

1eServe - - - - 7,351 - - (7,351) - - -
Appropriation to safety B AZ2EEES

production fund - - - - 2,261 - - - (2,261) - - -
Conversion of a subsidiary i BATESA

into a joint stock company  RAARAT

vith mited bty - - - g5 - (86%) - - Em) - - -
Cancellation of own shares B AR (7 (444) 7,249 (6,805) - - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZE_F

+ZA=1-A 66,269 (5,893)  375,070* (5,030)* 65940  130,910* (589)*  25533* 1,223,280* 1,875,490 15,936 1,891,426

o In December 2021, the Group entered into an equity transfer ~ ** REZTZ—F+ZA  AEERKEEEDE

agreement with Tianjin Huihua Enterprise Management
Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Tianjin Huihua”)
to transfer 10% equity of Tsaker Technology to Tianjin Huihua.

bl Tsaker Technology was transformed into a joint stock company

in 2021. The share exchange rate was based on its audited net

assets on 30 September 2021.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2&£E AR A F*
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBER

Year ended 31 December 2021
B E - —F+-A=1+—RHILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAAER AR
Fair value
reserve of
Safety financial Non-
Treasury Share Capital ~ production ~ Statutory ~ assetsat  Translation  Retained controlling Total
Share capital shares  premium reserve fund reserve Fvocl reserve profits Total  interests equity
BAAER
fERE
EERIN
Afh2E
iGawkt
BELDR
kx  ERRH  ROEE  AARE TRtEE:  iRBRE  BERE  ERRE  REEA g FihER  EeE
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBIOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'O00  RMB'0O0  RMBO00  RMB0O
ARETn  ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AREfn AREfn  ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R=E-%4-5-A 67,088 - 632318 (10589%) 54550 131,469 (5,720) 54914 937440 1,766,165 216 1,766,441
Profit for the year ERgH = = - - - - - - 144875 144875 (276) 144599
Other comprefensive EREtRENE
income for the year - - - - - - 716 (21,670) - (20954) - (20,954)
Total comprehensive ERRENELE
income for the year - - - - - - 716 (21670) 144875 123,921 (276) 123,645
Repurchase of own shares  EEEAMHA = (5,738) - = = = = - - (5,738) - (5,738)
Dividend distributedto ~~ 2EFHEARS
shareholders (Nore 11)  (WiZ11) - - (205,056) - - - - - - (205,056) - (205,056)
Cancelation of own shares 5B AR (379) 5738 (5,363) = = = = = = = = =
Transfer to statutory ERTTRE
reserve - - - - - 2,720 - - (20,720) - - -
Appropriation fo safely  EAR2HEES
production fund - - - - 9,129 - - - (9,129) - - -
A3 December 2020  R-B-%E
tZA=1-A 66,713 - 421899 (105804  63679° 152,189 (5,004 33244 1,052,466 1,679,292 - 1,679,292

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB1,815,114,000 and RMB1,612,579,000 in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020, respectively.

ZERBERELEINNGEEMBARRERAD B A
ZE = F+ZA=t—HRZZEZZEF+=
A=+—HzFaHEARK1,815114,0007T
B AR#A1,612,579,0007T °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
- —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HeE AR%TT ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM RETEREHRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R B0 Al b A1) 307,609 177,283
Adjustments for: HTHFSEEL AR
Finance costs B 75 A N 6 28,276 32,444
Exchange gains, net P& 5 Wz 5 58 (592) (1,998)
Interest income FEUA 5 (500) (240)
Dividend income from equity investments  Z AR BEtEEEEEH A
at FVOCI and financial assets Hith 2 Az 2 BRERE &
at fair value through profit or loss RAnEEFEZBEZE
AABERCZEREEZ
BESNL PN 5 (2,837) (703)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BMEREZEBEEEN
plant and equipment BR 7 12,834 4,220
Loss on termination of a lease mIEH &L 611 101
Fair value losses/(gains) of financial BAREBEAEBEEZEHTA
assets at fair value through BasemEECARER
profit or loss &8 () 7 6,012 (530)
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREHTE
equipment 13 97,989 90,659
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14(a) 4,480 9,302
Amortisation of intangible assets M EERE 17 2,321 2,370
Amortisation of deferred income I RE A 2 58 (2,684) (2,607)
Share of loss of an associate oG —EEEE R RBE 15 513 -
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 FEW R IE R B 7 4,229 1,347
Impairment of property, plant and W - BB RFRERE
equipment 7 6,283 18,241
Write-down of inventories to FEMRZE ] 238,58
net realisable value 7 - 8,535
464,544 338,424
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE Ggm),md (83,076) 87,886
Increase in trade receivables B 5 MW GRIEE N (160,337) (1,461)
Decrease in prepayments and other TR FRIE K H A fE U R IR 4
receivables 23,186 13,667
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B S ZER I, G ) 57,509 (61,771)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HipefN B R EETER
and accruals #in, Crid) 693 (51,710)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHAaERD (5,029) (4,575)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash FRIE (M), m (1,226) 3,136
Short-term loan to an associate MHIE R T E QA (204) -
Cash generated from operations REELMES 296,060 333,596

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

Year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_ZT-—F+-A=t—HIFE

2021 2020
—B=-—fF —ETHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HteE ARETR ARBTTT
Interest received 2 HF S 500 240
Interest paid EARALE (28,040) (26,839)
Income tax paid EASFTISE (33,082) (87,761)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEMERENEFR 235,438 219,236
CASH FLOWS FROM REZBRERERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from equity BBIE AR BEFN=E B 5
investments at FVOCI and financial assets A H 2 mE Uz 2 IRIERE K&
at fair value through profit or loss BARBEAEEEEFHHA
BaceREECRE 2,837 703
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ﬁ%?ﬁ&’ﬂﬁfﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁ
at fair value through profit or loss AEmz & mEEMSHIE 51,587 3,740
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HE&EZRALBETERLHESH
at FVOCI AR EE YR & REE
FriS 58 22,589 -
Purchases of items of property, plant and BE%WE¥ - BENREER
equipment (64,074) (20,824)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEPEE (257) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - HEK&&EEE
property, plant and equipment FRSRR 2,025 1,804
Purchases of equity investments BEETRANEESEAA
designated at FVOCI BHAHMBEKE
fr IR & (7,364) (2,000)
Proceeds from government grants BT fE B PS5k 38 1,982 350
Prepaid land lease payment TERT T A E KIE (809) (18,277)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value  BEZRALEBEGEEE#H)
through profit or loss ATABRZSREE (84,783) (4,859)
Investment in an associate R—EEE AR ZIRE (1,500) -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=t—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M st ARETR ARBTTT
Net cash flows used in investing activities &&EFEFTRAR & RE/F5E (77,767) (89,363)
CASH FLOWS FROM METERESRENRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings FTIGIRITE R R E ALK 31 314,065 373,160
Repurchase of own shares EAEN=R Sl gh) (13,142) (5,738)
Repayment of bank loans and other EEBITERREMER
borrowings 87 (368,827) (342,940)
Principal portion of lease liabilities HEABZAEIHY 31 (1,500) (4,901)
Dividend paid EfRE (40,024) (205,056)
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary — H & — & B A RH O E 30,000 -
Net cash flows used in financing activities EE EZEFTHR & RE/F5E (79,428) (185,475)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH JR&E&RELZEYWEM (RD)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B 78,243 (5,602)
Cash and cash equivalents FUHRe RS ED
at beginning of the year 23 101,240 104,844
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREFEHmFE
changes, net 592 1,998
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERRERBESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 23 180,075 101,240

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*



Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of
the Company is P.O. Box 472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place,
108 South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman lIslands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were involved in the
following principal activities:

o manufacture and sale of dye and agricultural
chemical intermediates

o manufacture and sale of pigment intermediates
o manufacture and sale of battery materials
. others

In the opinion of the Directors, the de facto controller of the
Company is Mr. Ge Yi, who holds 51.97% voting right of the
Company.

B 15 B LB

31 December 2021
A e =

AARFEEER
RRABB—RRASHESTMALZHBERA
Al o AN EFEM R &Y M 3 2P.O. Box
472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, George Town, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman lIslands °

ARBB—FREEBRATR - RER - AR
AINMB AR EEREUTESD

B K R H AL 2 5 o ] BB A AR EE A3

1N
g

. BRI PR EEMIFE

. BM B EEMEE

. Hith

EERE ARRBEREREALCEE
BEZEFBEARNAIST1.97%HIRZRE o
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ERIM=E

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AAREKEEER (&)

160

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

TRMBARESY
ARBEZEZMBERROFERIINT

follows:
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment and Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
principal place of registered interest attributable
Name operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
HREL/
Hh/RItERAS BRTERR/
8 WREIZEEHY ks AREEERERAL  FEER
%
Direct  Indirect
B B
Tsaker Chemical (Hongkong) Co., Limited Hong Kong HKD34,174,000 100 - Investment holding and sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Hongkong) 2 September 2010
VELE (BE) BRAR (REER) (3 34174000570 100 - REBRRGERHE
I
Tsaker Chemical Industry Group (Cangzhou) Hebei, PRC RMB70,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co., Limited (Tsaker Chemical Industry) 28 September 2017
YR TISE (BM) BRAR (FRLI) HEARAANE ARH70,000,0007 - 100 REMR
(B ])
ZE-tEnAZTNR
Hebei Tsaker New Material Technology Hebei, PRC RMB55,000,000 - 90 Production and sale of chemicals
Co., Limited (Tsaker Technology) 23 September 2005
MAFERHRERABRAR (RERHR) RETY AR 55,000,007 - 0 (tEREENHE
ik g
Hebei Tsaker Chemical Co., Limited (Hebei Tsaker) ~ Hebei, PRC RMB 130,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of chemicals
7 May 2013
ETRCBRIERAR (T E) hEAL ARE130,000,0007T - 100 fBnkENEE
“Z-=FRAtA
Shandong Tsaker New Material Co., Limited Shandong, PRC RMB250,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of chemicals
(Shandong Tsaker) 20 May 2014
WRFEHHHARAR (IFHE) REFE ARE250,000,0007T - 100 BmEENHE
“E-mERA=A
Tsaker Technology (Beijing) Co., Limited Beijing, PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100 Technical support and sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Beijing) 17 October 2013
HEME (bR) ARAR (FER) HER ARE100,000,0007T - 100 KRR RnEE
ZE-ZEtAT+A

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2 EEHR A A*



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

MBERMEE

31 December 2021
A e =

ARRAEEER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEMBATESR (&)
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment and Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
principal place of registered  interest attributable
Name operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
AL/
HR/ RULERAS BRALER/
£ NRTELE S ifRs  AREREREAAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
=43 B
Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals Co., Limited ~ Shandong, PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of chemicals and leasing
(Tsaker Dongao) 15 March 2004
LEFERRLEERAT (FERE) " REIE AB#200,000,0007C - 100 ((BRtENEERER
“ZTME=ATAA
Tsaker Chemical (Xiajin) Company Limited Shandong, PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Xiajin) 2 December 2016
PELE (BR) BRAR (VEER) REIE ABR%10,000,0007T - 100 (EREENHE
“E-NETAZH
Tsaker Chemical (Singapore) Private Co., Limited Singapore USD7,500 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Singapore) 8 July 2016
PELE Gimg) LARRAR (FEHIR) il 750057 - 100 {tEmiEE
ZE-~"EtANR
Tsaker Technology (Tianjin) Company Limited Tianjin, PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Tianjin) 5 February 2018
PENR (R2) BRAR (FEAR) hEXE ABR20,000,0007 - 100 f2aEE
- \f_A1H
Hasun Group Limited British Virgin Islands USD10,000 100 - Investment holding
2 November 2017
ZERAES 1000057 100 - RERR
“E-t#+-AZR
Hainan Mingshi Technology Co., Limited Hainan, PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Hainan Mingshi) 19 November 2021
ERALREARA (BRAL) hEsE AJR#5,000,00070 - 100 {2a#E
ZEC-E1-AthA
Hainan Yangshuo Technology Co., Limited Hainan, PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Hainan Yangshuo) 18 November 2021
SHFERRARAR (58FE) HEEE ABR#5,000,00070 - 100 {tEmiEE
ZEC-E1-AtNR

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE#H4%E 161



Notes to Financial Statements
B ERIM=E

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2RARFEEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEMBATER (&)
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment and Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
principal place of registered  interest attributable
Name operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
HREL/
i/ RULERAS BRAEER/
t# NRTELEHE ifRs  ARAREREAAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
ER B
Tsaker Battery Material (Dongguang) Co., Ltd. Hebei, PRC RMB13,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Battery) 23 August 2016
(FREHH (Rx) BRAF (FEER) hESE AR 13,000,000 - 100 BaiE
ZEE\AZt=H
Tsaker (China) Corporate Management Co., Ltd. Beijing, PRC USD10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Tsaker China) 27 November 2017
Y& (hE) CXERERAR (VEPE) hELR 10,000,000£TC - 100 RERR
2 tFT-A=TtA
Beijing Hexu Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. Beijing, PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Technical support and sales of chemicals
(Beijing Hexu) 16 October 2019
IRARRERRERAA (ERATE)* PELR AR410,000,0007 - 100 BlXEMEEREE
2 NETATHE
Tsaker Investment Company Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 100 - Investment holding
(Tsaker Investment) 26 February 2020
VERERRAR (RERE) L 10,0007 100 - REnk
H
Bright Innovation Global Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 - 100 Investment holding
8 September 2021
ABRRES 50,000%7T - 100 REER
ZZZ-FRANA
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law

*%

Registered as limited liability companies under PRC law

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for equity investments,
certain financial assets and notes receivable which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

(early adopted)

The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs are
described below:
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt
with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-
free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest
rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying
amount of financial assets and liabilities when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence
of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new
basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued.
Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements
of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a
temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. These amendments had no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021
extends the availability of the practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic by 12
months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies
to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions
for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at the beginning of the current
accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1
January 2021 and applied the practical expedient
during the year ended 31 December 2021 to all rent
concessions granted by the lessors that affected
only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022 as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic. The amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the
Group as there were no material lease payments
reduced or waived by the lessors as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic during the year.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts? °

Initial Application of
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS
9-Comparative Informatior?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-currenf *

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transactior?

Property, Plant and
Equipment.: Proceeds
before Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 411

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to
extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to
the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that
are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the
guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs
to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exception so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and
did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for transactions related
to leases. Upon initial application of these amendments,
the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items,
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the
contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application
is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s investments in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of an
associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in
an associate.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments, certain
financial assets and notes receivable at fair value at the
end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

()
(i)
(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Machinery and equipment 9% to 19%
Office equipment 18% to 32%
Motor vehicles 23% to 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, machinery
and equipment under construction or installation, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2E£E AR A A"

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

EXEHBRBE (&)

¥ BERREBRITE (&)

—IEYE  WELRE (BRENSER T
MERED) RHERGAEERIHED
BELRKBEMNDE - BRIEER  NEEK
IHHERFERE R B REL EIRmRER
ZEMBENEREE CHEMBHREFR
HAREECZR

ERTRDEERRAELBRS NET
W3R A + BT B AR AR EL S 1R 35 -
WEITE - HABETRMEBERARER
£ R 12 A R A P BB - Sk Rl
Bl ERIREFSBENE  BEER
BB HE -

BIVEE (BER)

P E R BT B E N B R HE R R AR
TR REBAHBRENELEERELRS
HERWEAHNAAEE - BEEENAE
RERDIFERBERKER - JERFHR
BEROETEERRENERNLEFHRA
1ElESH - WHEAPRBTRELEERLRE
RETTRER G - AIEAFEHASERNEF
BENEHBMEHZZE NS RFER
1EIRET e

Bt

BRI AR EBEERRR - LiRE
OERE+F 2 At AT A F AR EH o



2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Technological know-how

Purchased technological know-how is stated at cost less
any impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 13 to 50 years
Office premises and apartments 2 years

for employees
Plant and machinery 2 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date,
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased

the Group assesses whether

significantly since initial recognition. When making the
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical

assessment,

and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low credit
risk simplification. At each reporting date, the Group
evaluates whether the debt investments are considered to
have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external
credit ratings of the debt investments. In addition, the
Group considers that there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
leases liabilities.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial,
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

in which case they are

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

MBERMEE

31 December 2021
—fF+=A=+-H

EXEHBRBE (&)

SRaEs (&)
H#&E
TRHBEZHENEIVARENTHE «

BEHKA S EZ MR E (BHLRER)

MERERIR - FFRBITIREMERERAE
PR R ORI B SR AR & ﬁ%‘#ﬁﬂifﬁz?/a
YAEK - I RIRZR AT - B RRE
BRRAEREERERER amflﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BrEERhBAAR -

%ﬁ%iﬁfc$E<‘§+&H&ZE%$IEETFJT)?E§&5§E&
ERMEAA D EI#BD 2 BB SRR
H o BRNE@H AR ZMBERAA

RIEBIESHEAE

EREENEBEZREEERRITHIER
A% L HERR -

EREERBERR-—ERARGRABRS
RzBERRE  KBHFABZERBEEKR
B - BB RIS AR R R LR
FERBYER -EFAE MARKREE
ZEBIMERPRER -

EHEMITA

i B IRAT RIS BN T 2 AR HE A 3H B R R
TR W HBRFEEEETEE RS
BEFRNFERE TS HEERS
RAEEE  FERNMBERARER

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE#K&E

195



196

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired,
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

less bank overdrafts which are

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain environmental technology equipment for general
repairs of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted by
the Group are recognised based on past experience of
the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present
values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

(a) Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the industrial products.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)

Provision of consultancy and maintenance services

The Group provides consultancy and maintenance
services that are bundled together with the sale of
environmental technology equipment to customers.
The consultancy and maintenance services can
be obtained from other providers and do not
significantly customise or modify the environmental
technology equipment.

Contracts for bundled sales of environmental
technology equipment and consultancy and
maintenance services are comprised of two
performance obligations because the promises to
transfer the environmental technology equipment
and provide consultancy and maintenance services
are capable of being distinct and separately
identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction price is
allocated based on the relative standalone selling
prices of the environmental technology equipment
and consultancy and maintenance services.

Revenue from provision of consultancy and
maintenance services is recognised over time. The
Group also determines that the customer benefits
from the consultancy and maintenance services
evenly throughout the year. Consequently, the
Group concludes that the best measure of progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation over time is a time-based measure
and it recognises revenue on a straight-line basis
throughout the year.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Pension scheme

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are members of the state-sponsored pension scheme
operated by the Mainland China government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for
the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation
rate has been applied to the expenditure on the individual
assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in Note 11 to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends and special dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared, because the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends and special
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends and special
dividends are recognised immediately as liabilities when
they are proposed and declared.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. The
functional currency of the Company is US dollars. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain entities within the
Group are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. Unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during the year, in which case,
the exchange rate prevailing on the dates of transactions
are used.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that
significantly affect the determination of the amount and
timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

(i) Identifying performance obligations in a bundled
sale of environmental technology equipment and
consultancy and maintenance services

The Group provides consultancy and maintenance
services that are sold bundled together with the
sale of environmental technology equipment to
customers. The consultancy and maintenance
services are a promise to transfer services in the
future and are part of the negotiated exchange
between the Group and the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. EESTHE R &S (B)

ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued) R (&)
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Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Identifying performance obligations in a bundled (i)

sale of environmental technology equipment and
consultancy and maintenance services (continued)

The Group determined that both environmental
technology equipment and consultancy and
maintenance services are each capable of being
distinct. The Group also determined that the
promises to transfer the environmental technology
equipment and to provide consultancy and
maintenance services are distinct within the context
of the contract. The environmental technology
equipment and consultancy and maintenance
services are not inputs to a combined item in the
contract. The Group is not providing a significant
integration service because the presence of
the environmental technology equipment and
consultancy and maintenance services together
in the contract does not result in any additional or
combined functionality and neither the equipment
nor the consultancy and maintenance modifies or
customises the other. In addition, the environmental
technology equipment and consultancy and
maintenance services are not highly interdependent
or highly interrelated, because the Group would
be able to transfer the environmental technology
equipment even if the customer declined
consultancy and maintenance and would be able
to provide consultancy and maintenance services
in relation to equipment sold by other distributors.
Consequently, the Group has allocated a portion
of the transaction price to the environmental
technology equipment and the consultancy and
maintenance services based on relative standalone
selling prices.

RERRBEHERIEE (B)

AN B R R IR AR BRI AR 4 R R A 7 3
NMIBHRS A T @5 o A BT ER
AN EGEEERIR %
REFRAREEREENES ° RIR
T 5% 1 B R 1 7 ) R 38 A AR 7S I 3E
BHEGETHE ANBAELE - AEE
WRIBREABEERYE REAGH
IR AR B9l 5% 4 2 [B) 74 o) S B A R 7S
Mﬁﬁﬁ E ST BN A I

BREEARBARRRTIEREE
AESTES o LI RRFEMZME
HRARERRGSTIESEREE B
ﬁmfﬁﬁﬁw*%l%ha@ﬁ%
BHRARBRRY  AEEEEER
RILNT RS - WA ﬁﬁ@’%ﬁﬁ%
MR EREBR R EHERS - Bt -
AEEZRDAEBEEIRIIRS
BRNIR R BT A8 M DA R 7B 7 BB 4 AR
% o
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Determining the timing of satisfaction of consultancy
and maintenance services

The Group concluded that revenue from consultancy
and maintenance services is to be recognised over
time because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
The fact that another entity would not need to re-
perform the consultancy and maintenance services
that the Group has provided to date demonstrates
that the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the Group’s performance
as it performs.

The Group determined that the input method is
the best method in measuring the progress of the
consultancy and maintenance services because
there is a direct relationship between the Group’s
effort (i.e., labour hours incurred) and the transfer
of services to the customer. The Group recognises
revenue on the basis of the labour hours expended
relative to the total expected labour hours to
complete the services.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*

Notes to Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Management’s estimation is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with tax planning strategies (Note
28).

Notes to Financial Statements

MBERMEE

31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and prepayments and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables and prepayments and other receivables.
The provision rates are based on ageing for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables and prepayments and other receivables
is disclosed in Note 19 and Note 21 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Property, plant and equipment — recoverable amount

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, each
asset or cash-generating unit is evaluated every reporting
period to determine whether there are any indications of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the
recoverable amount is performed and an impairment loss is
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an
asset or cash-generating group of assets is measured at
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use.

Fair value is determined as the amount that would be
obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties.

Value in use is generally determined as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows of those expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset in its present form
and its eventual disposal. Present values are determined
using a risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate appropriate to
the risks inherent in the asset. Future cash flow estimates
are based on expected production and sales volumes,
selling prices (considering current and historical prices,
price trends and related factors) and operating costs. This
policy requires management to make these estimates and
assumptions which are subject to risk and uncertainty;
hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances
will alter these projections, which may impact on the
recoverable amount of the assets. In such circumstances,
part of or the entire carrying value of the assets may be
impaired and the impairment would be charged against
profit or loss.

Notes to Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Property, plant and equipment — estimated useful lives
and residual values

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values (if applicable) and
consequently related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation/
amortisation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, and it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual values and, therefore, in
depreciation/amortisation expense in future periods.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has four (2020:
four) reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the dye and agricultural chemical intermediates
segment produces dye intermediate products for
use in the production of dye related products and
products for use in the production of agricultural
chemicals;

(b) the pigment intermediates segment produces
pigment intermediate products for use in the
production of pigments;

(c) the battery materials segment engages in the
manufacture and sale of battery materials; and

(d) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the
Group’s environmental technology consultancy
services which engages in environmental protection.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated mainly based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, finance costs and
other unallocated expenses of the Company and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

The measurement of segment assets and liabilities is the
same as that of the total assets and total liabilities for the
consolidated statement of financial position, excluding
unallocated corporate assets and liabilities, as these assets
and liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Notes to Financial Statements

—%

B AR

31 December 2021
——%®+=ZA=+—H

REDHER (£)

BE=

R

B=+—HLEEE

Segment revenue (Note 5): PRbE (#i25)
Revenues from external customers RENPZP AN 1,252,422 353,566 173,486 1,632 1,781,106
Intersegment sales ABREE 11,521 - - - 11,521
Total revenue ey 1,263,943 353,566 173,486 1,632 1,792,627
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment sales APEEEL S (11,521)
Revenue Wi 1,781,106
Segment results ET | 276,655 56,920 (2,366) (6,39) 324,813
Inclucing: i
Interest income FSWA 133 35 4 68 240
Finance costs ipf9 (24,513) (5,167) (13) (349) (30,042)
Reconciliation %
Interest income WA 260
Finance costs BIEmA 1,766
Elimination of intersegment results AHHEEYE (1,442)
Corporate and other unallocated gains CEREMR AR NE (17,788)
Profit before tax Bt AT&R 307,609
Segment assets SBEE 2,053,536 286,790 401,082 93,520 2,834,928
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment receivables PBRENTELY (578,448)
Corporate and other unallocated assets tEREMKATLEE 317,005
Elimination of inventories due to unrealised gains RAZRbEMHERE (5,004)
Total assets BEGH 2,568,481
Segment liabilities AH8E 562,084 120,919 482,786 4,149 1,169,938
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment payables DORENTENE (578,448)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties tEREMFAREE 85,565
Total liabilties BESE 677,055
Other segment information A HER
Share of loss of an associate BENTEE - - - 513 513
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss REENEINHESE 2,074 1,205 6,333 - 10,512
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 63,488 15,075 22,700 3,521 104,790
Capital expenditure* EN’H 63, 256 6,094 27,176 - 96,526
Investment in an associate —HBERARE - - 987 987
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BARZBIEAENE  BEREHEURER
plant and equipment and intangible assets. BE o

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t EEEAR A T



OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

Notes to Financial Statements

B E R

31 December 2021
A e =

REDHER (&

BE_2_2H+_A=t—-HALHFE

Dye and
agricultural
chemical Pigment Battery
intermediates  intermediates materials Others  Total segments
MREE i}
ettt BRTRHE i Hh HHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue (Note 5): AR (is)
Revenues from exteral customers ReENSEPHE 1,005,412 254,076 8,287 7549 1,275,074
Intersegment sales PREHE 8,841 = - 673 9514
Total revenue elbesy 1,014,253 254,076 8,237 8,222 1,284,788
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment sales NRHEEHE (9,514)
Revenue W 1,275,274
Segment results GRS 187,091 52,102 (52,412) (8,725) 178,056
Including; B
Interest income HERA 107 2% 7 - 138
Finance costs BHBAA (24,011) (2,93) (19) (1) (26,954)
Reconciliation %
Interest income LN 102
Finance costs HBRA (5,490)
Realisation of intersegment results AREFEER 584
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ¥ REMK AR 4,031
Profit before tax I BATER 177,283
Segment assets rHEE 1,883,017 319,849 299,401 100,650 2,602,917
Reconcilation %
Elimination of intersegment receivables yorlilid GUEEs (621,460)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMANEEE 265,219
Elimination of inventories due to unrealised gains RAERNEMURTE (3,588)
Total assets BELE 2,343,088
Segment liabilities AHEE 613,316 99,977 384,116 3,075 1,100,484
Reconcilation %
Elimination of intersegment payables AEHENZRELH (621,460)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties tEREMKARERE 84,772
Total liabilities BREE 663,796
Other segment information HpAHER
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss RERNEIRGELR 7,962 (5) 20,166 - 28,123
Depreciation and amortisation mEREH 60,161 14,897 22,483 3618 101,159
Capital expenditure® BREY 63,615 12219 12,384 = 88,218

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets.

* BEARXBRRNEDE  BERREBA
NMETLEE -
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4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

REDHER (£)

Geographical information 1h 32 5

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KEINIBEFHK
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTIT
Mainland China AR B K e 1,209,785 866,378
India ENE 161,030 119,126
Indonesia ElZ ferate 94,476 64,092
Brazil pric) 74,569 33,696
Germany = 73,998 61,551
United States EH 58,100 43,298
Japan SN 31,709 10,055
Taiwan, China RE A 30,975 10,918
Spain T 28,654 38,414
Turkey +HH 5,710 6,467
Pakistan B R AT 4,978 =
Korea =45 2,109 1,128
Italy BERA - 4,054
Other countries/regions HBER = 5,013 16,097
1,781,106 1,275,274

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets are substantially
located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

In 2021, revenue of RMB224,803,000 (2020:
RMB196,775,000) was derived from sales from the dye and
agricultural chemical intermediates segment to a single
customer.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue from contracts with customers

(a) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Segments

2%

Types of goods or services
Sale of chemical intermediates

ENaRBER
HELBRTHERE I

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
—F-—%+=A=1+—H

5. Wi - H AR K
REEEFFTM 28K
(a) AR EH

BE-Z-_—F+=-A=+—HLHF
E

and battery materials 1,252,422 353,566 173,486 - 1,779,474
Provision of consultancy and REFARBERE

maintenance services - - - 1,632 1,632
Total revenue from contracts REERPZANH

with customers [hentats 1,252,422 353,566 173,486 1,632 1,781,106
Geographical markets WETS
Mainland China REAE 836,795 197,872 173,486 1,632 1,209,785
India e 80,712 80,318 - - 161,030
Indonesia HERAT 94,476 - - - 94,476
Brazil i 74,569 - - - 74,569
Germany B 73,656 342 - - 73,998
United States 35 18,200 39,900 - - 58,100
Japan BA - 31,709 - - 31,709
Taiwan, China mElRE 30975 - - - 30975
Spain AT 28,654 - - - 28,654
Turkey +E# 5,710 - - - 5,710
Pakistan BHEE 4,978 - - - 4,978
Korea 421 2,109 - - - 2,109
Other countries/regions HWEZ /e 1,588 3,425 - - 5,013
Total revenue from contracts REEEFILZANM

with customers Wi 1,252,422 353,566 173,486 1,632 1,781,106
Timing of revenue recognition WERDNE
Goods transferred at a point in time~ NEABEZEZ 7 & 1,252,422 353,566 173,486 - 1,779,474
Services transferred over time REEREE 2 R - - - 1,632 1,632
Total revenue from contracts REERFFUZAHM

with customers Wiz 1,252,422 353,566 173,486 1,632 1,781,106
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes to Financial Statements
B ERIM=E

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

5. Wi - EtBRARWKE ()

REREFITLZENN RS ()
(a) BRFWEEH (&)
BE-—T-TF+-A=t+—-HLHF

E
Dye and
agricultural
chemical Pigment Battery
intermediates  intermediates materials Others Total
IHREE
LERThRHE BHARE Eulve £t A%
Segments 28 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AREFT ARETR AREFR
Types of goods or services ENABRHEY
Sale of chemical intermediates HEBRTHEREME
and battery materials 1,005,412 254,076 8,237 - 1,267,725
Sale of environmental technology ~ HEBRR MR
equipment - - - 2,938 2,938
Provision of consultancy and REEFARBERE
maintenance services - - - 4,611 4,611
Total revenue from contracts RAEERPLL AN
with customers Was 1,005,412 254,076 8,237 7,549 1,275,274
Geographical markets BT
Mainland China HE AR 695,649 154,943 8,237 7,549 866,378
India g 45814 73,312 - - 119,126
Indonesia HERRED 64,092 = = - 64,092
Brazil i 33,696 - = - 33,696
Germany 1BE 61,551 - - - 61,551
United States e 28,695 14,603 - - 43,298
Japan BA - 10,055 - - 10,055
Taiwan, China mElRE 10,918 = = = 10,918
Spain i3 38,414 = = = 38,414
Turkey TEH 6,467 - - - 6,467
Korea =1l 1,128 = - S 1,128
Italy N 4,054 = = = 4,054
Other countries/regions EER /R 14,934 1,163 - - 16,097
Total revenue from contracts REEERFLL AN/
with customers leay ot 1,005,412 254,076 8,237 7,549 1,275,274
Timing of revenue recognition hERARNE
Goods transferred at a point in time X ERZ#Z 2 &4 1,005,412 254,076 8,237 2,938 1,270,663
Services transferred over time RERREE 2 R - = = 4,611 4,611
Total revenue from contracts REARPIULEHH
with customers Wi 1,005,412 254,076 8,237 7549 1,275,274
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

Notes to Financial Statements

MBERMEE

31 December 2021
A e =

5. Wi - EtBRARWKE (4F)

REREFITLZEHNNKE (&)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (a) AN mER ()
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TREINAREHHEBRO W E
recognised in the current reporting period that were B ERBERRESHIAHNEE
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBETTT
Revenue recognised that FFAREHTE OB ED
was included in contract B R
liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:
Sale of chemical intermediates HELBmhEE 9,083 12,280
Consultancy and maintenance
services B SRIB A RIS = 3,430
9,083 15,710
Performance obligations (b) EBHEF

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of goods, including chemical intermediates,
battery materials and environmental technology
equipment

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the industrial products and payment is
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery,
except for new customers and small-sized
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

FRASEBRHNETONER B
T

HERY (BRAIEBRTEE T
B RIRIRBAM AR )

BHAEARRNIEERERIT X
fF— MR RS #E30E0H H H - B
FEPRNHEEBEERARK
9|\ °
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (continued)
Provision of consultancy and maintenance services

Revenue from the provision of consultancy and
maintenance services is recognised over time and
on a straight-line basis throughout the year.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations (partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

Wz - H AR s (&)

REREFITLZEHANKE (&)

(b)

IBRIEE (&)
FELH ) R AERIRTE

TR K 7R BB M AR P 1S Uk 2t e 22 By
MR - WNEEFEERERERE

=7
o °©

RTZRA=+—8 BEZETHTE
HNEE (BORBEH) WX HEEW
™

2021 2020
—E-EHE T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBEFTT
Amounts expected to be TR ARE 22 ¢
recognised as revenue:
Within one year —&FR 151 187

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations which
are expected to be recognised as revenue after
one year relate to consultancy and maintenance
services, of which the performance obligations
are to be satisfied within two years. All the other
amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*

BN —FEER /R Z i % T
TERAOBENR S RERANES
ARF5HERR - R BORESEMFER
ZRK BB THTRAOBENMAR
X5 EBEAAN —FAEZ /K

N2
s o
il



Notes to Financial Statements

B E R

31 December 2021

T —F+=ZHA=+—H
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. & - Httk AR W= (&)
(continued)
Other income and gains H AU A R W
2021 2020
—B=-—fF —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREET T
Bank interest income RITH BUA 500 240
Dividend income from equity BARBETEEEEZFH AR
investments at FVOCI and 2w 2 IR E RIZA
financial assets at fair value HEESAEEHESFHT AR
through profit or loss ZERMEEZKREWA 2,837 703
Fair value (losses)/gains, net: AREE (BE), /IR %sE -
Financial assets at fair value ?ﬁ’&fﬂﬁfﬁ.ﬁriﬂﬁ FEhET AR
through profit or loss mL BB E (6,012) 530
Government grants* BT Bh* 7,915 10,054
Sale of materials and scrap SHEM B R EER 21,434 2,847
Others Eh 1,001 814
27,675 15,188
* For the year ended 31 December 2021, government * BE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HLHF

grants amounting to RMB7,915,000 (2020:
RMB10,054,000) were recognised as income for the
year necessary to compensate the costs and facilitate
the Group’s development. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies attached to the grants.

E - BB AR ®7,915,000T (=
T -FT4F : AR¥10,054,00070) fER
BERNKA - BUAERKARIEEASE
BER 3R o ZEHEYEME T RE
ARk AETE -

FINANCE COSTS 6. BIEAA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: WERADITIAT
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREETTT
Interest on bank loans and RITER R EMERFE
other borrowings 24,690 30,023
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 139 586
Other finance costs A B RS A AR 3,447 3,403
Less: Interest capitalised B BAEFE = (1,568)
28,276 32,444

The weighted average interest rate of capitalisation for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was Nil (2020: 7.44%).

HE-_T-_—F+_-_A=+—HIEFEERK
ft&BHNEFHFERES (ZT_FF :
7.44%) ©
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Notes to Financial Statements

M ERMEE

31 December 2021

_=_

—Ft+-A=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7.  BRBIADEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AN EA R B ATS R TR (GEA) AT
(crediting): BIEBH
2021 2020
B —ETHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR®TT ARBT T
Cost of inventories sold EEFERKAR 1,240,226 827,875
Cost of services provided R RS A 584 2,064
Depreciation of property, Y B RERETE
plant and equipment 13 97,989 90,659
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEBERE 14(a) 4,480 9,302
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 17 2,321 2,370
Research and development costs LI WIN 26,392 25,946
Lease payments not included in the T AHEEEFEN
measurement of lease liabilities HERH 14(c) 2,840 2,097
Auditor’s remuneration % BN B 2,180 3,460
Employee benefit expense EERNAXZ (TBE
(excluding directors’ and BEERFETHRAENTE
chief executive’s remuneration): ) :
Wages, salaries and welfare IE&  #Fa2KkER 109,457 96,254
Pension and other social insurances**  iR{Kk% & H bt @Rk 25,190 9,719
Exchange gains, net [ 3, Uk 25 7 58 (2,265) (7,995)
Dividend income from equity BAREENEBEEEHH
investments at FVOCI and AE 2R E 2 RER
financial assets at fair value ﬁ&ﬂz"‘tfﬂﬁd‘gﬂﬁ
through profit or loss BEit A EBERceREE
Z%%Hﬁl?\ (2,837) (703)
Impairment losses on property, Y RE REERE
plant and equipment [E518 13 6,283 18,241
Loss on disposal of items of property, HE&W¥ - KERKEEB
plant and equipment* o Ei= 12,834 4,220
Impairment of trade receivables* B S EWTIERE 19 4,229 1,347
Write-down of inventories to net GFEMREEEFE
realisable value 18 - 8,535
Donation expenses* BERZ = 3,300
Compensation for termination of Y BEMIBEHEREELD
property, plant and equipment B IERE A
purchase contracts® 81 9,609
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NRBEERE (W) F
5B
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEAEAEZS
profit or loss AAERCsERMEE 6,012 (530)
Share of loss of an associate ENREE 513 =
Bank interest income RITHFE A 500 240
i These losses and expenses were recorded as other * ZEEERAXE G AGEMBRERD
expenses to the consolidated financial statements. HMA -
b There were no forfeited contributions that may be used b BEASEEREE EHEHE(\ 3 ﬁfﬁﬁ@i

by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions. No forfeited contributions were
also available at 31 December 2021 and 2020 for the
Group to reduce contribution payables in future years,

if applicable.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*
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Notes to Financial Statements

BRI

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

=

EERERITHRASHEHH

31 December 2021
#+=-—A=+—H

RAFERELETRE - BERARIE
383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c)(NfE R AR (BB E
ENEER) ROIEHMREMBREZ2EER

TRITBRABFMEZIOT

Group
EH
2020
—ET-EF
RMB’000
AREFIT
Fees we 798 788
Other emoluments: HEMME
Salaries, allowances and e R REYMEF
benefits in kind 3,461 3,933
Performance related bonuses* RIBIEAL™ 779 768
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 299 236
4,539 4,937
5,337 5,725

*

Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined as a percentage of the
profit after tax of the Group.

* ARRETEZAERREANEERT
BENE—EB D LLETE ZIEAL »
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

(a)

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung AR R S =
Mr. Zhu Lin RIREE
Mr. Yu Miao FEEE

B AR

31 December 2021
—F-_—%t+-A=1+—H

ESRTIETHRABNEHM (&)

BYFHTES

EREMBYERTES SR
mF :

2020
—E—EE

—= =

RMB’000
ARETT

199 194
200 200
200 200

599 594

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2020:Nil).

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2E£E AR A A"

RER - WEENBIIFNTEEN
HitB e (T —F4F : &) -



8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive directors and non-executive

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
A e =

8. EIRIBTHAEBNFH (&)

(b) HTESKFVTES

directors
2021 —E--F
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Ge Yi XA - 2,362 393 107 2,862
Mr. Bai Kun HERE - 864 206 85 1,155
Ms. Zhang Nan Ei e - 235 180 107 522
- 3,461 779 299 4,539
Non-executive director: FHTES
Mr. Fontaine Alain Vincent Fontaine Alain Vincent
TE 199 - - - 199
199 - - - 199
Total SR 199 3,461 779 299 4,738

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£Ei#fs% 225
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B ERIM=E

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. HERIETHAEWNHM (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITEERIDTEE (&)
directors (continued)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
i
B R iy N
we ENER REEA HE e =i
2020 it i3 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETL  ARBTE  AREBTR  ARETRT  ARETE

Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Ge Yi XA - 2,848 407 125 3,380
Mr. Bai Kun REXE - 898 217 49 1,164
Ms. Zhang Nan RELT = 187 144 62 393
- 3,933 768 236 4,937
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Fontaine Alain Vincent Fontaine Alain Vincent
it 194 - - - 194
194 - - - 194
Total Chl 194 3,933 768 236 5,131
There was no arrangement under which a director REAN - WERESHEXRERESE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during AFHMO L (ZEFF - &) -
the year (2020: Nil).
There were no emoluments paid by the Group to, or RER - ANEBWERANQRESK
receivable by, the directors or the five highest paid AR EH M A L5 3501 5 e Uk B
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining SERMAREES R INAREER
the Group nor as compensation for loss of office W RENS BRI 2 fE (ZE=F
during the year (2020: Nil). Ffm)e
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Notes to Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two directors (2020: two directors), details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020:
three) highest paid employees who are not directors of the
Company are as follows:

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

TEREFHES

REANLERSFTHERREREES (=
T_ZTF MBER) AHARAESFHN
BT=R(CZE_ZF: =%) KoFME
BRFARNFMFBOT

2020
—TEF
RMB’000
AREET T

Salaries, allowances and e A REYMER
benefits in kind 1,760 824
Performance related bonuses FRIRTEAT 1,520 1,770
Pension scheme contributions RIRS IR 172 78
3,452 2,672

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FMNFUATHENFEERSHMERRN
ABIOE -

Number of employees

Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR¥1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AFR#1,000,001TE
AE#1,500,0007C

EEAY
2020
—E-EF
- 2
3 1
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10.

INCOME TAX
Cayman Islands

Under the current income tax laws of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is not subject to tax on any income or capital
gain.

Hong Kong

Under the current income tax laws of Hong Kong,
companies are subject to Hong Kong profits tax at 16.5%
on assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong. One subsidiary of the Group is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020:
16.5%).

Singapore

Under the current income tax laws of Singapore, companies
are subject to Singapore profits tax at 17.0% on assessable
profits arising in or derived from Singapore.

Mainland China

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to income tax at 25% unless otherwise specified.

Under the prevailing PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and the relevant regulations, any dividends paid by the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries from their earnings derived
after 1 January 2008 to the Company’s Hong Kong
subsidiary are subject to a 5% or 10% PRC dividend
withholding tax, depending on the applicability of the
Sino-Hong Kong tax treaty. For the Group, the historical
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on retained earnings distributable by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2E£E AR A A"

Notes to Financial Statements

10.

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

Fri&%
EHS

RIFFSBERRITAF/IE - AARIHBA
MEMPAHE R SRBHRTHE

b

REBEEBBRITAEHE  RARARCESE
HE R B E SRR RFIE16.5% M K
BB AFNEH - AEE—RHWB QR AT
BHMAFNETAERER - ZHBARN
#2,000,0005 7T (= Z& =~ T4 : 2,000,000
BIT) R HEMIA8.25% (T — T4 :
8.25%) MBI KA - MR T ME AR B 7 A
16.5% (ZZE-T4F : 16.5%) HF KRBT -

R

RIEFT I IRITAASBOE - RBIZABLEF N
3% BE A 3K 2K B T DN A B SR At A #217.0%
BTt R AT DD M1 A

EE PN

AN B AR B K B Y B A R R 3225 % HY T K
BRRER (RBREERIN) °

BIRIRITH B EMREREREBRAER -
RZZZENF—A—B% ARQEZFEHK
BRRAEAAR 2 EBHBARMESMS 2T
a8 ERFITE 2R EHBHM5%K10%
(RIFPBRIHENBERIBRIME) A E
EETEIR - MAKEME - BAEBEAKRE
B5% - At - AEERE TS NF—F—
HEAZBFAZERTEML ZHERQ R
AT OIRZREBEFAEBNRZER -



10.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% & BB &

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FifE® (&)
Mainland China (continued) B ARE (4F)
2020
—E_THF
RMB’000
ARBETIT
Current — Mainland China BNER — FR B oK B
Charge for the year FRZH 61,591 40,474
Underprovision in prior years BAFEREBETE 622 733
Current — Elsewhere BNHR — Hfhith 5 8,385 1,475
Deferred (note 28) IEIE (B7228) 9,773 (9,998)
Total tax charge for the year FRBIBL LB 80,371 32,684
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit HBPRBEARE (KAAF KIS E AR ETE
before tax at the statutory rate for Mainland China, in which Hb) SR TE R R EE BB B AT F E A e FLE
the majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled, BYEIRERM RS EN B HEREWD
to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: T:
2020
—TCTF
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Profit before tax B 5% BT A 307,609 177,283
Tax at the statutory income REFEFMEHBE(25%) 5t E Y
tax rate (25%) | 76,902 44,321
Effect of different tax rates MEREZENTE (381) (1,429)
Non-deductible expenses AT 40 R 2 5,992 1,724
Income not subject to tax BERT AU (2,353) (2,978)
Additional deduction of research and T B B AN AN AT 408
development costs (7,128) (4,159)
Adjustments in respect of current A R iE 1 BRI B0 BN EA R TE B F 2
tax of previous periods 622 733
Temporary differences (including RERZERMZ5 (B
tax losses) not recognised TIEEE) 133 1,198
Withholding tax AR 6,584 (6,726)
Total income tax expense FriStiFz 5 80,371 32,684
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11.

Notes to Financial Statements

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

DIVIDENDS 11. KA
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR® T ARBEFTT
Interim dividend approved and HeofE & 32 A B9 R HR AR B,
paid of RMB0.039 per ordinary share TR B
(2020: RMBO0.048 per ordinary share)  AR¥0.0397T
(ZB=ZTF:
BRE @AR
AR#0.0487T) (a) 40,024 49,591
Final dividend proposed after the end  R¥REEAERBEIR
of the reporting period of REARR B
RMB0.068 per ordinary share BRI Rk
(2020: Nil) AR#0.0687T
(ZZZF &) (b) 69,785 i
109,809 49,591

On 20 August 2021, the Board declared an
interim dividend of RMB0.039 per ordinary share
(six months ended 30 June 2020: RMBO0.048
per ordinary share), amounting to a total of
approximately RMB40,024,000 (six months ended
30 June 2020: RMB49,591,000).

The Directors recommend a final dividend of
RMBO0.068 (2020: Nil) per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2021, amounting
to a total of approximately RMB69,785,000 (2020:
Nil). The proposed dividend was not recognised
as a liability as at the end of the reporting period,
since it is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*

R-BE-_—FNA-+RH BFes
K P ER AR B AR B AR A R 50.039
T (BT _ZTFA=+tHLEA
&7 - FREBIRARE0.0487T) -
H5+ 495 AR #40,024,0007T (=
—E-TEXNA=ZFHIEANMEA A
R#:49,591,0007T) °

BEEEAREE—_ZE-_—Ft+=-A=
T—HALFERGAERETRYT
A A R#0.068T (Z T T F
) BN B AR69,785,0007T
ZEZFF  F) c ARARFARAT
BREREERITHRFAFRS it
B RRRERBREHRRBERAE
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12.

Notes to Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,027,925,000 (2020:
1,035,488,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

B E R

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

BAREERESEEAELERE
F
ERERBF ARG AR L BERERT
EAELMFRZNEFRE ZETERERM
#E 15 #1,027,925,0000% (= T = T 4F :
1,035,488,000/% ) 7T &

BE_ T - FR-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=1+—
ALtFE AEBVEABEHEFECE
BITLEA -

IREAREHEF LN T A -

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary &R Al & @R EZREA AEN
equity holders of the parent (RMB’000) FRmH (ARBTFT) 226,239 144,875
Shares KRG EE
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EGRERZFIH
shares in issue during the year used FAE BT LB INKE
in the basic earnings per share Eg (TR
calculation ('000) 1,027,925 1,035,488
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021:  RZZ-FF+-F=+-BR

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
F#+=-—A=+—H

=

13. Y% BEERE

Z--5-f-R:
Cost KA 510,590 844,203 17,268 4,441 627,954 2,004,456
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  EHTERRE (126,131)  (377,518) (14,700) (2,345) (6,615)  (527,309)
Net carrying amount FHFE 384,459 466,685 2,568 2,096 621,339 1,477,147
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated \E--%-F-R
depreciation and impairment 1 2 E RAE 384,459 466,685 2,568 2,096 621,339 1,477,147
Additions NE 4,861 11,378 620 622 78,788 96,269
Disposals e (1,585) (4,279) (78) (223) (8694)  (14,859)
Depreciation provided during the year FERREMNITE (27,943) (68,177) (1,140) (729) - (97,989)
Impairment HE - (6,283) - - - (6,283)
Transfers #HE 47,946 57,328 49 - (105,323) -
At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated ~ R=ZE-—F+-F=+—8"
depreciation and impairment B 2AHERRE 407,738 456,652 2,019 1,766 586,110 1,454,285
At 31 December 2021: AZE--F+-fA=1+-H:
Cost KA 560,585 884,647 16,931 4,754 502,725 2,059,642
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  ZEHTEREE (152,847)  (427,995) (14,912) (2,988) (6,615)  (605,357)
Net carrying amount BEFE 407,738 456,652 2,019 1,766 586,110 1,454,285
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Impairment assessment in 2021

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, each
asset or cash-generating unit (“CGU”) is evaluated at least
annually at the end of each reporting period, to determine
whether there are any indications of impairment. If any
such indications of impairment exist, a formal estimate of
the recoverable amount is performed.

As at 31 December 2021, attributed to a sluggish
market demand and a continuously insufficient capacity
utilisation rate in the CNT CGU (a production line in the
dye and agricultural chemical intermediates segment
manufacturing CNT), management has performed
impairment assessments by comparing the carrying values
of the assets of this CGU with its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount was estimated based on its value
in use (“VIU") as determined by discounting the future
cash flows to be generated from the continuing use of
this CGU with a pre-tax discount rate of approximately
14%. Key assumptions used for the VIU calculations are
unit selling price, production volumes, unit cost as well as
residual values. Based on the above-mentioned impairment
assessments, the recoverable amounts, carrying amounts
and impairment provision for the CNT CGU as at 31
December 2021 are as follows:

CNT CGU CNTREEA SN

Notes to Financial Statements

13.

BRI

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

ME - BERRE (&)

S
RIKEE2 SRR - SEAERALE
£BE (REELRL) ELSFRER
SRR T - AR RT AR
5% - WHREAEHAATS - AT
W (T ER ikt

RZZT-—&F+-F=+—H aARHHEE
AR KA BCNTIR £ E A B (BUECNTH)
AR REBENLERTEES TN —IREE
B)WMEERFNARBETRE  EEBHLR
ZREEAENEENFEEERENKE S
B EITRERG - AIRESENIZRISE
FAZECELBNESANRKRRSREMN
RETNFEREE ((FREMEB] K& &
AR RN B14% - FRAEBEFEMAEE
BREABBEMERE B2 BUKAREE-
BIE EAURE(E  CNTEREEELEMR
T F+-A=+—HzZUWELE Kk
EERRERBDT

8,166

13,244 5,078
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Impairment assessment in 2021 (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, since certain equipment of
the TCCBM production line (a production line in pigment
intermediates segment manufacturing TCCBM) would be
no longer used, an impairment provision of RMB1,205,000
was made based on the carrying amount. The carrying
amount and impairment provision as at 31 December 2021
are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
I E R

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

13. % BERR®E (&)

SR -FRERME (B)

RZBE-Z—F+_A=+—8B  #1R
TCCBMA E 4 (2L #TCCBMAY 8 £ Fh
OB —IREER) 2B TREFTHE
A AR¥1,205000C 2 REEEHER
BEEHEEE R—_E-—F+_A=+—
B REERRERENT

Impairment
provision
B
RMB’000

—T-TF

Certain equipment of the TCCBM TCCBMAEKZ & TiRiE

production line

1,205 1,205

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t E2E@EHER D F*



13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements
B ERMEE
31 December 2021

—E-—F+=-_A=+—H

13. % BERR®E (&)

(continued)
Machinery
and Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT BEREE BR%E REd fEIR CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020:  —E-AE+-A=+-AR
“EC-EE-f-R:
Cost KA 475,688 759,899 17,180 3,104 732,054 1,987,925
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 ERAE (101475)  (314,102) (13,902) (1,595) (35533)  (466,607)
Net carrying amount REFE 374,213 445,797 3,278 1,509 696,521 1,521,318
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated R-2-%%-A-RB"
depreciation and impairment B REHERAE 374,213 445,797 3,278 1,509 696,521 1,521,318
Additions RE 34 9,441 401 1,669 59,208 70,753
Disposals E (52) (2,831) (40) (322) (2,779) (6,024)
Depreciation provided during the year EnRERTE (24,886) (63,845) (1,168) (760) = (90,659)
Impairment Ul = (11,626) = = (6,615) (18,241)
Transfers & 35,150 89,749 97 - (124,996) -
At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated ~ R-Z-FF+-A=+-8"
depreciation and impairment TR 2T ERAE 384,459 466,685 2,568 2,09 621,339 1477,147
At 31 December 2020; R_Z-EE+-A=1+-R:
Cost A 510,590 844,203 17,268 4,441 627954 2,004,456
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Z5HTERUAE (126,131)  (377,518) (14,700) (2,345) (6,615)  (527,309)
Net carrying amount FAFE 384,459 466,685 2,568 2,096 621339 1,477,147
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13.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 25

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Impairment assessment in 2020

As at 31 December 2020, certain equipment of the
battery materials production line would be no longer used
along with the upgrade of the production techniques.
An impairment provision of RMB11,626,000 was made
based on fair values less costs to sell. The fair value was
derived from market quotations. The fair value less costs
to sell, carrying amount and impairment provision as at 31
December 2020 are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

13.

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
—F+=-A=+—H

_7_

ME - BERRE (&)

—EZFFESMS
RZE-ZTF+-_A=+—8 ' BHMRE
ESRZETRENEEIEALETIBME

o AR¥11,626,00070 2 B (BB T ER
ARBEREERAIEL - AR EEDIRE
MEHRE -HR_T=ZTF+=—_A=+—08 "

ARBEEREERA  REERREREED

-

Fair value less Carrying Impairment
costs to sell amount provision
DA BEREERE RHEE B LR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT ARETT AREBFT
Certain equipment of the EEESRZET
battery materials RN
production line 300 11,926 11,626
Full impairment of RMB6,615,000 was provided for a DMAS HMAAEFILBE—KRIBESR  TEEY

production line’s construction cost, due to management’s
decision of ceasing its construction.

EARD R

R ZARE R RIEKA - AR ¥6,615,000
T REEMHR TRERE
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Notes to Financial Statements

MBERMEE

31 December 2021

—F+=H=+—H
LEASES 14. #HE
The Group as a lessee AEBEERABEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant REEHERRNEEEZHE RS
and machinery, office premises, apartments for employees M- - BI A AEREMBELZEER E’ﬁﬁf
and other equipment used in its operations. Lump sum BH) o REBE TMRRIEL — IR IR FRIA R
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land FEREE T - HARBI13E50F - BIERZ
from the owners with lease periods of 13 to 50 years, ETHHEENGER  AEEEFESESNE
and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms AIRIE - BEREBRARPAMERETIAR
of these land leases. The leases of plant and machinery, BEREMBEBOHEBR2E - —ME * A&
office premises, apartments for employees and other EETARAEBE I TEZRSBRE
equipment have lease terms of 2 years. Generally, the BEE o
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group.
(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) REHESE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use REBGAEEENREERFAE
assets and the movements during the year are as Ep N
follows:
Office
premises
and
apartments
Leasehold for Plant and
land employees machinery Total
WMAMER
HELi BIRE T K e 28 =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETTT AREBTIT AREBTT
As at 1 January 2020 N_E_TF—H—H 75,856 783 7,268 83,907
Addition NE 18,277 1,349 - 19,626
Lease termination HEKRIE = (388) = (388)
Depreciation charge WEMRX (4,498) (1,170) (3,634) (9,302)
As at 31 December 2020 R-_ZE-_FF+_H
and 1 January 2021 =+—HK
T —F—HF—H 89,635 574 3,634 93,843
Addition NE = 809 = 809
Lease termination HAERIE - - (2,725) (2,725)
Depreciation charge WERX (2,801) (770) (909) (4,480)
As at 31 December 2021 R=-Z——%F+_ 7
=+—H 86,834 613 - 87,447
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14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Notes to Financial Statements

B AR

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

14. #HE (&)
AEBERERBAN (B)

(b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

HERE
HERENREEIRFAZENT

2020

—E-TF

RMB’000

ARBETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEEE 4,242 8,081

New leases FHE 809 1,349
Accretion of interest recognised FRE R SILR

during the year 139 586

Payments BN (1,639) (5,487)

Lease termination AERIE (2,924) (287)

Carrying amount at 31 December RN+ A=+—BZEmE 627 4,242

Analysed into: DT
Current portion BERER &> 439 3,919
Non-current portion JEBNHAER 5> 188 323
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) Rz ERHEEEEFEUT -

relation to leases are as follows:

2020

—ETHF

RMB’000

ARBTT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENS 139 586
Depreciation charge of right-of-use  EHEEEENEMRX

assets 4,480 9,302

Expense relating to short-term leases R4S HATHE A BEHIB X 2,840 2,097
Total amount recognised in profit B R IR

or loss 7,459 11,985

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2E£E AR A A"



15.

Notes to Financial Statements

B E R

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. R—EBHEQATZRE
2021 2020
—E-—& T oEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETT
Share of net assets MMEBEFE 987 =

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

BERRIFBAT

Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration and attributable to
Name shares held business the Group  Principal activity
EENANEED
Rl Fi B R e
il P R D+ 18 B RSB M T Aotk FEER
Shanghai Biaoshang Unlisted shares Shanghai 33%* Provision of technical
Information Technology services in the field of
Co., Ltd. information technology
FEEREERRERAR I LEMRN & RS BRI A

Shanghai Biaoshang Information Technology Co., Ltd
was acquired by the Group in the year, the percentage
of shares held by the Group has been changed from
26% to 33% in December 2021 as a result of the return
of capital to other investors of this associate.

The Group’s shareholding in the associate, Shanghai
Biaoshang Information Technology Co., Ltd. is held through
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

BT AR5

* AEERAFERE LEZHEBREK
BRAF - HRAZEE QRS
BEREER NZZE-_—F+_-1
HAREMRERRE AEBAFEEN
B4 1 26% 24 533% ©

AREBBAAT2EHBAARAHER
A LI i 5 B R IR 2 R 0B °

bl R RN ARE NGRS M BEREK PR
FAREEIENER ©
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Notes to Financial Statements
I E R

31 December 2021
- —F+=ZA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 15. R—BEBEQATZRE (&)

The following table illustrates the financial information of TREPREER S N TN BEER
the Group’s associate:

N

Share of the associate’s loss for the year pak(5): kNG
Share of the associate’s total comprehensive income D {EH#& A &)

]]

FREE (513)
GGt t (513)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s investment A& B AR A F] 2 ERRHEE
in the associate 987

16. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FVOCI 16. EERAABESEEHEHTAH

tEmEREZRERE
31 December
2020
=F =T
t-—A=1—H
RMB’000
AREBFIT
Equity investments designated at BERARBETEEEZEHA
FVOCI: Hip 2HERam 2 RIERE :
Quoted equity investment, BARBENEZ BRERE
at fair value &
Equity investment in a listed company RN ET AR Z RERE 24,352 25,829
Unquoted equity investment, BARBENE 2 ERERE
at fair value & 25,783 24,389
Total FoEy 50,135 50,218
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated LR ERE TR B IEE RE AN BE
at FVOCI as the Group considers these investments to be AAEREZFHAHLMEENKE  ARAE
strategic in nature. ERRZEREEEE FBFERKRE -
In 2021, the Group recognised a gain of RMB15,773,000 RZFBZ—%F  AEEREBETEANE
in other comprehensive income in relation to the fair value B ER RSB AR 2R 2 RER
change of equity investments designated at FVOCI (2020: BZhrBEE2HERAECEZHEEAR
a gain of RMB716,000). #15,773,0007C (ZZEZZFF : R AR
716,0007T) °
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17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

17. EBREEE

At 1 January 2020: R-EBE-_FE—-H—1:

Cost j%N 8,358 20,575 23,908

Accumulated amortisation R (400) (782) (1,182)

Net carrying amount BREFE 2,933 19,793 22,726
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of RZZTZFF—A—B2ZK

accumulated amortisation AN B 25t 2,933 19,793 22,726
Amortisation provided during the year £ (i §5 588 (333) (2,037) (2,370)
Exchange realignment b H = (731) (731)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZEF+=-_A=+—H 2,600 17,025 19,625
At 31 December 2020: R-BE-_EHF+-A=+—H:

Cost R AR 8,33 19,763 23,096

Accumulated amortisation 2T (733) (2,738) (8,471)

Net carrying amount REFE 2,600 17,025 19,625
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of R-ZE-_—F—A—BZKk

accumulated amortisation N Ik Rty 2,600 17,025 19,625

Additions NE 257 - 257

Amortisation provided during FEE B R

the year (378) (1,943) (2,321)

Exchange realignment FE 54, 382 - (242) (242)
At 31 December 2021 R—E-_—F+=-_B=+—H 2,479 14,840 17,319
At 31 December 2021: R-B-_—F+=-A=+—H:

Cost A AR 3,590 19,494 23,084

Accumulated amortisation Bt (1,111) (4,654) (5,765)

Net carrying amount BREFE 2,479 14,840 17,319
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Notes to Financial Statements
I E R

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

18. INVENTORIES 18. #FE&
31 December
2020
T T4
+=-A=+—8H
RMB’000
ARBT T
Raw materials B 20,527 32,044
Work in progress TR 33,124 30,498
Finished goods SR TR 207,212 123,780
260,863 186,322
Less: Impairment provision R E RS - (8,535)
260,863 177,787
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EZERNE

31 December
2020
—ECTEF
t-—A=t+—H
RMB’000
AR®ET T
Trade receivables = e 222,380 137,229
Impairment RIE (6,294) (2,065)
216,086 135,164
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly BREFEPE N AREBEERENNRIN G &
on credit, except for new customers and small-sized EFEHETFNTITEXHERLEE - gtH
customers, where payment in advance is normally required. ANEEmM=s r ZEE8H—MKAE—@R r {E
The credit period is generally one month for domestic INEFREREZZ=@A BNEFHA
customers, extending up to three months for overseas BAGEE LR o REE S REE T EARKE

customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The A FE W IR (R BRAR BS E o

Group seeks to maintain strict control over certain of its
outstanding receivables.
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19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivables balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

19. EZEWFE (£)

BHMEHRARREIREEHMEMN - ERAIX
it RARENE S R KFRESBIANED
REF  AREYEEREESTRER - &
SEWARREE ZRUEFIRGEHRT A TAE
HRSEMRESEELA - €5 BKHIER
TEHE o

REHwE B HRRNE 5 RBUGKIRHRER D
(EREZAHAKMRBEEE) T :

31 December

2020

—ECTF

+=-A=+—8

RMB’000

ARETIT

Within 1 month —@AA 116,842 54,129
1 month to 2 months —(ERA=mEA 63,304 31,941
2 months to 3 months MEAZE=18A 16,858 16,349
3 months to 4 months =EA=m@EA 3,741 10,342
Over 4 months PO{E A A 15,341 22,403
216,086 135,164

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

B RUGREREERRENESHIT

2020

—ETF

RMB’000

AREBFT

At the beginning of year REA] 2,065 783
Impairment provided (note 7) EEHRRE (A7) 4,229 1,347
Amount written off as uncollectible Wi A AU E A & 58 = (65)
At end of year RER 6,294 2,065
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19.

Notes to Financial Statements

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=-A=+—H

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. ESEWFE (&)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting REBREHRE B B RBBEREETH
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit BEOH - U EBRBREEEE - Z5TERMR
losses. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted SAEMELER  EBEERN RS BB
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and SHEBRBTEIE - BRI RRREE G
supportable information that is available at the reporting HIEAMEERIEER - —RME - WA
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts SEBERAWERE K EHMASHEE S
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables FEMFRIA -
are written off if the Group recognises that recovery of the
amount is remote.
The Group applies the simplified approach to the provision REERBAEVBREERFIREEHTE
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which HEEBBRERANELRE  ZAHEAT
permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all TMEESEWRBRALBEREER
trade receivables. To measure the expected credit loss on - RTEESERFIBENRHREEEE -
trade receivables, trade receivables have been grouped AEERBRARGEERBEHELRRGE S
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing. FEWGRIE D48 o
Set out below is the information about the credit risk EAAREERABREBEMAZENE HEUGK
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a EHHEERBREREINT
provision matrix:
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=Z—F+=ZA=+—8H
Between Between

Within 1and2 2and3 Over 3

1 year years years years Total

-5 —FEWMF MEEZF ZFUL At
Expected credit loss rate TEAEEEBEE 0.01% 0.24%  30.90% 100.00% -
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) #28RmE (AR TT) 208,879 4,419 4,076 5,006 222,380
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) TfEEAZEEE (ARETIT) 10 1,259 5,006 6,294
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZZFF+=ZA=+—H

Between Between

Within tand2 2and3 Over 3

1 year years years years Total

—FN —FEMF MEE=F =FMUEL At
Expected credit loss rate TEAEEEEE 0.02% 0.49%  21.27% 100.00% =
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000)  #2BREE (AR FIT) 121,943 8,132 6,540 614 137,229
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) FEHEiEEEE (AREFIT) 20 40 1,391 614 2,065

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*



20.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable of the Group are all bank acceptance
notes and are usually settled within six months from their
respective dates of issue. None of the notes receivable as
at the end of the years ended 31 December 2021 or 2020
was past due or impaired.

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety:

The Group endorsed certain notes receivable accepted
by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Notes”)
with aggregate carrying amounts of RMB10,254,000
and RMB9,997,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively, to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
trade payables due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”).
In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to such Endorsed Notes, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of
the Endorsed Notes and the associated other payables.
Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did not retain
any rights to the use of the Endorsed Notes, including the
sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other
third parties. None of the Endorsed Notes settled during
the year have been recoursed as at the end of the year.

Notes to Financial Statements

20.

MBERMEE

31 December 2021
—fF+=A=+-H

BYRRE

AEBNEREBEDRRITALEE  X&
EREZEHTABEREANEE - NE
E R YT _TF+_H=+—H
LFEFER - SiERKSERAHIRE -

EEHL\E/]EE;%QHQQQF

REBBES TEFBRKERTE NN ER
TF((“iEEFJ)%ﬁ%ﬂ#M%ﬁ LUZ
H ERZEHRERNEIENRE  RZE
ffﬁ&_v_2¢+_ﬂ:+—aaﬁw,ﬁ§
T E 5 Bl A& A R #10,254,0005T & A R #&

9,997,000t ([FE]) - BEFERA  A&H
EBELNRERRKLOR - SHEEEES
EXEMEORAR - Bt - AEERFERER

BEZRREN 2 REREE R AERE M ENR
B FER AEEYTEREEAEASE

SENTAEN - efhE  SFNERE
EZBTEMEME=T - RFER - HER

FRARENSEZBHER °
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20.

NOTES RECEIVABLE (continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety:

The Group endorsed certain notes receivable accepted
by banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Notes”)
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers with aggregate carrying
amounts of RMB335,339,000 and RMB116,864,000
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively. The
Derecognised Notes have a maturity from one to six
months at the end of the respective reporting periods.
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Notes have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of
the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Notes.
Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of the Derecognised Notes and the associated trade
payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Notes
and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Notes is equal to their carrying amounts. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Notes are not
significant.

Since the business model of notes receivable is both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling, the
Group classifies and measures notes receivable at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The fair value
of notes receivable were approximated to their carrying
amount largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments. No fair value changes were recorded for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 for notes
receivable.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the dates
of transfer of the Derecognised Notes. No gains or losses
were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 or
cumulatively.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2E£E AR A A"

Notes to Financial Statements

20.

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
—F+=-A=+—H

_=_

W RE (&)
EHRIBANEHESREE -

2N £5 B A BB T R 7 2 P B K BE R
TERMANETRRER (REBEEIRE]D
EE UHEER_Z_—FR_Z_ZF
TZA=T-HRREEBEAESINAARYK
335,339,000 & A K #116,864,0007T &Y
N ZEREENE S RMNTIE - RERE
Hﬁﬂi ﬂ¢ﬁfﬁ§u/u—ry§m 'JHHEUI¥ ;n:/\f
Ao REBHBEBNEBEE  EhEORTED
HIERT - BRERARBNEEALHEAEE
BRERE ([HERED - BFRE - ~&EH
EEZAEMRGRERARENAT A =R X
E#B% o At - HERBGRERBIRERRED
2HEEEREEE S EMNKIE - REER
ﬁﬂﬁﬂn&mTFE’H%ZEEE&E%@*Z%%&FHEE
REBENAUBRESREEENRAEIER
RENHERAE - EFRAR > FEERER
BEREBNFEETHAABELTERK °

F P MO SR AR 0 RS IR T IR B 75 55 8 S MR ER
BNRTRERLE AU ASBEHEKER
Fu@ﬁﬁ@ﬁiﬂﬁ ‘‘‘‘‘‘ FREt AR MR A 1K
HETH BRI E - BREBRNOA BEE
MEKEE  RABELREREETAR
HEH BE_F_—FR-F_FF+=
A=+—BILRFE - WREHEBRFES
DRBEZED -

BE_ZT_—FR-_ZF_FTF+_A=1—
HIEFE - KEIIEE’\@TE&%@B{FEE%%TJ%
PR EEG - RBE-_T - —Fk—
Z_EET+_H= + Eiif‘}z%uﬂﬂ&
hEEEERREEEELNES



21.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements
B ERMEE

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

21. FBENREREEYRKE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

B —E T

t=A=+ 8 +-A=t+-A8

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBETTT

Advances to suppliers BT HERERRR 90,827 87,209
Deductible value-added tax and FAIHURUEE R R FER AT H

prepaid corporate income tax 24,882 36,456

Other receivables H i fE Y I 23,360 25,030

139,069 148,695

For the financial assets disclosed above, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default by applying a loss
rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of
the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. For other receivables disclosed above,
they have specific due dates or settlement schedule.
Management considers the probability of default as
minimal.

Deductible value-added tax and prepaid corporate income
tax are to be deducted in the following year. Advances
to suppliers and other receivables are unsecured and
interest-free.

FREABRBENEREENS  AREDRE
BEAHETRESN  TARLEAEE
ErEBERLEERBEXTEEBENR
o FIEEDIERE - ARBEFTHORER
REEARATBN (WEA) - 3l LA ENE
KA S - A SRR YA Ml
Bt - EEERRBONTREMEEER -

AORHIEEN RBNEEAEREN T —F
JERAA ° 48 T 4L RE 9 0 B 3R K EL A B U SROR
EEMRERS -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Notes to Financial Statements
I E R

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

22. BEAARBEEFEEESFHTIABSEZ
SRMEE

31 December
2020
—ZEETF
+=-A=+—8
RMB’000
ARBET T

Listed equity investments, at fair value
Other unlisted investments, at fair value

N

LHBRERE - BAR
HibJF EHIRE » B

25,613

1,709
3,000 =

AN

EEt
£ BB E

28,613 1,709

The above equity investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were
quoted equity investments held for trading.

The above unlisted investments were wealth management
products issued by banks in Mainland China. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t E2E@EHER D F*

FRBRBERERSBARAABEFERR
Pt ABRIERNEE  REARHITRR
FIERBERRERE -
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ETARINAEZRFE °



23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

Notes to Financial Statements
B ERMEE

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

23. HERBESEEYURZRERES

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—E-—fF —TTHF

T=H=1t—H | t—A=+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Hiat AR®T AR®ETTT

Cash and bank balances e MIRTTERR 182,061 102,000

Less: Restricted cash — current o ZPRIBe — BNHEA (a) (1,986) (760)

Cash and cash equivalents HERIBEEEY 180,075 101,240

Denominated in RMB AAREE 147,638 86,932

Denominated in other currencies  LAE & #EEHE 32,437 14,308

Cash and cash equivalents e RIAEEEY 180,075 101,240
Note: Kiat -

(a) As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank balances
of approximately RMB53,000 were deposited as a
guarantee fund for the salary of rural workers pursuant
to the related government regulations; RMB133,000
was deposited as a guarantee fund for foreign currency
exchange; and RMB1,800,000 was restricted due to a
sales contract dispute.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted
bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of
the cash and cash equivalents and the restricted bank
deposits approximate to their fair values.

(a) R-ZE—_—F+-A=t+—H ' ~5H
ZIRITHE R K N R #553,0007T B 1R 1%
HEBMERFERRTIH L RELR
T - ARM133,0007T B 7 1SN 5 3
ZREES - ™ AK#1,800,000TE
RHE & B A &R -

ARBETREEALEREMER - Al - R
IR EA RS COMNEE R IRD]) R (BE - &
ERMNEERRE)  AREREBERE
RENEXBZRITEARBLBKEME
% RITRESBEFARTERNTREH
IR - RITEREZRBIRITERDF
MR BE S B T BB AR ERMIRTT o
ReRBRSEEMURIZRIBITERORE
HEREEAABERS -
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24. TRADE PAYABLES

Notes to Financial Statements
I E R

31 December 2021

—F-_—%t+-A=1+—H

24, EBZENFIE

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end EREHRE G RNRBEZRES T (R

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BERZEESE) S50
follows:

31 December

2020

—EEF

+=ZA=+—A”

RMB’000

ARBT T

Within 1 month —@EAN 94,495 63,034

1 month to 2 months —(ERZE/MEA 18,824 10,165

2 months to 3 months MIEAZ=1EA 4,659 2,948

Over 3 months =@EAMNUE 77,735 102,754

195,713 178,901

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of 30 to 90 days.

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

ESRENFEATFE  WBEZ3I0AE90
BRI RERAEE -

25. HhENSFEREFER

31 December

2020
—E-TF
+=ZA=+—H”
Notes RMB’000
k3 ARBTT

Accrued salaries, wages and fEstE &€~ TENER
benefits 42,716 43,476
Payables under the endorsement & EI8 )& 718 20 10,254 9,997
Current portion of lease liabilities A& & & ENEAEE D 14(b) 439 3,919
Other payables E th & A< 5RI8 31,177 28,936
84,586 86,328

The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

26. FTEBRTRHEMER

BORROWINGS
31 December 2020
2T A=+-H
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
EBFI=(%) I#A  ARETRT
Short-term ysb-t
Bank loans - secured RITER - BER 4.50-6.80 2022 273,000 4.50-6.96 2021 277,000
Bank loans - unsecured RITER - BER 6.00 2022 5,000 6.00 2021 5,000
278,000 282,000
Long-term R
Bank loans - secured RITER — BEA 7.20 2022 18,000 7.20 2022 20,000
Other borrowings - secured HitfE - BEA 922  2022-2024 19,731 10.17-13.47  2022-2023 47652
37,731 67,652
Less: current portion of long-term ¥ : RERITRE
bank and other borrowings [EEGI R 24,109 28,212
13,622 39,440
Total bank and other borrowings RORAMERBE 315,731 349,652
Analysed into: oME:
Bank loans repayable: AR TR REEER
RITER:
Within one year —ER 296,000 282,000
In the second year E-F - 20,000
296,000 302,000
Other borrowings repayable: AR TR EEER
HAAET
Within one year —FR 6,109 28,212
In the second year EF 6,526 14,116
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-FFERE
(BEEEMREF) 7,096 5,324
19,731 47,652
Total st 315,731 349,652
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

(a) The Group had unutilised banking facilities of
RMB59,263,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).

(b) Certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 December 2021 were
secured by:

(i) mortgages over certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment of
RMB55,119,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: RMB130,127,000);

(i) mortgages over certain of the Group’s
right-of-use assets of RMB45,937,000 as at
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB62,902,000);

(iii) mortgages over certain of the Group’s trade
receivables of RMB14,957,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB8,047,000).

(c) All the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are denominated in RMB.

27. DEFERRED INCOME

Notes to Financial Statements

26.

27.

(c)

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
- —F+=ZA=+—H

REBR _-_ZT-_—F+=-A=+
—EZ*@%%G@&&AE%
59,263,000y (ZZT=_FTF : £,) o

AEBR-_T-_—&F+-A=+—H
ZETEHBRITREMEFTATIE
TRVERA -

(i) REEBR-_ZT=-_—F+=A
ZT+—HEEEAARKE
55,119,000t 2 & T ¥ % -
WEREHE (ZEZSF : A
K #130,127,0007T) :

(i) AEEBRZ=ZZT=Z—F+=A
ST+t HEEEAARE
45,937,000t 2 & T 55 A #&
BE(ZE-_ZF: ARK
62,902,0007T)

(i) AEEBRZ=ZZT=Z—F+=A
T+—HEEEAARKE
14,957,000c 2 & T8 5 &
WHIE (ZEZFF : AR
8,047,0007T) °

PrA & BIRIT REAMEFTIAARES
'

EFE YT A

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —T-TF
+T=HA=1t—H +-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T

Government grants BT B

20,473 21,177

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 2 EEHR A A*



28.

DEFERRED TAX

The components of deferred tax assets of the Group are as
follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
—F-—%+=A=1+—H

28. EIERE
AEBELHIBEE ZERBAHFIMT

At 1 January 2021 A\ZE--F-8-H 2,133 518 10,173 5,250 3,032 1,159 17,511 2,340 43,016
Deferred tax credited/(charged) EMzTARE /(AR
to profit or loss during the year &P HER) ZEL
(Note 10) BB (W) (2,133) 1,057 (1,877) (130) (2,530) (539) (2,549) (623) (9,324)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+-f
=1-H - 1,575 8,296 5,120 1,402 620 14,962 1,717 33,692
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-ZF-F-H 497 197 14,306 5814 3,389 2478 8,020 5,211 39,912

Deferred tax credited/(charged) ER:tAE% /(AR
to proft or loss during the year =T HI%) ZEL

(Note 10) RE H#E0) 1636 321 (4,133) (564) 543 (1319) 9,491 (2.871) 3,104
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+-R
=t-8 2133 518 10,173 5250 3932 1,159 17,511 2340 43016

The Group has unrecognised tax losses arising from
entities operating in Mainland China of RMB11,469,000
(2020: RMB10,939,000) that will expire in two to five years,
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
and deductible temporary differences as it is considered
not probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised by the
Group.

AEERPREAELE 2 BRBEL Z AR
RIFIAEEARK11,469,000T (T =-F
& : AR$10,939,0007T) (R —_EHFR
[Bim) - HARRERBRFE SR o MR
Bz E 18 R R0 B 2 B R IR A TE
BE REAABERAERZTESAEREER
ot m A A ARSI AN B R (E A A R E) AR I8
BRI
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28.

Notes to Financial Statements

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. EELEHE (&)
The component of deferred tax liabilities of the Group is as REERLTEHBEBECHAKDOEHINNT
follows:
Withholding tax
SEEIE
RMB’000
AREBFT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZTE-_TF—H—H 12,144
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during RERB= AR ERERIE (#i1710)
the year (Note 10) (6,894)
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_TEF+-_A=1+—HBK
—E-_—%—HF—H 5,250
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during FTAFANERAGRERIE (f/7210)
the year (Note 10) 449
As at 31 December 2021 N-—E-_—F+=-_A=+—H 5,699

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributable by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. As at 31 December 2021, the subsidiaries of the
Company located in Mainland China had retained profits
of the RMB1,126,833,000. Based on management’s
estimation of profits to be distributed in foreseeable future,
dividends of RMB113,980,000 will be distributed from
Mainland China to overseas holding companies. Therefore,
deferred tax liability of RMB5,699,000 was recognised for
the retained profits generated from subsidiaries located in
Mainland China. Management expects that except for the
aforementioned dividends, the remaining retained profits
will be used for the subsidiaries’ continuing reinvestment.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*

RIBRRCEMSHE - RPBIAREKIA
INERECERIIGREESTRAKRE -
BIRI0%H R EGIRTENH - ZREBE =
ZENF-—F—BHRER WEARZ-E
T+F+_A=Z+—BBENEF - P EH
ABEEINEIRE B FE AR D FFI M
e BB EEAS%M B X -
I AN SR B 78 B 1 P B K B AR S A BT BB A R
FREARZF MDA B BITEURTE I
MEK RZE-_—F+-A=+—H 'K
A EVRLF R B K RE /9 B B A B8R 1SR B i A
AR #1,126,833,0007T ° 1R & & 2 E 7
BARKAEF 2R &F G - B KR
KB RE K RGIMNERARIREARE
113,980,000 T H % B o E Ut - IEEFTIS L
B E A R¥5,699,000 TR AR F B K
ECZHBARELEZREB M - BEER
HA o BR B BON 0 BR TR ER i F S A VERT
BRARMNBEIREZA -

AR A )AL R BROK A< BB R S U] P A%
HIER o



29.

SHARE CAPITAL

The movements in share capital of the Company are as

Notes to Financial Statements
B ERMEE

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

29. A&

ARTRAEBHIDT :

follows:
Issued
Number share capital
of shares Share capital equivalent of
BREEE BA ZECRTRAE
Shares uss$ RMB’000
K T ARBTF T
Authorised: EE
As at 31 December 2020 at N—_E-FTF+_-A8
US$0.01 each =+—H ' &Rk0.01%ET 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
As at 31 December 2021 at R-EBE-_—F+—-8
US$0.01 each =+—8 ' #80.01%&T 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
At 1 January 2021 R=ZE=——F—HF—A8"
at US$0.01 each Fh0.01%7T 1,033,104,000 10,331,040 66,713
Shares cancelled B iR, (6,849,000) (68,490) (444)
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE-—E+=-A=+—1
at US$0.01 each Fh0.013%7T 1,026,255,000 10,262,550 66,269

Note:

The Company repurchased 11,876,500 and 5,291,500 of its
shares in 2021 and 2020, respectively, on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for consideration of RMB13,142,000 and
RMB5,738,000, respectively. 6,849,000 shares were cancelled

during the year.

Hiat -

RZBZ—FR-ZZF_FF  ARAD AN
KB AR %13,142,0007T B A B #5,738,000
TLR & R BT Bl g B . 11,876,5008% &
5,291,5008% % 13 ° 6,849,0008% % 17 1 &

.
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30.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the articles of
association of the companies now comprising the Group,
before distributing the net profit of each year, companies of
the Group registered in the PRC are required to set aside
10% of their statutory net profit for the year after offsetting
any prior year’'s losses as determined under relevant PRC
accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve
fund. When the balance of this reserve reaches 50% of
each company’s share capital, any further appropriation
is optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be
utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares. However, the statutory surplus reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 25% of each entity’s share
capital after such issuance.

Safety production fund

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Work Safety of the
PRC, the Group is required to set aside an amount to a
safety production fund at certain percentages (less than
RMB10 million: 4%; from RMB10 million to RMB100 million:
2%; from RMB100 million to RMB1 billion: 0.5%; greater
than RMB1 billion: 0.2%) of the previous year's operating
revenue. The fund can be used for improvement of safety,
and is not available for distribution to shareholders. The
balance of the safety production fund in equity represents
the safety fund that was set aside but not yet used.

Capital reserve

Share capital of the Group’s subsidiaries before the
incorporation of the Company is recorded as capital
reserve.

Capital reserve also included the difference between the
consideration paid by the Company for the acquisition of
subsidiaries pursuant to the Reorganisation and the net
assets of the subsidiaries being acquired at the time of the
Reorganisation.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2E£E AR A A"

Notes to Financial Statements

30.

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

i

AEBREMFERBEFENFRERAR
HEPRGAEZZEHRAZT -

EERE

RIEPBUER RASBIERIET AT 2 A48
ERMA SEDIRAEFAE  AEBEEFE
A A BB R S AR HE AR B P B = R E R
FIEEMAEFEIEE  BEFEETMANMN
10%BEEATRBHEEES - EXHENE
BEEZ D AIRAME0%E - S AF AJEE
ERBEETRE - ATABHMEESTA
REETFREBEKEITAR - A - 20F
ERBEEECVERVERBERITRZE
BEAR AN H925% ©

RELEES

BEPEVRIEEREZEEELEEEER
BEHGHETER  AEEREFEESL
RE—FEZEERZBEL — T8 (AR
BI0BBITUT 1 4% ARBI10BBLE
AREE100EE T : 2% ARK100B BT
EARBA0BTT : 05% @ ARB10ETIA
£:102%) 2R2EELES - RELEEER
A ARNELEERZHRGETTARRAK
HETHR - PR THNLEEEESHE
ERLERRERANLZE2ES -

BEXfEE

REBE M B A BRA R R MK ATZ A
TINRFIEE AN -

BARFENEREARRRESEMKEN B
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(i) During the year,

During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of RMB809,000 and
RMB809,000, respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for office premises
and apartments for employees. (2020:
RMB1,349,000 and RMB1,349,000).

the Group had non-
cash additions to other borrowings of
RMB19,935,000, in respect of undiscounted
notes receivable obtained from a finance
lease (2020: Nil).

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
—F+=-A=+—H

_=_

31. ERERERME

(a) FEFREXS

(i) FRN - NEERPHAMEAR
BTFEZHEZHH RIS
FRAEEEMEERG ZIFR
ERNE B ARES809,0007T &
AR ¥809,000t (ZE ==&
£ AR #1,349,0007T & A
R #1,349,0007T) °

(ii) FR - ALER—BEREHEE
BERARBRRERREGH
HERZIFREREBARE
19,935,0007T (ZZE T4 :
;) o

(b) REFBRELNEELSD

activities
2021
At 1 January 2021 R-—ZE-_—F—A—H 39,440 310,212 4,242
New leases HHE = = 809
Changes from financing cash FEREGREEH)

flows (22,550) (32,212) (1,500)
Interest expense FEFX 906 = 139
Interest paid classified as DERKERERE

operating cash flows ZBERFE - = (139)
Termination of lease AEPIE — = (2,924)
Reclassification between TEBNER K2 FEBNHA 2 Fe

current and non-current BNOHE

portions (24,109) 24,109 -
Non-cash additions to other  HEM{ERNIFHRSRE

borrowings 19,935 = =
At 31 December 2021 RZT—_—F+=A

=+—H 13,622 302,109 627
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ERIM=E

31 December 2021
- —F+=ZA=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31. HZEBEHRERME (&)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RMEITBFREENEGESD ()

activities (continued)

2020 —EC-EHE

Interest-bearing  Interest-bearing
bank and other  bank and other

pborrowings pborrowings
(non-current) (current)  Lease liabilities
FERITR FERTR
HibfER HibfER
(3E808) (Bn#A) HEBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZZE=ZTF—H—H 29,885 283,920 8,081
New leases HE - - 1,349
Changes from financing cash flows ~ Et&IR &R E % 6,573 23,647 (4,901)
Interest expense FBEFX 5,627 - 586
Interest paid classified as operating S AKLIRESREY
cash flows BEAFLE = = (586)
Termination of lease FEH I - = (287)
Reclassification between current and  #E BN HA & 3EBNHR 2~ f5
non-current portions EFONH (2,645) 2,645 =
At 31 December 2020 RZZB-ZF+-_HA=+—8H 39,440 310,212 4,242
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERSHRHMAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the AR eRERCHEERRLERE
statement of cash flows is as follows: R
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT
Within operating activities KLEEEN 139 586
Within investing activities BEEHN = -
Within financing activities REEHA 1,500 4,901
1,639 5,487
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

33. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
A e =

32. HAREME
R-TE-—F+-_A=+—H NEBLE
EAEASREE (ZE_TF : &) -

33. EIE
REBPREH RN EAAESF T ¢

31 December

2020
—TCTF
t-A=t+—8H
RMB’000
AREBFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: EREENZ ST
Plant and machinery B M 25 152,429 120,009
Capital contribution payable to ERRR IR E 2 EARHE
2,200 9,787

an equity investment
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Notes to Financial Statements
I E R

31 December 2021
- —F+=ZA=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEAIRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BRiZzERe Y BERREMIBLFILA
these consolidated financial statements, the Group RGHN - AN E LR A LR T
had the following transactions with related parties TTATRS

during the year:

2020
“E°%F
RMB'000
ARETT
Purchases of products and services: BEERRRE
Cangzhou Aomu Agricultural Development BMBRELRRARAR
Co., Ltd. 489 349
Huage Holdings Group Co., Ltd. EXRREERRR - 390
Dezhou Wugu Food Technology Co., Ltd. ENE @Rﬁﬁuuﬂ&ﬁ BA7 245 89
Cangzhou Wugu Food Technology Co., Ltd.  AMEARKRMBHARAA 60 299
Short-term loan to an associate: REERTHELNR
Shanghai Biaoshang Information Technology /ﬁﬂﬂwﬂﬁﬁ
Co., Ltd. 204 -

Notes: Hiet -

(i) The purchases from the related parties were (i) KRBT 2B DIRE A
made according to the published prices and B RIEMHEL -
conditions.

(i) These related parties are all entities controlled (ii) ZEBBH YO RAEBEERIE
by close family members of the de facto FlENBEEREXBZEHHZ
controller of the Group. BHEES -

(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) AEBEFZEEASNHE :
Group:
2020
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
Compensation paid to key MEZERABLZMH
management personnel M (#1a£8)
(Note 8) 4,539 4,937
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as

follows:

2021

Financial assets

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
—F-—%+=A=1+—H

BEREINERMIA

ZHEERIANSHEARNEEAESSIWM
N

—E-—F

SHEE
Trade receivables 2 SR - - 216,086 216,086
Notes receivable A ES - 85,802 - 85,802
Financial assets included AT A | H At el
in prepayments and other ZENSREE
receivables - - 23,360 23,360
Restricted cash TREE - - 1,986 1,986
Cash and cash equivalents BERELEEY - - 180,075 180,075
Financial assets at fair value BRAREEFEREEETA
through profit or loss BT SREE 28,613 - - 28,613
Equity investments designated  FER AL BEGIEREEH
at FvoCl AR 2 E NS 2 RIERE - 50,135 - 50,135
Financial assets included in HAHEMIERHEENSREE
other non-current assets - - 12,122 12,122
28,613 135,937 433,629 598,179
2021 —E_—&F
Financial liabilities
SREE
Trade payables =) AN 195,713
Financial liabilities included in other SEAHRMENRIEREFRENSRAE
payables and accruals 41,870
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ST EERIT R H M A 315,731
Lease liabilities (non-current portion) HEBE GEAHHS) 188
553,502
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Notes to Financial Statements

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35.

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
—F+=-A=+—H

_=_

BRERESHNERMTA (&)

= %E%%EIE:E’S%?&E%

HREVBREE S 540

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 25

instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as D ()
follows: (continued)
2020 —EEF
. ) Financial
Financial
assets at fair Financial assets at
value through assets at amortised
profit or loss FVOCI cost Total
BRAREEFE
BRAEETE BHEHHA
BEZ&HA Hieoz2EKEz EEERATE
BaZemEE TREE JEREE G
Financial assets RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SREE AR¥EFT AR®EFT AREFT AREFT
Trade receivables B S ElE = = 135,164 135,164
Notes receivable e - 82,177 - 82,177
Financial assets included SFABAFE R E A EREER
in prepayments and other SREE
receivables - - 25,030 25,030
Restricted cash XRRE - - 760 760
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESZEY = = 101,240 101,240
Financial assets at fair value BAABETEAEES
through profit or loss AR CEREE 1,709 = = 1,709
Equity investments designated 8T AR BEFEEEED
at FVOC| STAR MR E e 2 RERE - 50,218 = 50,218
Financial assets included in FAEMERBEENSREE
other non-current assets = = 11,270 11,270
1,709 132,395 273,464 407,568
2020 —E-EH
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TR B SRR AN B BR
ZEHEE
Financial liabilities RMB’000
cReE AREFIT
Trade payables E S 5E 178,901
Financial liabilities included in other HAHMEMZERESEENSRAE
payables and accruals 42,852
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ST RIRTT RE AL FE R 349,652
Lease liabilities (non-current portion) HEAE (FERNEE D) 323
571,728

EARD R



36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e., unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e., observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
the financial instruments of the Group carried at
fair value were equity investments designated at
FVOCI, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and notes receivable. These instruments fall
into Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

Notes to Financial Statements

MBERMEE

31 December 2021
A e =

36. ERMTECZAAEEERAREBESR

i

(a)

BAREEFENEREERER

RABEZR

TRIRR TS RIREE RS
ENERTAAAEBE BNBEAT
B IREERNE 135 [ DA EER

E|REN=RRIABEER K&
B 208 T MEETEPT IR A 8 A R
BOAEBREENEZL  BEEAA
EBEFEMERYBOER

« EEAME: @EAEE

MWABE (R EERE
AR B E BT RAE
WERE) RO EE

. FE_EBARME: FRE_ER
WABIE (BVREBEZERE
REEAREREATAEER
BABBNABREABE)
STENAREE - TABRR
ABB T AR HEUS T 52
REVEABUR ©

. F-BARME : FRERTH
BN ABEBEAENDAE
B

RZBZ—F+ZA=F+—HBE=Z
—TFE+-A=+—H XNEEEA
ABEINEZERTAEASETRAAR
BET=EEZH T ALMEE R
MR IEIRE - RARBENEEEE
Bt ABmrEREEREBRERE -
ZETLEDRIIA LA R BEEZER
ZE—BHR F_BRRE=ZEBH -
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 December 2021
—F-_—%t+-A=1+—H

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. SRIAZAARBERAAEBESZR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) FIE (&)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at (a) BRAREEFENTHREERESE
fair value (continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RAAEEZSHR (F)

Financial assets: SREE
Notes receivable A ES 85,802 - 85,802 -
Financial assets at fair value BAREEFERLED

through profit or loss HABHZEREE 28,613 25,613 - 3,000
Quoted equity investments BRERERE  HAR

at fair value BEFE 24,352 24,352 - -
Unquoted equity investments BRERERE  ROR

at fair value EBE 2 25,783 - - 25,783

164,550 49,965 85,802 28,783
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Notes to Financial Statements
B E R

31 December 2021

—E-—F+=-_A=+—H

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. ERMTECZAAEEERAREBESR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) FE (&)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at (a) BRAREBEEFNENEREERER
fair value (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREBEZR (F)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into
RZZZZE+ZRA=T—HZARBEFENER

Quoted prices

in active
markets for Significant Significant
Fair value at identical observable  unobservable
31 December assets inputs inputs
2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

R-F_FF HREER EXUEE  EATABE
TZA=t-RA REEMHZHE BARE BARE
ZAREE (F-ER) (E-ER) (B=ER)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETL ARETL ARETT

Financial assets: SREE
Notes receivable e 82,177 = 82,177 -
Financial assets at fair value BAAEEHEEEEY

through profit or loss FABEZEREE 1,709 1,709 - -
Quoted equity investments BRERERE BRA

at fair value BEFE 25,829 25,829 = =
Unquoted equity investments ERERERE  BRAR

at fair value BEHE 24,389 = = 24,389

134,104 27,538 82,177 24,389
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36.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
at level 1 are based on quoted market prices.
The Group invests in unlisted investments, which
represent an investment in a fund. The Group has
estimated the fair value of the investment based
on net assets of the underlying project of the fund,
given that the underlying project was still under
early stage of development. The Directors believe
that the estimated fair values resulting from the
valuation techniques, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded
in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ZZ{t 2 EBHER A 7)*

Notes to Financial Statements
B ERIM=E

31 December 2021
—F+=-A=+—H

_=_

36. ERIEZAR
HIE (&)

(a) BELAAREEFENEREERAESR
(&)

RAEEEZER (F)

FE-EBREITRERERIEAREE
FTEREEHABSECEREEY
NABELNEREMEAELE - K&
ERIELMREZRERERES 2K
& o NEBGE  ERNERERENE
RYABREEER  HENRAEETD
NESHEBREENEEFEAE
K-BERAE HERMNMELENR
AR EBE (REEUBRKREAT
BR) RAABEMBBEEZS (REAm
PEBEANR) DESAE  BER
WEHARABEREENEE -

BERIABESR

(b) BAABEUIIZEBESRZEH
BERABZAAEE

R=—ZT-—&+-A=+-BR=-F
—EE+-A=+—0 AEEER
RS E R ASIE S BT A Y EE
EREALEETREAZE -



37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans and other borrowings, other financial liabilities and
cash and bank balances. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and notes receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. Management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Foreign currency risk

Substantially all sales and purchase transactions
were denominated in RMB and United States dollars.
Management has assessed the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk, by using a sensitivity analysis on the change
in the foreign exchange rate of the United States dollar, to
which the Group is mainly exposed during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the United States dollar with
all other variables held constant, the profit for the year
would have been approximately RMB6,146,100 (2020:
RMB3,648,900) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains arising from translations of United
States dollar-denominated trade receivables and trade
payables, as well as cash and cash equivalents.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with related parties and recognised
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Notes to Financial Statements

37.

MBERMEE

31 December 2021
A e =

MEEREERERBER

AEENTIESHTARERITER LM
ER - HiemaBEURRE RIBITES -
ZETRMTANTIERRNANKENER
E8EBe  AEERARREMEREER
BfE - PINERKRBRKLENE ZRKK
AREKREEARE SEMNFRIA

KEAEESRTANTIZRAR BINER
% FERBRERBECRER - BEREEHN

RipEERSERROEE  ZEREHL
m .
SRR

ETMBEBEERZHUANARBEEITLIIE -
EIEEDRBEAETINEERES (NE
BREE—_E-_—Frk-_ZT-_TF+-A=
T-HLHFEXEABRLERRE) N8KE
DTG AN S EEEG A SN R o

R-E-_—F+-_F=+—H" AR
HETHEB2E5%  MmAE i

RETE  FRBEHERD LML A
R #%6,146,100c (Z 2 =ZFF: ARK
3,648,9007T) ' WIIEEHBELETTFHE
MNESHRWFEREZENFEURRE K
ReEEBMEENINEETE WEFTE o

FERRE

AEEEEABITNBEEZNE =T
5 o MBRAKENBE - MERAEEKRRK
ETRZGNEF BABRBEEZEREF -
BEAN - AREREERBBEHNER -
AEEZRERY TERX -
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Notes to Financial Statements

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2021

Trade receivables* B 5 ENGRIE =
Financial assets included ST ATERFOA R E A e

in prepayments and HEZOREE

other receivables

- Normal -IE 23,360
Financial assets included in FAEMIERBEEY

other non-current assets TREE 12,122
Restricted cash XBERE 1,986
Cash and cash equivalents ReRACEED 180,075

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

PBBEREEEERBER (£)

&S K F KRR R

TRINFERAKBEEERR (E2ERE
ERMEH - EEMERBANHBE KA
BN BRI 2EEEEREREER
RBARR T A=+ —BZERERS
#r

R-EB-—FE+-A=t—HzZE=AR

222,380 222,380

= = = 23,360

= = = 12,122
- - - 1,986
= = = 180,075

217,543

- - 222,380 439,923
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2020

Notes to Financial Statements
B ERMEE

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

37. MBEAREEBERERBE (&)

BESRBRRERKER (&)
R-B-EE+-A=t—HzZE=AR

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=fA
EHEEER 2HREHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—FER EEE F-[EE BlRE G
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®Tr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Trade receivables* B SR NGIE - - - 137,229 137,229
Financial assets included BUNERESEVE L
in prepayments and HEZEREE
other receivables
— Normal -8 25,030 - - - 25,030
Financial assets included in STARMERBEE
other non-current assets SREE 11,270 = - - 11,270
Restricted cash XRES 760 = = = 760
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 101,240 - - - 101,240
138,300 . - 137,229 275,529

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the

simplified approach for impairment, information based

on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the

financial statements.

- AR B A A OEEHRENE 5 &
WHRIETN E © BB EETY < RN
BERME19RHRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2021
B —H+=ZHA=1+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. HMXEBMEBEEEZRBE (£)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk REBE SRR

The management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient AEBEEEEE#RBRARNR G RRESE
cash and cash equivalents and the Group has available BY - BASEBZEBRATENEREFERE
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit HERBSANES - DURBHER&E -

facilities to meet its commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEBEREERSTRERARNIBBER
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual (RIBEETHERMBARGTE) 40T

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings* & 8F{TREMEZ" - 104,871 208,913 7,470 7441 328,695
Lease liabilities HEBE - - - 193 - 193
Trade payables G 195,713 - - - - 195,713
Other payables and accruals HthEATERE B 41,870 - - - - 41,870

237,583 104,871 208,913 7,663 744 566,471
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37.

Notes to Financial Statements

MBERMEE

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BIXEREEEERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEERR (&)
As at 31 December 2020
RZB-ZF+-A=1-A
Less than 6to
On demand 6 months 12months ~ 1to2years  Over 2 years Total
~MIRZE
FEX  PHAER +=faA —FEMF MENE I
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings*  irERATREME - 209,531 113,895 41,986 5,542 370,954
Lease liabilities HERR - = = 365 - 365
Trade payables ECTE 178,901 = = = = 178,901
Other payables and accruals HtEAERESBR 42,852 - - - - 42,852
221,753 209,531 113,89 42,351 5,542 593,072

*

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings include the
principal and the interest.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

- SRR REMERBEAS RS -

BEXEE
AEBERERNTZBBERRIERNEELE
MIFELE - WHFRFE IR E AL R UASH
HEBRBRERTRREENES -

AR BRI A O H) B B K2 AR B & E Y
RUEEREEERNRE RIELAE - RS
FHBEARRE  REBERFHBEN TR
BB~ MBCRREE AR KEITHA - A&
B3 S AR SN ER SR INE) B AN ESKATR » R
FR-BREEANAR  BRIBEAEE
) o
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37.

38.

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited &t 25

Notes to Financial Statements

M ERMEE

31 December 2021
—F+=-A=+—H

_=_

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. HMBEREEBEERIEE (£)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued) BEXER (&)
The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing ratio at REBOKRBEABEERBBL XERERE
a healthy capital level in order to support its businesses. BAKE  UZRHEER - REBHDMHE
The principal strategies adopted by the Group include, EXRBREBEETRNEERRRREREERK
without limitation, reviewing future cash flow requirements RREB IR RERERERNEE S - #1F
and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when AEARITRETEEEKFEARAREIRET
they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available EIREMEE (MFE) UERASEES
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and BEKTFMNERSTFFEER - EEARLE
financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has HIMT
a reasonable level of capital to support its business. The
gearing ratios were as follows:
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
-S4 —E-TF
T—A=t—H +T=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBEFTT
Total debt B e%E 315,731 349,652
Total equity AR 1,891,426 1,679,292
Gearing ratio BEABHX 16.69% 20.82%
Total debt comprises interest-bearing bank and other BEREERET ERITREMER
borrowings.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38. WHEHEREBIE
As of the date of this Report, except that the Directors HEAREAR  BRTHEFMBENESE

recommend a final dividend of RMB0.068 per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the proposal is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the 2021 annual general meeting as set out
in note 11, the Group had no other significant events after
the reporting period that are required to be disclosed.

EARD R

%/)E%%Zif’;f*EJr A=+t—HI%
B RER B B A R%0.0687T © i
ExE%%Eﬁ’ﬁf$ TH&%E@:%:—EH&%%@
FRE LAES - RIREHRER - AEELE
ATARBEZHMBERNER -



39.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% & BB &

31 December 2021
T —F+=ZHA=+—H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. AXATHBRRE

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the NA B RE BAR B B 5 AR R AR B B R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: PR

31 December

2020
—ETHF
T=H=+4—H
RMB’000
AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary "E KB AT 80,303 80,303
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 80,303 80,303
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries JE U BT /B 1 ) 3R I8 370,638 439,600
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELZED 449 7,201
Total current assets MEEERE 371,087 446,801
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBaE
Other payables and accruals Efth eI RIB R EETE R 4,689 16,961
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 366,398 429,840
Net assets BEFE 446,701 510,143
EQUITY =
Share capital N 66,269 66,713
Treasury shares JEREFeh) (5,893) -
Reserves (Note) Rt () 386,325 443,430
Total equity R 1B EE 446,701 510,143
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40.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Note:

Notes to Financial Statements

A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows:

39.

31 December 2021

—=

——%+=ZA=1+—H

EABHMBRREK (&)

Hiiz -

AR AR BELIT :

At 1 January 2020 R-E-E5-f-A 632,317 79,574 955 (17 70
Profit for the year REERT - - (1,901) - (1,901)
Fair value change of equity investment RERE 2 DA BEED - S = (3721) (3721)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BENEEBNESZE = (29.481) = = (29,481)
Total comprehensive income for the year REERENGLEE = (29.481) (1,901) (3,721) (35,103)
Dividend distributed to shareholders BARTRENRS (205,056) = = - (205,056)
Disposal of fair value reserve of equity instruments designated HERTRAABEHEAEEY

at FVOC! HAEM R A RERE = - (er619) 542 (2129
Cancellation of own shares HHEARR (5.363) = = = (5,363)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R-Z-EE+-A=+-AkK

“E2--%-f-A 421,898 50,093 (28,561) - 443,430

Profit for the year REEEF - - (1,210) - (1,210)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BENEEBNES 28 - (9,066) = = (9,066)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEERENRLE - (9,066) (1,210) - (10,276)
Dividend distributed to shareholders BARTRREMRS (40,024) - - - (40,024
Cancellation of own shares HHEABRD (6,805) - - - (6,805)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-FtZA=t-H 375,069 a0 (20M) - 386,325
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. HUEMBIE®EK

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2022.

274 Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E@EAGR A T*

WEFMBRREN S - —F=A_+FH
EEES L IRRETIE -



[ERBEFRE]
“AGM”

[ZnE ]

“Announcement”
[#EEE =248 ]

“Articles of Association”

[BiZEE® ]
“Audit Committee”

=3
“Board”

[Cavalli]

“Cavalli”

[RARRTEFIRTEFLER]

»

“Company”, “our”, “our Company”,

¢ n oo

‘we”, “us” or “Tsaker Chemical”

INSIEESN
“Companies Ordinance”

[ 88
“CNT”

[DATA]
‘DATA”

[ TR F R
“Deed of Non-competition”

[E%]

“Directors”

. E S

* For identification purpose only

=

Definitions

B=

RARMR_E__Fh AT RBTHRRBF RS
annual general meeting of our Company to be held on 10 May 2022

ARRIBEHA-E-_—F XA -+tHEANAS
the announcement of the Company dated on 25 June 2021

RRAFHEBERMA (ETRIERT)
IREBEAEN B T H AR AR
the articles of association of our Company (as amended from time to
time), approved by the written resolutions of the Shareholders on 12
June 2015 and effective from the Listing Date

CTRIE-RFAAT HERRER

EExgERLZES

audit committee of the Board

BExg

the board of Directors

Cavalli Enterprises Inc. " WZZ——F =+ BERBELHSEM
BB RAR - BEMOBITESE T8 TRAHXNEEREHREA
Cavalli Enterprises Inc., a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability on 11 March 2011, wholly-owned by Mr.
Ge Vi, our executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

HEEEEBR AR
A BB RA R
Tsaker Chemical Group Limited (¥ & {LZ2&EHBRAF]*), a Company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 29 October
2014

RN IE-MET AT ARRRERSR

BB EDIFE 6228 1 7§
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

MAREBERY  UIRAKE R T EERKONERTFEHEENE
Carbon Nanotube Conductive Paste,Lithium battery conductive
medium with carbon nanotubes as the main solid component

2,5-ZFRE-14- X - - ByEE IREREER A 48
2,5-Dianilinoterephthalic acid, which is used as an intermediate of
quinacridone pigments

RARBEK ALK CavallifTZ BB AT —RAF AT ZBHTHRFRLIR
the deed of non-competition dated 12 June 2015 entered into
between our Company, Mr. Ge and Cavalli

ZAYNETf: =

the Directors of the Company
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[ Z B EC
‘DMAS”
[DMSS ] EC
“‘DMSS”
[REREERE ] b

‘Dongao Production Plant”

[RCEERE ] EC

“Dongguang Production Plants”

[REEERS ] Ec

“Dongying Production Plant”

[DSDE | i
“DSD Acid”

[R&EE 15
“Group”

AL E ] it

“Hebei Tsaker”

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*

Definitions

B=

JBET _B_FEE - ARLEERmEEEM  RE - EMARAANE
Dimethyl acetylsuccinate, which is used for the production of food
yellow pigments, agricultural chemicals, and other food additives

1,4-3RC ZBi-2,5- — A —F g - AR AEEENIEIREN REARS
Dimethyl 1,4-Cylohexanedione-2,5-dicarboxylate, which is used for
the production of quinacridone pigments and photosensitive polymer

N_T—REAANBBRUREEFIMRRENEERE (AP EILER
AREN) - BIEE(HAEIE)PNT - ONT * MNT » OTENMP (—HER
FHRATFHERRB80,0000F) £ EMBMNEERE - Tih - REKRE
EMARBEE

the production plant (including all the existing assets including
factory premises, land, equipment and facilities in relation to the
production of, among others, PNT, ONT, MNT, OT and NMP with an
aggregate annual designed production capacity of 80,000 tonnes
of mononitrotoluene) which is acquired by Shandong TNM on 4 May
2016 and located in Dongying, Shandong Province, the PRC

=

IRAEERELEAREEERE (TERBRHAE) H5H
collectively, the North Dongguang Production Plant and the South
Dongguang Production Plant (as defined in the Prospectus)

TEEBHILREEAM RS ENEERE - B EEFBRILRERESHE
2HR B EERFEERHPERE BN E®R

the production plant which is expected to be operated by Shandong
TNM and currently under preparation for construction in Dongying,
Shandong Province, the PRC, and will primarily engage in the
production of dye intermediates and battery materials products

4.4 RETRNG-2,2'- “HEEE - BIERRE - A Rk s E 8§
C

4 4’-Diaminostilbene-2,2’-disulfonic acid, which is used as an
intermediate of dyes, fluorescent whitening agents and pesticides

RA R R REH R
our Company and our Subsidiaries from time to time

IR B ERDERAF  RZ2E—=F R A LBREBEFBIEEK A
RARAQEEELEWBE AR

Hebei Tsaker Chemical Co., Ltd. CUILE R EZRMBRAT), a
company established under the laws of the PRC on 7 May 2013, and
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company



[EREH ]

“herbicides”

BTl B
“HK$” or “"Hong Kong dollars” or
“HK dollars”

[&E]
“Hong Kong”

[ fE R

“intermediates”

[1SO14001:2015

“1SO14001:2015"

1509001 |

“1S09001”"

=
“Listing”

(=il
“Listing Date”

[ EAR Al
“Listing Rules”

[MNT |

“MNT”

[EsE<r A
“Model Code”

Definitions

e

FRRB AN I 2 tria v £ R A (L BB

a chemical agent used to kill or inhibit the growth of unwanted plants

BERETEEET
Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

HERRRITHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

EREEEMEERHRMEMEEY)
chemicals that are used as raw materials to produce other chemical
products

R-T-RFEMHOBEFREEMIRREIRERIRE
International Organization for Standardization standard for
environmental management systems as enacted in 2015

BIFRR A BB RET » BB - A E - RENRB T EONE SRE MBS
ME=EEEEBRER
quality management systems model published by International
Organization for Standardization for quality assurance in design,
development, production, installation and servicing

Pty OB 22 PR AR T
listing of the Share on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

—E-hFE+H=H
3 July 2015
Bz P AR Al

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

S-WMERRNBEMERK - AERERREE  BEEh BB RN RERF
GEE

3-nitrotoluene or meta-nitrotoluene, which is used as agricultural
chemical intermediates, pharmaceutical intermediates, and dye and
pigment intermediates

ETRAMEE P LM ETAERETES ISR ETA

the[Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers|as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
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[REEIHTRIEE]
“Mr. Ge Yi” or “Mr. Ge”

[—RHEFZE]

“mononitrotoluene”

[NEEQ/
“‘NEEQ”

[NMP |

“‘NMP”

[RRZEg]

“Nomination Committee”

[OBA]
‘OBA”

[ONT|

“ONT"

[OT]

“OT”

[PNT]

‘PNT”

[P e B |

“PRC” or “China” or
“Mainland China”

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥

Definitions

B=

R BMRZERERER — (ER R EMRAD  $ITES - TRRITHER
Ge Yi (X=X), one of our controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules), an executive Director, our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

PNT » ONT &ZMNT
PNT, ONT and MNT

2R AR R R AT
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations

N-FRE-2-ILIE LR - ABRERTTE - BRESHEE SO FEEY
ME R BT

N-methyl-2-pyrrolidone, which is used in the clean energy industry,
including lithium battery manufacturing, high polymer material
industry and pharmaceutical industry, etc.

EEgRA%RES

nomination committee of the Board

Bz FERRNARSR ~ B R B Rk on A E B BHE B
optical brightening agents that are widely adopted in the production
of paper, detergent and textile

St

-THEFARNMBERE - BIEREPHERBORME  LHEREL - &
e AN RERTHES

2-nitrotoluene or ortho-nitrotoluene, which is used as the raw materials
for intermediates for agricultural chemicals, in particular herbicides,
pharmaceutical intermediates, dye and pigment intermediates, etc.

AR ONTH N HEMR - T2MERE (CEEKRED) vy HE
ortho-toluidine, a downstream product of ONT, primarily applied as
an intermediate for agricultural chemicals, especially herbicides

A-WHERRNHBERE - BELHTHEBRENTBBNEREME - 215
DSD#

4-nitrotoluene or para-nitrotoluene, which is used as the raw materials
for dye intermediates and pigment intermediates, including DSD Acid

mEARKME - RIEXESEHE  SRITBESE - RBURFIRRITT
BERAE

the People’s Republic of China, which excludes Hong Kong, the
Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan, unless
otherwise indicated

=L BEEARAF"



[ R AE

“Prospectus”

[FHEZEe]

“Remuneration Committee”

[$REH
“Reporting Period”

REEES

“Review Year”

[ARE ]
‘RMB”

[EE ]

“SFC”
&7 KRS R
“SFO”

[ ¥t |
“SGD”

[URFEF L

“Shandong TNM”

[ i t7
“Share(s)”

[ A% 3R
“Shareholder(s)”

[ Bt <2 FfT |
“Stock Exchange”

Definitions

B=

AARBHAZZE—AF A NAZT=BORERHARAE
the prospectus of the Company dated 23 June 2015

ExeHMEES
remuneration committee of the Board

BE-E - A ARE-_ZTE-_—F+_A=+—HAHH
the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

BE-ZEZ-_ A H&E-Z--—F+-A=+—AH
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

PEDEEEB AR
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

EEEFMEEBEREZES
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

EEEDIET1 BB H REFE RG]
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong

FINEETE B FT I T
Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of Singapore

IWREEMMEBRAT  RZE—NFRAZ T AREPBERK A
RARAAREEZEWB AR - 2021F 12 52838 ELE (RE) AR
RNARABUREERMEBRAF

Shandong Tsaker New Materials Co., Ltd (ILER¥EFMEER DT, a
company established under the laws of the PRC on 20 May 2014, and
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company. The company
name of Tsaker Chemical (Dongying) Co., Ltd. (W¥&(LE (&) BR
A7]) was changed to Shandong Tsaker New Materials Co., Ltd (IL&
HEHMEBMRAF]) on 23 December 2021

KRR Z R
the share(s) of the Company

RATIRRE
the shareholder(s) of the Company

EHEMEZHMERANR
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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[TCCBMJ il
“TCCBM”
[15 ] il
“tonnes
(R = ] 15

“Tsaker Beijing”

[FER%] b

“Tsaker Technology”

[FERA] b

“Tsaker Dongao”

[FERE] b

“Tsaker Hong Kong”

= 15
“US$” or “US Dollar” or “USD”

- EH35)

* For identification purpose only

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited ¥ &t 2 E£EER A TF*

Definitions

B=

2°3 4 5-ME-6-FEFFEFE  AREEEMFEN0
Methyl Benzoic acid,2,3,4,5-tetrachloro-6-cyano, which is used for the
production of pigment yellow 110

Nl

metric tonnes

EEREUER)BRAR  RZE—=F+ AT EARERENEEK LW
NENEARAREE2EWE AR

Tsaker Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (¥ERIF (ALF) AR A, a
company established under the laws of the PRC on 17 October 2013,
and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

IR BTV RREROERAT RZTERFNA T =HREF
ERRUM AR RARBEEIFEZEMB LR < 2021612 F23 B E1L
Z (AN BRARE A AL ENMEIEHZR S B R A A

Hebei Tsaker New Materials Technology Company Limited (A4t %&
T RRIRRE D AR F]), a company established under the laws of
the PRC on 23 September 2005, and an indirectly non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company. The company name of Tsaker Chemical
(Cangzhou) Co., Ltd. (&L (BM) BRAF]) was changed to
Hebei Tsaker New Materials Technology Company Limited (A1t ¥ &
R R D AR A ) on 23 December 2021

WREHEERRECBEREARR  RZZEZNF=A+HHREREERE
AR AR AR NEEEEWE AR

Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals Co., Ltd. (IUBE¥RER(LEH
[RE(E/AR]), a company established under the laws of the PRC on
15 March 2004, and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

KEZ(BB)AERAT  RZE-—ZFNAZAEEBTMALHBER
RERARAREZEMNB QA

Tsaker Chemical (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. (RE(LE(FB)BRATF),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 2
September 2010, and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

EEDEFEMET
United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America
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TSAKER

Color the world

TSAKER CHEMICAL GROUP LIMITED

FMEALBEERRAA
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